
Cabinet 
19 March 2014 

 
 

 

 
Published 11 March 2014 

Agenda for meeting of the Cabinet to be held at 6.00 

pm on Wednesday, 19 March 2014 in the Town Hall, 
Eastbourne 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend and listen to the discussion of 

items in the “open” part of the meeting.  Please see notes at end of agenda 

concerning public rights to speak and ask questions. 

 

 

 

 

The Cabinet meets in the Court Room of the Town Hall which is located 

on the ground floor.  Entrance is via the main door or access ramp at 

the front of the Town Hall.  Parking bays for blue badge holders are 
available in front of the Town Hall and in the car park at the rear of 

the Town Hall. 

 

 

 

 

An induction loop operates to enhance sound for deaf people who use 
a hearing aid or loop listener. 

 
If you require further information or assistance please contact the 

Local Democracy team – contact details at end of this agenda. 

 

This agenda and accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in 

PDF format which means you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe 

Acrobat Reader. 

 
Please ask if you would like this agenda and/or any of the reports in an 

alternative format.  
 
 
Members of the Cabinet: 
Councillor David Tutt (Leader and Chairman of Cabinet): Responsibilities aligned 
with Chief Executive and including the Community Strategy, Local Strategic 
Partnership, the Corporate Plan and economic development. 
Councillor Gill Mattock (Deputy Leader and Deputy Chairman of Cabinet): Financial 
services including accountancy, audit, purchasing and payments. 
Councillor Margaret Bannister:  Direct assistance services including revenues and 
benefits, housing and community development, bereavement services and the Crime 
Reduction Partnership. 
Councillor Carolyn Heaps: Tourism and leisure services. 
Councillor Troy Tester: Core support and strategic services. 
Councillor Steve Wallis: Place services including cleansing and recycling, parks and 
downland, engineering, building and development control, planning policy and 
strategy, environmental health and licensing. 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 
 

 
[KD] against an item indicates that the matter involves a Key Decision and that the 
item has been listed in the Council’s Forward Plan for at least 28 clear days. 
 
[BPF] against an item indicates that the matter is part of the Council's Budget and 
Policy Framework and as such will require the approval of the Full Council.  
 
Publication of this agenda also constitutes notice (or confirmation that such notice 
has previously been given) to the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee and members 
of the public as appropriate: 
(1) Under regulation 10(3) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 in respect of any 
key decision not included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions within 28 
days of this meeting.  Such items (if any) are marked [KDGE] and the reasons why 
compliance with regulation 9 (publicity in connection with key decisions) was 
impracticable are given. 
(2) Under regulation 5(4) of the above mentioned regulations that certain matters 
listed on this agenda (if any) may need to be considered in private.  (This notice is 
given further to the earlier notice given under regulation 5(2).  The reasons for 
private consideration are given at the relevant item, together with details of 
representations received (if any) about why the meeting should be open to the 
public. 
 
 

1 Minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2004 (previously 
circulated).   
 

2 Apologies for absence.   
 

3 Declarations of Interests by Members.   
 

 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs) by members as 
required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as 
required by the Code of Conduct and regulation 12(2)(d) of the 2012 Access 
to Information Regulations.  (Please see note at end of agenda). 
 

4 Questions by members of the public.   
 

 On matters not already included on the agenda and for which prior notice 
has been given (total time allowed 15 minutes).   
 

5 Urgent items of business.   
 

 The Chairman to notify the Cabinet of any items of urgent business to be 
added to the agenda. 
 

6 Right to address the meeting/order of business.   
 

 The Chairman to report any requests received to address the Cabinet from a 
member of the public or from a Councillor in respect of an item listed below 
and to invite the Cabinet to consider taking such items at the 
commencement of the meeting.  
 



3 

 

Page 3 
 

7 Housing Futures [KD]  (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 Report of Senior Head of Community. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Margaret Bannister. 
 

8 Housing and Economic Development Project [KD]  (Pages 13 - 22) 
 

 Report of Senior Head of Community.   
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Margaret Bannister. 
 

9 Corporate Plan 2014/15 refresh [BPF]  (Pages 23 - 78) 
 

 Report of Head of Corporate Development. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Troy Tester. 
 

10 Priority Cycle Routes [KD]  (Pages 79 - 120) 
 

 Report of Senior Head of Development. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Steve Wallis. 
 

11 East Sussex Joint Waste Strategy 2014 - 2025 [KD]  (Pages 121 - 
146) 

 

 Report of Senior Head of Infrastructure. 
Cabinet lead member: Councillor Steve Wallis. 
 

12 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) [KD]  (Pages 147 - 
158) 

 

 Report of Deputy Chief Executive. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Troy Tester. 
 

13 Pay Policy Statement - update [BPF]  (Pages 159 - 178) 
 

 Report of Deputy Chief Executive. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Troy Tester. 
 

 
Inspection of background papers – Please see contact details listed in each 
report. 
 
Public right of address – Requests by members of the public to speak on a 
matter which is listed in this agenda must be received in writing by no later than 
12 Noon, 2 working days before the meeting (e.g. if the meeting is on a 
Wednesday, received by 12 Noon on the Monday before).  The request should be 
made to Local Democracy at the address listed below.  The request may be made 
by, letter, fax, or electronic mail.  For further details on the rules about speaking 
at meetings or for asking a question on a matter not listed on the agenda please 
contact Local Democracy. 
 
Public questions – Members of the public may ask a question on a matter which 
is not on the agenda.  Questions should be made in writing and by the same 
deadline as for the right of address above.  There are rules on the matters on 
which questions can be asked. Please ask Local Democracy for further information  



Page 4 
 

 
Councillor right of address - Councillors wishing to address the meeting who 
are not members of the Cabinet must notify the Chairman in advance (and no 
later than the immediately prior to the start of the meeting). 
 
Disclosure of interests - Members should declare their interest in a matter at 
the beginning of the meeting, and again, at the point at which that agenda item is 
introduced.   
 
Members must declare the existence and nature of any interest. 
 
In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not 
registered (nor the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the 
interest must be reported to the meeting by the member and subsequently 
notified in writing to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days.  
 
If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room 
when the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation). 
 
Implementation of decisions - Implementation of any key decision will take 
place after 5 working days from the date notice is given of the Cabinet's decision 
(normally on the day following the meeting) unless subject to "call-in".  
Exceptions to this requirement are allowed when the decision is urgent. 
 
Further information – The Forward Plan of Key Decisions, Councillor contact 
details, committee membership lists and other related information are available 
from Local Democracy.  To receive regular e-mails alerting you to the publication 
of Cabinet agendas (or other meeting agendas) please send an e-mail to: 
localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
You can view the Forward Plan of Key Decisions at 
http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/council/meetings/ 
 
Local Democracy, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW 
Tel (01323) 415022/415021/415023          Fax (01323) 410322  
Text Relay: 18001 01323 410000   E Mail: localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
For general Council enquiries, please telephone (01323) 410000 
E-mail  enquiries@eastbourne.gov.uk   Website at  www.eastbourne.gov.uk 
 



Page 1 of 8 

 

Body: Cabinet 
 

Date: March 19th, 2014 
 

Subject: Housing Futures 
 

Report Of: Senior Head of Community 
 

Ward(s): All Wards 
 

Purpose: To secure authority to progress development and consult on a 
preferred option for the ongoing delivery of the Council’s 
housing and landlord role. 
 

Decision Type: Key Decision 
 

Recommendation: Cabinet is recommended to:  
 

1. Note the development of a preferred option to retain 
Eastbourne Homes Ltd ("EHL") as housing 
management provider with closer integration with 
Council services  
 

2. Delegate authority to the Senior Head of Community to 
discuss and agree with the Department of 
Communities and Local Government ("DCLG") the 
level and process of the consultation to be 
undertaken with tenants and leaseholders  

 
3. Delegate authority to the Senior Head of Community to 

finalise the consultation document and consultation 
plan and  to start the consultation process with 
tenants and leaseholders on the Council's preferred 
option 

 
Contact: Andy Thompson, Strategic Housing Manager.  

Telephone: 01323 415736 or internally on extension 5736. 
E-mail address: andrew.thompson@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

  

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 The Council is responsible for the homes of nearly one in ten of Eastbourne’s 

households, made up of a mixed portfolio of 3,554 residential properties with 
a programme to add in 2014-2016 to that number a further 43 properties.  
 
The Council’s housing stock is currently managed under an agreement with 
an Arm’s Length Management Organisation (ALMO), Eastbourne Homes 
Limited (EHL). The current management arrangement for Council-owned 

Agenda Item 7

Page 1



Page 2 of 8 

homes with EHL has been in place since 2005 and is due to end in March 
2015.  
 

1.2 A review of the future of the Council’s role as a social landlord was formally 
launched in May 2013 with a Housing Futures Board set up to oversee this 
important project. The Housing Futures Board is made up of Councillors, EHL 
Tenant Board Members, and the Tenant Chair of Scrutiny. The Council’s 
Housing Services Team has supported the Housing Futures Board in this 
task. 
 

1.3 This report updates Members on the progress to date in developing options 
for the landlord role, including a summary of the options considered. It sets 
out the detail of a preferred option and requests approval from Cabinet to 
take this option forward for consultation with tenants, leaseholders, relevant 
organisations and agencies and the wider community, with a view to making 
in July 2014 a formal recommendation for the future of the Council’s housing 
and landlord role.     
 

2.0 Housing Futures Background 
 

2.1 A key factor in the decision to establish EHL was that the creation of an 
ALMO provided access to additional government funding to improve the 
condition of the Council’s stock and to make sure it met the national Decent 
Homes Standard (DHS)1. The government has since 2012, brought to an end 
all funding subsidy for council housing other than that which may be 
available for the provision of new homes. More than 98% of the Council’s 
homes now meet the DHS and under current financing arrangements can be 
maintained to that standard between now and 2042. 

 
2.2 As noted above, the Management Agreement that the Council has with EHL 

to manage Eastbourne’s Council-owned housing stock is due to expire on 
March 31st, 2015. At present the Council pays EHL £6,714,000 per annum to 
manage and maintain the Council housing stock on behalf of the Council. In 
addition to this fee, capital funding is provided to EHL by the Council to carry 
out improvement works to housing stock.  
 

2.3 The Council retains control over the strategic direction of its landlord role 
and determines such matters as tenancy and allocation policies and the 
provision of new homes. The overall management of the HRA is undertaken 
jointly by the Council’s Housing and Financial Services Teams while general 
performance is monitored by the Housing Services Team. 
 

2.4 As noted above, Cabinet previously approved the formation of a Housing 
Futures Board to examine options open to the Council as a landlord and 
consider how best the landlord role can: 
 
• bring forward the Council’s Corporate Strategy 
• help deliver the outcomes of the Council’s housing and wider corporate 

strategies  

                                       
1The Decent Homes Standard was introduced in 2000. All social housing must at all times meet 

the current statutory minimum standard for housing, be in a reasonable state of repair, have 

reasonably modern facilities and services and provide a reasonable degree of thermal comfort. 

Page 2



Page 3 of 8 

• make the best of the opportunities created by the introduction of the Self 
Financing Housing Revenue Act 

• contribute positively to the Sustainable Service Delivery Structure (Future 
Model) for the development and delivery of the Council’s services 

• encourage inward investment in Eastbourne’s overall housing market. 
 

2.5 To date, the Board has in taken account of: 
 
• Value for Money (for tenants and the Council) which has included a 

financial viability assessment of the various options with supporting work 
provided by the Chartered Institute of Housing 

• Service Risk – the need to ensure continuity of service and to maintain or 
improve the quality of the service provided 

• Resident Engagement – the Board listened to residents’ views on how to 
ensure that residents are able to have influence over the provision of 
future services. For example it took account of the opinions expressed at 
the EHL Resident’s Conference in October 2013  

• Strategic Influence/fit with the other services provided by the Council 
including the changing shape of Council services, the wider housing 
market and its role in supporting the wider economy 

 
3.0 Options Appraisal for the future of council housing in Eastbourne 

 
3.1 On behalf of the Housing Futures Board, the Council’s Housing Services 

Team with support from the Chartered Institute of Housing and EHL have 
looked at a number of options for the ongoing delivery of the Council’s 
housing and landlord role. 
 
A brief summary of the options is listed below. The options report is attached 
as Appendix 2.  
 

3.2 Option 1 – Retain current arrangements with EHL 
 

Option 2 – Expansion of EHL to deliver more services for the Council 
and other enterprises, both housing and non-housing 

 
Option 3 – Return to Council and full Integration with Future Model  
 
Option 4 - Large Scale Voluntary Transfer (LSVT)2 
 
Option 5 –Transfer to Mutually Owned Co-operative3 
 
Option 8 – Tenants exercise their Right to Transfer4  

                                       
2 A Large Scale Voluntary Transfer means that the ownership of the Council’s homes will 

transfer to another landlord, most commonly a housing association. The transfer can be to an 

existing association or to a new one, set up especially to be the new landlord. This can usually 

only take place if a majority of tenants vote for such a transfer. 
3 A Mutually owned Co-operative would involve the transfer of the ownership of the housing 

stock from the Council to a new organisation, ownership of which would be vested in the 

tenants and in some models also employees. It is not dissimilar in concept to building societies 

which are owned by their members. 
4 In July 2013, the Government announced proposals to give Council tenants the right to 

request a transfer of their homes to another landlord.  

Page 3



Page 4 of 8 

 
Option 6 – Shared Service Delivery with other Social Landlords 
 
Option 7 - Out-source/externalise housing management  
 
Option 9 – Tenants exercise their Right to Manage5 

 
Option 10 - Retain EHL with responsibility for housing management 
but with greater integration with the Council’s core services and 
support structures 
 

3.3  Having explored  the above options, the Housing Futures Board concluded 
that Option 10 would offer the best mix of efficiencies, resilience, customer 
benefits and governance. Option 10 is a hybrid of Options 1, 2 and 3 and 
emerged during the assessment of all the options  as a way of combining the 
benefits of those options taking into consideration such factors as financial 
impacts of stock disposal and the risks around externalisation of services. 
EHL support the development of this preferred option. 
 

3.4.1 Option Ten - Retain EHL with responsibility for housing management 
but with greater integration with the Council’s core services and 
support structures 
 

• Co-location of team members from both EHL and the Council at the 
Council’s offices at 1, Grove Road. This will reduce office costs. 

• The introduction of shared new technology and working practices 
where appropriate. This will reduce costs and deliver more integrated 
customer-friendly services. 

• Sharing some senior level professionals/managers to reduce costs.   
• Integrating ‘back office’ services including IT, Human Resources, Legal 

Services and Financial Management and Administration across EHL 
and the Council. This would save costs and by reducing the links in the 
chain for managing such things as the HRA encourage quicker, more 
effective working and reduce the risk of errors occurring during 
information transfers. 

• Having a single Customer Contact Centre at the Grove Road office. 
This would improve the accessibility to the Council by offering a single 
point of contact for all services and again reduce costs. 

• Maximising opportunities through wider asset and property 
management. Working together is likely to reduce the cost of contract 
supervision and allow better buying of services like repairs and 
maintenance.  

 
3.5 An assessment of Option Ten is shown below. 

 
3.5.1 • Potential to generate savings (up to £1.5m) to the Council split 

between the GF and the HRA (subject to final decisions on level of 
integration/sharing). 

• Retains EHL and tenant focused governance. 
• Offers the potential for value for money for EHL and EBC by reducing 

                                                                                                                               
5 In July 2013, the Government announced proposals to streamline the ability of tenants to 

take over the management of their homes.  

Page 4



Page 5 of 8 

overheads. 
• Creates opportunities to improve customer services. 
• Retains a vehicle for securing investment and work from non-Council 

owned businesses. 
• Bigger operational scale creates greater resilience and  opportunities 

for more effective procurement of property related services by 
combining the purchasing power of the GF and the HRA. 

 
3.6 The initial business case for the Council’s Future Model change programme 

was considered at the July 2013 Cabinet. This work, carried out by Ignite, 
highlighted that the degree of cross over between EBC and EHL customer 
bases was very high around high-need, high vulnerability groups. The 
analysis showed that whilst it was possible to align the customer service 
offerings and retain separate organisations, there would be a greater cost 
and significant reduction in overall savings when compared to one service 
delivery organisation.   
 

3.7 The analysis considered the costs/benefits arising from integration in to one 
service organisation as against having two separate organisations. As a 
result of discussions at the Housing Futures Board and with resident 
representatives, the current preferred option looks to maintain two separate 
organisations, however, seeks to realise the key customer and savings 
benefits identified in the initial business case.  
 

3.8 Ignite have considered the impact of the development of Option 10 and 
consider that the business case remains valid as the proposal incorporates 
the adoption of the same technology, working practices, back office and 
asset/ procurement alignment. However, it should be noted that there will be 
some additional costs associated with maintaining the two organisations in 
the way suggested. The reduction in cost is subject to the outcome of 
current work to review processes/roles and to final decisions on the level of 
integration/sharing but is not expected to significantly reduce the overall 
savings estimate. Work to validate the business case and finalise 
arrangements is being conducted and will be reported to Cabinet in July 
2014.  
 

4.0 Consultation 
 

4.1 There is no single set process for a local authority to undertake a review of 
its role as a social landlord.  
 

4.2 A draft Consultation Plan has been drawn up by the Housing Services team 
and EHL officers with input from resident representatives. This plan will be 
further developed following discussion with the Department of Communities 
and Local Government and form the core consultation activity over he next 
three months.   
 

5.0 Legal implications  
 

5.1 A local authority is able to delegate the authority's housing management 
function to a third party but must obtain the consent of the Secretary of 
State by virtue of Section 27 of the Housing Act 1985. If the Council were to 
extend the existing Management Agreement with EHL without making any 

Page 5



Page 6 of 8 

changes at all for a period of up to five years, they are not required to seek 
consent as there is a general consent in place for such extensions. There is 
also no requirement to obtain consent if the Council chose to bring the 
management function back in-house to the Council. 
 

5.2 
 

The preferred option will require a replacement Management Agreement and 
will therefore require an application to be made to obtain the consent of the 
Secretary of State. 
 

5.3 
 

As part of the application the Council will be required to give a summary of 
the consultation that has taken place with tenants and to show evidence of 
the support for the Council's proposals (see further below). If DCLG are not 
satisfied with the level of consultation undertaken it is likely they would 
refuse consent. The Council are approaching DCLG to discuss and agree with 
them the level of consultation and process required in order to ensure that 
consent is secured as quickly as possible.  
 

6.0 
 

Consultation 
 

6.1 
 

Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985 requires the Council to consult the 
tenants on any matters of housing management that substantially affect 
them under. The changes being proposed are sufficient that consultation 
under Section 105 is required. 
 

6.2 
 

The Council has discretion as to the form of consultation it undertakes. For 
the reasons set out above, the Council are discussing the consultation with 
DCLG to ascertain precisely the level and process of tenant consultation they 
expect. In particular we will be discussing the length of the consultation 
period and Cabinet should note that that the longest consultation period 
which may be required would be 12 weeks but less may be appropriate.    
 
 

6.3 Subject to the outcome of discussions with DCLG, the Council aim to start 
the consultation as soon as possible. 
 

7.0 Next Steps 
 

7.1 The Housing Services Team will work with colleagues from EHL and the 
Ignite team to deliver the consultation plan once it had been agreed with 
DCLG and further develop Option 10. This will include the both landlord and 
non landlord housing obligations, responsibilities and contributions towards 
the Council’s wider corporate outcomes.  The aim is to have completed this 
work, incorporating resident feedback, for Cabinet in July 2014.  Cabinet will 
then be in a position to consider the future of the housing and landlord role 
in the context of the Council’s wider FM change programme. 
 

8.0 Resource Implications  
 

8.1 Progressing the Housing Futures Review will continue to require research, 
management and consultation. The technical capability for this work is 
available within the existing Housing Services Team. Financial resources of 
£20,000 were made available in 2013-2014 to support this work, of which 
£14,000 remains unspent.  

Page 6



Page 7 of 8 

 
9.0 Equality and Fairness  

 
9.1 An Equality and Fairness Analysis will be completed prior to any decision 

being taken on the ongoing delivery of the Council’s housing and landlord 
role.  
 

10.0 Other Implications – Environmental, Human Rights, Community 
Safety 
 

10.1 The completion of the Housing Futures Review will give the Council greater 
scope to deliver its wider role of community well being. Better homes and 
high quality housing management help to reduce crime, improve the 
environment and contribute towards human rights by helping people secure 
a safe and secure home.  
 

11.0 Youth and Anti-Poverty 
 

11.1 Housing problems faced by young people, including those who want to rent 
accommodation or buy a home, are becoming increasingly clear to the 
Council. Maintaining a strong housing and landlord role will help the Council 
to improve the housing options and choices available to young people. 
 

12.0 Recommendations  
 

12.1 Cabinet is recommended to:  
 

• Approve further development of the preferred option to retain 
Eastbourne Homes Ltd as housing management provider with closer 
integration with Council services  

 
• Delegate authority to the Senior Head of Community to consult on 

option 10 with tenants and leaseholders  
 

Lead officer name: Andy Thompson 
 
Job title: Strategic Housing Manager 
 

 
Background Papers:  
 
None 

Page 7



Page 8 of 8 

 
 

 

Appendix 1: Outcomes Extract from the Terms of Reference for the Housing 
Futures Review 
 
Material Considerations 
 
In undertaking and completing the Housing Futures Review, the Housing Futures 
Project Board and Housing Futures Project Group will take account of the following 
themes, which should be considered as material considerations: 
 
Community Interests 

� Landlord service and performance past, present and potential, including quality 
of delivery and customer satisfaction  

� Safeguarding and enhancing the social and economic interests of both today’s 
and tomorrow’s tenants 

� Safeguarding the ability of tenants to be actively engaged in the management 
of their homes 

� Local accountability 
 
Corporate Priorities for the Council 

� Take account of and support the outcomes and ethos set down in the 
Eastbourne Corporate Strategy, At Home in Eastbourne and the Core Strategy 
(Planning)  

� Consider all current and future governance and scrutiny arrangements 
� Consider how to mitigate and reduce risks to the Council  
� Take account of stakeholder perceptions and confidence 

 
Value for Money 

� Delivery of efficiencies including relationship where appropriate with the 
Council’s Future Model service delivery framework 

� The impact on the General Fund 
� The impact on the Housing Revenue Account 

 
Provision of affordable and secure homes 

� Enhancing and securing capacity for future investment in existing stock and in 
new/additional affordable, secure homes 
 

Economic Development 
� Capability, capacity and relevance for delivery of non-social housing projects, 

including contribution to wider economic development  
� Enhancing and securing capacity for additional future investment in the wider 

Eastbourne economy  
� Local income generation, service and goods sourcing and employment retention 

 
 

Page 8



Appendix 2  

 

Eastbourne Housing Services 
Helping you to be at home in Eastbourne 

 
Briefing Paper: Housing Futures – Options for housing management. 
 
Date: January 29th, 2014 
 
Purpose:  
 
To recap on the options available to deliver housing management and to update 
Board members on the development of a new EHL option with greater integrated 
working with the Council.  
 
Options:  
 
Newly developed Option– Retain EHL with responsibility for housing 
management with greater integration with Council 
 
Brief Description 

� Co-location of team members from both EHL and the Council at the Council’s 
offices at 1, Grove Road – this will reduce office costs. 

� The introduction of new technology and working practices where appropriate 
– this too will reduce office costs and deliver better customer-friendly 
working. 

� Sharing some senior executive level managers.  
� Integrated ‘back office’ services including IT, Human Resources, Legal 

Services and Financial Management and Administration across EHL and the 
Council. This would save costs and by reducing the links in the chain for 
managing such things as the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) encourage 
quicker, more effective working and reduce the risk of errors occurring during 
information transfers. 

� A single Customer Contact Centre at the Grove Road office – this would 
improve the accessibility to the Council by offering a single point of contact 
for all services and again reduce costs 

 
Assessment of Option Ten 

� Potential to generate savings (circa £1.5m) to the Council split between 
the General Fund (GF) and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 
� Retains EHL and tenant focused governance. 
� Represents value for money for EHL and EBC by reducing overheads. 
� Creates opportunities to improve customer services. 
� Retains a vehicle for securing investment and work from non-Council 
owned businesses. 
� Bigger operational scale creating opportunities for more effective 
procurement through combined purchasing power of an integrated GF/HRA 
spend. 

 
 

Page 9



 
 
 
 
Appraisal of Options One to Nine 
 
A range of options for the future of the Council’s landlord role were set out in a 
paper to the Housing Futures Board in August 2013.  
 
Since then, these options have been explored and appraised by the Council’s 
Housing Services Team with support from the Chartered Institute of Housing and 
Eastbourne Homes Limited.  
 
This work has taken into account: 
� The views of tenants, expressed via the Board and at the Eastbourne Homes 

Limited Resident’s Conference in October 2013 
� The emerging shape of the Council’s overall corporate service delivery 

strategy, being developed under Future Model 
� A financial viability assessment of the various options  
� The changing shape of the wider housing market and its role in supporting 

the wider economy 

 
Option 1 – Retain current arrangements with Eastbourne Homes Limited 
(EHL) 
� EHL has a track record of providing good quality services and that the 
organisation has wide support from residents.  
� A stand alone EHL option could deliver efficiencies going forward, 
however, it is recognised that the organisation is relatively small scale and this 
may not be the optimum way to deliver value for money and safeguard 
tenants/leaseholders interests.  
 

Option 2 – Expansion of EHL to deliver more services for the Council and 
other enterprises, both housing and non-housing 
� As noted above, EHL has a good track record of delivery. The company 
has, to a limited extent, expanded into some new areas of work. 
� Again, due to EHL’s relatively small scale it would be challenging to grow, 
as a stand alone business, whilst ensuring a focus on core housing activity.  
 
Option 3 – Return to Council and full Integration with Future Model  
� Integration of and easier access for residents to all Council provided 
services. 
� Potential to generate savings (circa £1.5m) to the Council for both the 
General Fund (GF) and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 
� Risk of reduced focus on housing management services. 
� Loss of tenant governance.  
 
Option 4 - Large Scale Voluntary Transfer (LSVT)1 

                                    
1 A Large Scale Voluntary Transfer means that the ownership of the Council’s homes will 

transfer to another landlord, most commonly a housing association. The transfer can be 

to an existing association or to a new one, set up especially to be the new landlord. This 

can usually only take place if a majority of tenants vote for such a transfer. 

Page 10



Option 5 –Transfer to Mutually Owned Co-operative2 
Option 8 – Tenants exercise their Right to Transfer3  
 
� These options are not financially viable. This is because the value of the 
Council’s housing stock – the amount that could be paid by a purchasing 
landlord - would not be sufficient for the Council to clear all debts incurred in 
providing the homes. The higher borrowing costs of a non-public sector landlord 
would also reduce the amount of money available for maintenance and repair of 
homes. Opportunity to borrow more money than the Council can for investment. 
 
Option 6 – Shared Service Delivery with other Social Landlords 
� Possible service level compromises with partners to secure agreements. 
� This option could deliver efficiencies through shared costs and more 
efficient procurement. 
� Risk of contractual inflexibility to manage according to local 
circumstances. 
� At this stage there are no local partners identified. 
 
Option 7 - Out-source/externalise housing management 
� Limited market and range of providers.  
� Contractual arrangements may lead to reduced flexibility to respond to 
changing circumstances and needs.  
� This option could deliver efficiencies through shared costs and more 
effective procurement.  
� Potential loss of local accountability and control. 
 
Option 9 – Tenants exercise their Right to Manage4 
� Resilience and capacity to absorb reduction in resources, risk to income 
and increases in external costs may be compromised. 
� May not be optimum way to deliver efficiencies due to relatively small 
scale of operation.  

 

                                    
2 A Mutually owned Co-operative would involve the transfer of the ownership of the 

housing stock from the Council to a new organisation, ownership of which would be 

vested in the tenants and in some models also employees. It is not dissimilar in concept 

to building societies which are owned by their members. 
3 In July 2013, the Government announced formal proposal to give Council tenants the 

right to request a transfer of their homes to another landlord. The necessary regulations 

are expected to be in force by the end of 2013. 
4 In July 2013, the Government announced proposals to streamline the ability of tenants 

to take over the management of their homes. The necessary regulations are expected to 

be in force by the end of 2013. 

Page 11



Appendix A: Outcomes Extract from the Terms of Reference for 

the Housing Futures Review 
 
Material Considerations 
 
In undertaking and completing the Housing Futures Review, the Housing Futures 
Project Board and Housing Futures Project Group will take account of the 
following themes, which should be considered as material considerations: 
 
Community Interests 

� Landlord service and performance past, present and potential, including 
quality of delivery and customer satisfaction  

� Safeguarding and enhancing the social and economic interests of both 
today’s and tomorrow’s tenants 

� Safeguarding the ability of tenants to be actively engaged in the 
management of their homes 

� Local accountability 
 
Corporate Priorities for the Council 

� Take account of and support the outcomes and ethos set down in the 
Eastbourne Corporate Strategy, At Home in Eastbourne and the Core 
Strategy (Planning)  

� Consider all current and future governance and scrutiny arrangements 
� Consider how to mitigate and reduce risks to the Council  
� Take account of stakeholder perceptions and confidence 

 
Value for Money 

� Delivery of efficiencies including relationship where appropriate with the 
Council’s Future Model service delivery framework 

� The impact on the General Fund 
� The impact on the Housing Revenue Account 

 
Provision of affordable and secure homes 

� Enhancing and securing capacity for future investment in existing stock 
and in new/additional affordable, secure homes 
 

Economic Development 
� Capability, capacity and relevance for delivery of non-social housing 

projects, including contribution to wider economic development  
� Enhancing and securing capacity for additional future investment in the 

wider Eastbourne economy  
� Local income generation, service and goods sourcing and employment 

retention 
 

Page 12



Page 1 of 9 

 

Body: Cabinet. 
 

Date: March 19th, 2014 
 

Subject: Eastbourne Housing and Economic Development Project 
(HEDP). 
 

Report Of: Ian Fitzpatrick, Senior Head of Community. 
 

Ward(s) All. 
 

Purpose This report provides an update on the Eastbourne 2013-2015 
Local Authority New Build programme and the Supporting 
Housing and Economic Progress initiative. 
 

Decision Type: Key Decision. 
 

Recommendation: Cabinet is recommended to: 
• Approve a capital allocation totalling no more than £350,000 

from the £18m Housing Regeneration capital allocation for 
the purchase and refurbishment of retail and commercial 
elements of properties being purchased for the SHEP 
initiative, subject to the application of the conditions and 
procedures previously agreed for SHEP funding delegations.   

• Approve a revised budget for the Eastbourne 2013-2015 
LANB, of £4,758,000 to include: 

o Twenty three affordable rented homes made up of 
sixteen at Coventry Court, three at Tenterden Close 
and four at Belmore Road 

o An additional six houses for shared ownership as part 
of the Coventry Court scheme, made up of three (3) x 
three bedroom houses and three (3) x two bedroom 
houses 

o An additional four homes for market sale as part of 
the Belmore Road scheme made up of four (4) x two 
bedroom homes 

• Delegate authority to the Senior Head of Community in 
conjunction with the Portfolio Holder for Finance the 
purchase of a site adjacent to Belmore Road (Longstone 
Road) subject to final risk/financial appraisal 

• Allocate up to £850,000 as a loan facility in the Council’s 
capital programme to support economic development 
initiatives at Sovereign Harbour  
 

Contact: Andy Thompson – Strategic Housing Manager 
E-mail address : andrew.thompson@eastbourne.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01323 415736 
 

  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 13



Page 2 of 9 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 This report considers a range of inter-linked housing and economic 
development projects and opportunities. All are related to the Housing and 
Economic Development Partnership (HEDP), a joint project set up in February 
2013 by the Council and Eastbourne Homes Limited (EHL). The HEDP has a 
small team of officers working exclusively on projects for the initiative but 
also being used, as required, by the Housing Services team to help the wider 
strategic housing work of the Council as a whole. 
 

1.2 The HEDP team has been tasked with delivering a number of strategic 
projects for the Council, including the programme to develop new Council-
owned homes. There has now arisen an opportunity to further expand this 
programme. This report requests approval for the appropriate resources and 
policy decisions to be in place to be able to take advantage of these new 
development and funding opportunities.   
 

1.4 In taking forward its work over the past year, the HEDP team has increasingly 
found itself needing to be able make use of both Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) and General Fund (GF) resources.  Current delegations of authority, 
agreed in September 2013 need to be revised to allow the project to operate 
more effectively as there is a risk that opportunities may be lost if this 
flexibility is not available for use when it is most needed. This report sets out 
and requests approval for those revisions.    
 

1.5 The Council has been working with development partners in order to secure 
development of sites that have extant planning permission for business use 
on Sovereign Harbour. 
 

2.0 Funding Mechanisms for HEDP  
 

2.1 At this early stage in the development of the HEDP’s work, it has not yet had 
cause to ask for consent from Members to draw upon the General Fund £20m 
capital allocation agreed in February 2013. This is because the nature of the 
work envisaged for the HEDP includes complex investment projects which 
have long lead in times.  
 

2.2 However, as part of the Supporting Housing Economic Progress (SHEP) 
initiative opportunities have arisen for the Council to acquire and bring into 
productive use freehold premises retail the area of Seaside which are seen as 
having potential to support the leisure and tourist economy. Some of the 
targeted long term empty properties are traditional shop unit with flats 
above. The upper floors can be converted to residential use, using the funds 
already approved for the SHEP but these resources cannot be used for the 
shop or commercial elements of the buildings because being part of the HRA 
they can only be used for Council-owned homes. Failure to address the 
problems at a street level will reduce the overall impact on the regeneration 
of the area. In addition, it is not always possible to secure ownership of the 
upper floor residential accommodation without also taking on the ground floor 
commercial elements of the properties. As such, for the scheme to have the 
maximum impact, the Council will on occasion have little choice but to buy 
mixed use properties which in turn will require mixed funding to be available.  
 

Page 14



Page 3 of 9 

2.3 The use of the £18m capital allocation is necessary to cover the cost and 
refurbishment of securing those commercial elements of the property to allow 
the Council to secure the acquisition of the whole property and so deliver not 
only its housing outcomes, as determined by SHEP, but also begin to deliver a 
street level programme of renaissance to currently under exploited retail and 
commercial areas of the town. These properties will be managed on behalf of 
the Council by EHL. 
 

2.4 The three currently identified commercial and retail units have been 
appraised alongside the affordable homes above the premises and have been 
through the same detailed risk assessment and viability review process to 
meet the conditions and procedures previously agreed for SHEP funding 
delegations. This has incorporated advice from local agents on rental values 
and demand levels. The appraisals assume total scheme costs of £330k, a 
gross annual rental income of £30k (9% yield) and provide a year 1 operating 
surplus of  £11k. The commercial units therefore contribute to the viability of 
the overall programme. There is some risk associated with the operation of 
commercial leases in projecting future demand. The Risk Review Group 
considered this and took into account planned mitigations (existing lessee for 
one unit, advised demand, plan to establish an enhanced offer compared to 
other nearby premises with competitive rents, contribution to wider 
regeneration) and concluded that there was a reasonable business case to 
proceed. 
 

2.5 Members are recommended to:  
 

• Approve a capital allocation totalling no more than £350,000 from the 
£18m Housing Regeneration capital allocation for the purchase and 
refurbishment of retail and commercial elements of properties being 
purchased for the SHEP initiative, subject to the following: 
• Acquisition and redevelopment of any individual property will only 

be progressed if the result is a financially viable development that 
has no net cost to the Council and contributes to the wider 
regeneration of the area. 

• Each acquisition will be approved by the Council’s Housing and 
Finance specialists before contracts for purchase are exchanged. 

 
2.6 The Council was successful in obtaining £750,000 in Section 106 contributions 

towards employment initiatives in the borough. This has been earmarked for 
Sovereign Harbour to begin development of employment space. The Council 
has been working with the County Council and Seaspace Ltd to secure an 
innovation mall on site 7. Whilst the Section106 contribution can be used to 
finance this opportunity, the structure of the development proposition 
requires this by way of a loan on commercial terms. To allow for the scheme 
to progress the loan needs to be up to a value of £850,000. The additional 
£100,000 will be financed by way of the investment return. 
 

3.0 Development of new Council owned homes 
 

3.1. Members will recall in February 2013 approving the building of a total of 23 
affordable rented homes across three sites – Coventry Court (16 homes), 
Belmore Road (four homes) and Tenterden Close (three homes) as part of the  
Eastbourne 2013-2015 Local Authority new Build (LANB) programme.  

Page 15



Page 4 of 9 

 
3.2 As part of the development of the Eastbourne 2013-2015 LANB programme, 

the opportunity has emerged to develop additional homes. This has arisen 
from: 
� An architectural competition to determine which practice should design 
the Council’s new homes. This exercise showed that six more homes could be 
provided at the Coventry Court site. 
� An opportunity to purchase a plot of land adjacent to the Belmore Road 
site that would allow an additional four homes to be provided. 
 

3.3 Expansion of the Coventry Court Scheme 
 

3.3.1 The ability to increase the number of homes available at Coventry Court from 
16 to 22 provides an opportunity to develop homes for sale to low and middle 
income households as well as generate capital receipts for the Council. By 
offering a shared ownership option, homes for low and middle income 
households are provided in a way that helps those who are unable to secure a 
mortgage for outright purchases yet can afford the monthly cost of a shared 
ownership option1. The Council has in the past successfully developed shared 
ownership homes.   
 

3.3.2 The cost of developing six family homes is £657,000, reflecting construction 
costs as the land is already in the ownership of the Council. The open market 
sale value of the six is estimated at £975,000. Purchasers would buy a 
minimum stake of 25%, generating an immediate capital receipt to the 
Council of a minimum of £243,750. Residents would then pay rent on the 
remaining equity calculated as being on 2.75% per annum of the retained 
equity. This income would cover the cost of to the Council of funding the 
retained equity stakes until such time as the occupiers chose to exercise their 
right to increase their own share in the property. Residents are at any time 
able to increase their equity stake in their home, by buying additional shares 
at the prevailing market value, which generates future capital receipts for the 
Council. 
 

3.3.3 The financial model for this scheme has been designed to allow for the 
properties to be either retained at no net cost to the Council as affordable 
rented homes or sold on the open market for a net return. This helps mitigate 
the risk to the Council of developing shared ownership homes. 
 

3.4 Expansion of the Belmore Road/Longstone Road Scheme 
 

3.4.1 An opportunity has risen adjacent to the Belmore Road site, at Longstone 
Road, to improve the access to the site and add four additional homes to the 
four approved in February 2013. The Council has secured an option to 
purchase a site currently occupied by a warehouse and yard. Purchase of this 
site offers two advantages to the Council: 
� The viability and desirability of the Council’s Belmore Road scheme will be 

improved 

                                       
1 Shared ownership can put a roof over the head of Generation Rent – The Guardian, 
November 2013; One foot on the ladder: how shared ownership can bring owning a home into 

reach - Resolution Foundation, November 2013 

 

Page 16



Page 5 of 9 

� Four additional homes can be developed for sale, to provide a net receipt 
top the Council.  
 

3.4.2 In terms of improving the site, the purchase would improve access to the new 
homes by making the main route into the scheme via Longstone Road rather 
than a narrow driveway running from Belmore Road. It will also allow the 
layout of the site to be improved by creating a simple rectangular foot print 
rather than one with an unusual angled border to one side. Appendix A shows 
the location and layout of the site. 
 

3.4.3 As noted above, the site also provides the opportunity to build four homes for 
sale, at an estimated sale value of £680,000. Taking the initial investment of 
£155,000 for the site and subsequent development/site improvement costs of 
£460,000 the scheme generates a potential net return of £65k.  
 

3.4.3 Properties available at the values suggested above will be particularly helpful 
to first time buyers, who are increasingly being priced out of the market by 
Buy-to-Let landlords. To prevent these properties falling into that category, a 
covenant can be imposed on them preventing sale requiring purchasers to 
themselves live in the homes at first sale. 
 

3.4.4 Because the Council has to purchase land for the extension of the Belmore 
Road scheme, the development is only financially viable if the properties are 
sold. The combined cost of land purchase and construction mean that the 
properties could not be retained within the HRA and let at an affordable rent 
without capital subsidy from the Council. However, the demand for properties 
in this area is high and the risk of these properties not selling is low. 
 

3.5 Financial impact of the opportunities 
 

3.5.1 If Cabinet approve both the above initiatives the overall LANB capital 
programme will be £4,758,000 subject to the outcome later this year of the 
construction tenders. 
 

3.5.2 This figure includes updated information on construction costs which have 
risen since the original report was presented Members in February 2013. This 
is because of a national rise in demand for new buildings. The cost of 
materials and specialist labour has increased over and beyond headline 
inflation rates2.  
 

3.5.3 Members are asked to note that the revised programme will generate 
receipts, as a result of the outright sale of four homes and an initial 25% 
share of six others totalling £923,750. This means that the net investment by 
the Council is £3,835,000. Appendix B to this report provides further detail on 
the assumptions made to inform the revised programme. 
 

3.5.4 Members are therefore recommended to approve: 

                                       
2 Labour costs soar as house building rises on Help to Buy scheme – Financial Times 

September 2013; Materials prices rise but labour rates remain pressurised – Construction 

News October 2013; Increase In Costs Could Threaten The Building Industry – Federation of 

Master Builders – October 2013 

 

Page 17



Page 6 of 9 

• Approve a revised budget for the Eastbourne 2013-2015 LANB, of 
£4,758,000 to include: 

o Twenty three affordable rented homes made up of sixteen at 
Coventry Court, three at Tenterden Close and four at Belmore Road 

o An additional six houses for shared ownership as part of the 
Coventry Court scheme, made up of three (3) x three bedroom 
houses and three (3) x two bedroom houses 

o An additional four homes for market sale as part of the Belmore 
Road scheme made up of four (4) x two bedroom homes 

• Delegate authority to the Senior Head of Community in conjunction with 
the Portfolio Holder for Finance the purchase of a site adjacent to Belmore 
Road (Longstone Road) subject to final risk/financial appraisal. 
 

4.0 Risk Assessment 

4.1 LANB Expansion Risk Summary 
 

   

Risk Likelihood Mitigation 

Properties fail to sell Unlikely – the 
housing market is 
currently buoyant 
with unmet demand 
for properties priced 
below £200,000 

Shared ownership 
properties can be 
taken into the HRA 
for use as rented 
homes 

Construction costs 
increase 

Possible Competitive tender 
used to reduce costs 

Borrowing costs 
increase substantially 

Unlikely – the Bank 
of England has 
indicated that rates 
are likely to remain 
low 

Funds are secured 
using long term 
interest rates in line 
with scheme viability 
assumptions  

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 The Council has undertaken and continues to undertake extensive 
consultation and market research in developing and delivering ‘At Home in 
Eastbourne’, which underpins and informs the Eastbourne 2013-2015 LANB.  

5.2 The extensive consultation work for ‘At Home in Eastbourne’, the Council’s 
housing strategy, showed that there is a considerable desire amongst local 
people to buy a home of their own. The proposals in this report will 
demonstrate a positive response by the Council to that consultation work. 
 

6.0 Environmental, Human Rights, Community Safety, Youth, Anti-
poverty Implications. 
 

6.1 The delivery of an expansion of the Eastbourne 2013-2015 LANB will give the 
Council greater scope to deliver its wider role of community well being. 
Developing the wider economy and encouraging investment in homes in a 
sustainable and equitable way will help to reduce crime, improve the 
environment and contribute towards human rights. 
 

Page 18



Page 7 of 9 

 
7.0 Resource Implications 

 
7.1 Acquisition of the site at Belmore Road/Longstone Road will require input 

from the Council’s Legal and Estates specialists although much of the 
preparatory work will be undertaken by EHL. There is sufficient capacity 
within the current teams to be able to absorb those elements of acquisition 
that will require Council input. 
 

7.2 The managing all construction works will be delivered by the HEDP and EHL, 
within their existing resources, subject to professional and financial oversight 
by the Council’s Housing Services team. The team currently has the capacity 
and capability to do this work. 
 

8.0 Legal Implications 
 

8.1 The acquisition of properties that have a long history means that careful 
research is needed to make sure that there no legal matters, such as rights of 
way or unexpired leases that may impact upon the ability of the Council to 
make the best use of its acquisitions. The HEDP team, employed by EHL and 
acting as the Council delivery agent for the Eastbourne 2013-2015 LANB and 
the SHEP undertakes thorough research into the background to all such 
purchases, taking legal advice from the Council’s Legal Services team.   
 

8.2 Purchases are not authorised by the Council’s Strategic Housing and Financial 
Services managers unless all such legal matters have been resolved 
satisfactorily. This is to avoid the Council being put at risk of investing in 
properties over which it may not have full control. 
 
 

Lead officer name:  Andy Thompson BA MSc     
Job title:   Strategic Housing Manager  
 
 

 

Page 19



Page 8 of 9 

 

Appendix A: Location of Belmore Road/Longstone Road Development Site 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The red outlined area shows 
the land currently within the 
Council’s ownership. The area 
to recommended for 
purchase is the small 
irregular plot, adjacent to 
this site, below the area 
shown as being owned by the 
authority.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



Page 9 of 9 

 
Appendix B: Financial summary of the expenditure and income assumptions for the 
Expansion of Eastbourne 2013-2015 LANB 
 

1. Scheme Assumptions 
 

• Allowances for build costs and sales values are based upon the standard 
assumptions which have been arrived at after recent market research and a 
review of relevant recent data. These assumptions have been reviewed and 
agreed by senior officers at both Eastbourne Borough Council  (EBC) and  
Eastbourne Homes Ltd (EHL) 

• Build cost allowances have been made after an assessment of current 
construction prices for new build properties including projected Build Cost 
Information Service data, input from local cost consultancy practice FFT, 
discussions with contractors and data from other similar schemes known to 
the authors of this report 

• On-costs, to include project management, planning, legal and 
employment/training (1%) design to planning have been allowed for at a 
range of 11% to 14% of the total works and acquisition costs after a review 
of relevant data as above. 

• Rental and sales income figures have been derived from a review and 
assessment of the local market carried out over the last month. Rental 
income on the shared ownership properties has been assumed as being 
2.75% of the retained equity. 

• Allowances for bad debts, service charges, and management costs have 
been established via consultation with (EHL) 

• Allowances for inflation and interest rates have been made following 
consultation with relevant officers of (EBC) and EHL 

• A summary of assumptions and outcomes is available for review from the 
Council’s Strategic Housing Manager 

 
2. Scheme Summary 

 
• Six Shared Ownership Homes: three x 3 bedroom, five person and 3 x 2 

bedroom, three person 
• Four Market Sale Homes: all 2 bedroom four person 
• Fourteen Affordable Rented Homes: three bedroom , five person  
• Nine Affordable Rented Homes: two bedroom, three/four person 
 

3. Scheme Finances 
 

• Total scheme cost: £4,758,000 (23 affordable rented homes, four homes for 
market sale, six homes for shared ownership) 

• Sales receipt (four outright sale): £680,000 
• Initial sales of 25% equity sale (six shared ownership): £243,750  
• Initial annual rental income after costs and deductions (retained 75% equity 

in six shared ownership properties): £20,100. 
• Initial annual rental income (23 affordable rented homes): £169,800 
• Repayment (repayment mortgage) in year 40.  

 
This is commensurate with the accepted financing time of forty years for new social 
housing. 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 7 

 

Body: Cabinet 
 

Date: 19th March 2014 
 

Subject: 2014/15 Corporate Plan Refresh 
 

Report Of: Peter Finnis, Head of Corporate Development 
 

Ward(s) All 
 

Purpose To submit for approval a refreshed Corporate Plan for 2010 – 
2015 with key actions and revised performance indicators for 
2014/15 to ensure the Council is well positioned to achieve its 
Corporate Priorities. 
 

Decision Type: Policy Framework 
  

Recommendation: 1. Cabinet to approve the draft 2014/15 refresh of the 
Corporate Plan subject to detail on Performance 
Indicators, Actions and final formatting being agreed by 
Senior Heads of Service and Portfolio Holders. 

2. Cabinet recommend final approval by full Council. 
 

Contact: William Tompsett, Strategic Performance Manager, Telephone 
01323 415418 or internally on extension 5418. 
william.tompsett@eastbourne.gov.uk  
 

  

 
1.0 Background 

 
1.1 In December 2009, Cabinet agreed to a new form of Corporate Plan for the 

Council. This plan was to focus on four priority chapters and was designed to 
help deliver real outcomes that would benefit residents, businesses and 
visitors to Eastbourne. 
 

1.2 In April 2010, the 2010-2015 Corporate Plan was approved by Cabinet and 
adopted by the authority. Progress against the projects in each chapter has 
been reported quarterly to Scrutiny and Cabinet as well as being discussed 
more regularly by the CMT and Cabinet leads at their regular meetings. 
This has been enhanced by use of the Covalent performance management 
system. 
 

1.3 The projects within the Corporate Plan take into account new and emerging 
government policy and legislation. Particular attention was paid to the 
Localism Bill published on 13th December 2010 as well as emerging 
legislation on public health, welfare reform, education, economic 
development. The Localism Bill in particular places greater focus on engaging 
with and enabling the community and neighbourhoods in a range of areas 
and this will need to be reflected in emerging projects as appropriate. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 23



Page 2 of 7 

 
2.0 
 

Evidence Base 

2.1 The 2010-15 Corporate Plan included evidence based on data collected from 
Local Futures. This information has been sourced from all the national 
datasets available at that time and enabled us to develop baskets of data to 
represent Eastbourne’s performance against themes in a variety of ways 
including report cards. 
 

2.2 The refreshed Corporate Plan contains updates on the Local Futures data and 
includes references to data from other more timely sources (such as East 
Sussex in Figures) where available in order to give an overall picture of 
Eastbourne which is as up-to-date as possible. Although much of the data 
will be pre-2011/12 it will help us create a picture of the direction 
Eastbourne as a town is developing. As we continue to build up our collection 
of data over a longer period, we should be able to spot trends and use that 
information to help target and deliver services more effectively. 
 

2.3 Extensive consultation on the Corporate Plan priorities has been conducted 
with the community and stakeholders each year since the new format and 
priorities were adopted. This being the final year of the current strategy, the 
results of the annual consultations have been brought together with recent 
community feedback such as the Youth Fair, the new ward walk initiative, 
and the ‘Big Local’ project in west Devonshire ward and presented to Cabinet 
in December 2013. The full consultation report will be made publicly 
available alongside to the Corporate Plan once published online. 
 

2.4 Development of projects and targets has also been influenced by the recent 
Service and Financial Planning process, reference to the Local Development 
Framework and the Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 

2.5 A year-end report summarising the 2013/14 Actions and related 
Performance Indicator outturns is being reported to Scrutiny and Cabinet 
and will be made available to the public alongside the refreshed Corporate 
Plan on our website. 
 

2.6 Feedback we have received as part of our reviews from GOSE, iESE and the 
LGA Peer Challenge were very positive regarding the format and content of 
our Corporate Plan. The areas of focus, use of outcomes and the level of 
detail in the project planning were all commented on. 
 

3.0 Chapters and Projects 
 

3.1 The Corporate Plan continues with the same four priority chapters – each 
owned by a senior member of CMT and Cabinet portfolio holder who are 
responsible for managing the overall delivery of projects in that theme. 
Below is an overview of the projects for each chapter. 
 

3.2 Prosperous Economy 
 
Tourism Marketing and Brand Development  

• New Tourism and Economic Development strategy 
• New brand development and marketing campaign 

Page 24



Page 3 of 7 

• New walking festival 
• Grow the Beer and Cider by the Sea event into a regional food and 

drink festival 
Employment - Town Centre 

• Process new planning application 
• Assist with land assembly 
• Assist developers to crystallise development on other sites 
• Specify and tender plans for the environmental improvement to 

Terminus Road 
• Review the existing ring road 

Business Support Scheme 
• Use of technology to promote local services including procurement 
• Maximise Business Rate Relief giving £800k back to small businesses 
• Revised Eastbourne Loyalty Scheme 

Employment - Sovereign Harbour 
• Process planning applications by Sovereign Harbour Ltd and 

SeaChange Sussex 
• Progress the provision of the Community Centre 
• Deliver the Harbour Innovation Mall 

 
3.3 Quality Environment 

 
Managing Waste Responsibly 

• Improve Recycling rates 
Improving the Cleanliness of the Street and Public Areas 

• Prevention campaigns to reduce environmental crime 
• Renovation of public conveniences 

Allotment Provision 
• Continue to build extra allotment in phases throughout the year 

Towards a Low Carbon Town 
• Continue to implement Environment Strategy Action Plan 
• Implement actions to reduce the carbon use of the Council’s own 

buildings 
Transport – Cycling Provision 

• Implement Cycle Strategy – revise proposed cycle routes following 
consultation 

• Complete 3 new routes and next phase of Horsey Sewer cycle route 
Eastbourne Park 

• Form a land owners group and stakeholders group to implement 
action plan for the Park 

• Carry out feasibility work for new flood mitigation measures 
Pride in Our Parks 

• Finalise design, apply for planning permission and build Hampden Park 
Skate Park 

• Biodiversity Report on Hampden Park Lake 
• Hampden Park Management Plan 
• Old Town Recreation Ground Management Plan 
• Publish the Princes Park Development Plan 

 
3.4 Thriving Communities 

 
Develop Youth Services and Activities 

• Deliver new Youth Strategy to be implemented in 2015 

Page 25



Page 4 of 7 

• Deliver Youth Fair 2014 for young people to showcase their skills and 
achievement 

• Deliver Youth Network meeting for service and activity providers 
• Implement current Youth Strategy 

Improving Neighbourhood Delivery 
• Deliver improvements to health and wellbeing 
• Develop Shinewater Park project 
• Deliver grants to Community and Voluntary organisations 

Best Use of Housing Resources 
• Housing Futures – Agree how to best deliver housing management 

arrangements to start April 2015 
• Work with Eastbourne Homes to identify options for housing repairs 

contract and begin procurement 
• Deliver New Homes programme, Empty Homes programme and 

Driving Devonshire Forward 
     - Coventry Court 
     - Tenterton 
     - Belmore/Longstone 

Support to Vulnerable Households 
• Deliver Welfare Reform Action Plan 
• Develop community resources for tackling economic hardship 
• Tackle rough sleeping 
• Housing Benefit and Council Tax system migration 

Cultural Provision 
• Establish new Charitable Company 
• Transfer Towner to Trust 
• Progress work with English Heritage to secure funding for the 

development of the Redoubt as an accessible, living museum 
Tennis Development 

• Refurbish courts at Hampden Park and Old Town Rec with new free 
membership scheme launched 

Active Eastbourne 
• Complete and implement the first priorities of the Active Eastbourne 

strategy 
Devonshire Park 

• Complete the concept design stage for the whole complex 
• Undertake next iteration of the Business Case 
• Complete Phase 1 – new façade to Congress Theatre 

 
3.5 Sustainable Performance 

 
Asset Management 

• Restructure service to create a Corporate Landlord Team 
• Market test the Wish Tower site for a restaurant 

Sustainable Service Delivery Strategy (SSD) 
• Implementation of Future Model Phase 2 
• Exploring a range of partnerships to achieve further efficiencies 

 
4.0 Performance Management and Indicators 

 
4.1 On 14 October 2010 the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 

Government announced that Government will be establishing a single 
transparent list of every piece of data that central government requires from 

Page 26



Page 5 of 7 

councils. The single data list will take effect from 1 April 2011. 
 

4.2 Further to this the National Indicator set, previously used by all councils to 
report elements of their performance to central government and all LAA 
Agreements was scrapped from 31 March 2011. 
 

4.3 With the removal of National Indicators and the limitations of the new Single 
Data List, it was vital that we developed robust local indicators to measure 
the success of delivering our priority projects. These are built into Covalent 
for monitoring and reporting through management teams, Scrutiny and 
Cabinet. We regularly review and assess our local indicators with managers 
and officers across the authority to provide a robust framework for 
measuring the success of our priority themes and projects. 
 

4.4 The agreed priority projects and actions for 2014/15 are mapped on to 
Covalent. These will be updated throughout the year as planned milestone 
dates are reached and will be reported to CMT, Scrutiny and Cabinet on a 
regular basis. These quarterly reports will also be made available on the 
performance pages of the council’s website and “live” information can be 
viewed by Members on Covalent. 
 

5.0 Consultation 
 

5.1 The details of the actions and milestones for projects have been developed in 
consultation with the appropriate Cabinet portfolio holder and CMT lead. 
Input was also sought from managers and staff who will be delivering the 
projects. 
 

5.2 Consultation with community groups, stakeholders and the general public 
has been conducted over the past 5 years in order to develop and test the 
priority actions. A separate report on the outcomes of this consultation was 
presented to Cabinet in December 2013 and is available online.  
 

5.3 It is worth noting that a significant majority of respondents over the years 
agreed that the priorities listed in the 2010/15 Corporate Plan were 
“important” or “very important.” This, combined with the use of Local 
Futures’ statistical evidence, reinforces the validity of the Council’s priority 
planning. 
 

5.4 Headlines learned from the corporate priority consultations 
2009 to 2012 

1. The Eastbourne community recognises the importance of future 
economic prosperity particularly in ongoing strong support for the 
regeneration of the town centre 

2. The Eastbourne community places a huge and consistent importance 
in maintaining the quality of our environment. 

3. Community priorities will be affected if significant events (eg. serious 
crime) take place at the time consultations are held. 

4. Ensuring that there are sufficient facilities and/or employment 
opportunities for young people are continually mentioned priorities. 

5. The national economic climate and associated feel-good levels will 
determine whether people prioritise ‘wants’ or’ needs’. 

6. Taking a long-term perspective, community engagement 

Page 27



Page 6 of 7 

demonstrates a strong degree of support for the Council’s current 
range of priority themes and projects. 

 
Headlines learned from the community activities in 2013 

1. There is widespread concern around empty shops, failed businesses 
and lack of employment opportunities 

2. Dog fouling is a significant problem in local communities generally 
3. Speeding traffic appears to be a significant issue across local 

communities generally 
4. Crime and anti-social behaviour issues are frequently mentioned, in 

particular noise nuisance and drug related issues 
5. What people value most is having a safe, clean and pleasant 

environment to live with good local access to a diverse range of 
services and facilities 

6. The need for more facilities for young people remains a high priority in 
local communities 

 
Headlines learned from the 2013 Youth Fair 

1. The area currently most in need of improvement is the quality of town 
centre shopping 

2. There is a general feeling that we should re-balance greater future 
focus from sports towards artistic facilities for activities such as music 
dancing, acting, photography and crafts 

3. We should place more focus on enabled facilities for older and more 
independent teenagers rather than directly provided facilities for 
supervised younger age groups 

 
5.5 The proposed corporate plan priority projects for 2014/15 were the subject 

of a presentation by corporate management team at a scrutiny committee 
seminar on 11 February 2014. The presentation was well received and no 
issues or concerns were raised. 
 

6.0 Resource Implications 
 

6.1 Financial – None other than as highlighted in Service and Financial Plans 
 

6.2 Staffing – None other than as highlighted in Service and Financial Plans 
 

7.0 Summary 
 

7.1 The refreshed Corporate Plan will continue to focus on the same four priority 
themes. Some changes have been made to the specific actions within each 
chapter to reflect the completion of short-term projects and the introduction 
of new initiatives. Covalent will be used to performance manage the delivery 
of projects for 20141/5 and provide “live” snapshots online as well as 
quarterly summary reports for each chapter and the plan as a whole. 
 

Peter Finnis 
Head of Corporate Development 
 

 

Page 28



Page 7 of 7 

Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
Corporate Plan 2010/15 (2014 refresh) 

Corporate Plan Priorities Consultation Report 2013 
2014/15 Service and Financial Plans 
 

To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer 
listed above. 
 

 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

����������

�	�
���������
������������

�

Page 31



�

�

Page 32



�

��

���������
�

������	
���� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������  
������	��������	�����	�
����������������������������������� �������� ! 
����"������
�����
������#����������������������������������������������������������   
������	��������	�����	�
��$��%����
���������#� ������������������������������   
�&	���������������	���'����������������(���������������������������������������� ) 
���	��������	���'����������������( ���������������������������������������������� * 
+	����,�������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������� * 
+	��
���	����'����������������(�������������������������������������������������� - 
.�,��,����	�����'����������������( �������������������������������������������� �� 
+	��/��������
�'����������������( ��������������������������������������������� �  
����	���������'����������������(�������������������������������������������������� �0 
����	�������1�������������� ������������������������������������������������������ �) 
2	�����������������/�������� �������������������������������������������������������� �- 
�����������������3�����/���	���
����� ��������������������������������������� �� 
������	���4���
�����
�������� ����������������������������������������������������� �� 
��	������������������������	���������	���4���
����� ������������������ �� 
������	���4����,������������������ ���������������������������������������������� �) 
����������������3�����,��������	�������������������������������������������� � 
������	���4������	������������ �������������������������������������������������� � 
���������������!�3�5	�������������������
� ��������������������������������� ) 
������	���4�����������
��������� ������������������������������������������������� * 
%	�	���6�����'����������������( �������������������������������������������������� - 
6��������������6����������'����������������( ���������������������������� ! 
2��������'������
��
1������������������( ������������������������������������� !! 

Page 33



�

�

Page 34



�

�

�������������

������	�������
���������7�	����
���
�	�
����������������	�����
������/��
���������

8�������/��������,����������&	���������,�
�����
	�����������������������������������

�	������������������8��������9%	�	���6����:����������1��8�;������,���/��������8�

��/�����
	����������,�
���//���
��8��������������
����������������8����������	��

���������������	������
��������	���������
���	������"�4����������1�������������

����������	���������&	�������
��,�������,��������������������	�
���������
��8����
	��,�����	��
��/	������������</��������8����,���������	������	��

�

���8������������������
�������������
�������8�4�������,�����;�8�������������
	����

������,����������	�������8�����
�����
������+	��/���������������8��
������
����,���/���������������
1�����������,���/��������.�,�����������1�������������

�������,�������#
��������8��	���/	�/�����������������
�������8���

�
"�4,�������8��1����������������,���������/��,���������	4,��

��1�����������������
	�������������,������������������������

����
��������,�
���	�������	�������
	��������������,�������

������	������	�8������������

�

������������ !�������"�	� �������������������
�

�

�

�
�

�
�����������8���������,�������������	������	�
������8������
����������������

��������������;�����
���
�����������������+	��.=�>��/��������;�������8��1����

����%	�	���6������//���
���������,������
	���������
	��������,�
���������������

����
�����8���
�����	������������
���������������#����������������������	
���������

?�
���2�,������������
�������'?2�(�������/��,��������������
���
��5�	��������
'��5�(����

�

@�8�,��;�8�4����������//�����������"��
�����	��������1�����8����8��
�����/��,��

����8���8�����,���	��
	��������3����������;��	�������������,��������������������
����
�����8���8��
�������������	�������,��8�������������������%	�	���6�����8����

�	����8��	�������%���������A������	������%������������	��/�����������������

	����8���������������	���������������,�
����������,�����,�������������
���
����

8������1��/��������
	���������������������
��������������	��/��
�������

�

��������/�����������������	����8�8�������������,���1���/��B�
���

����	������������������/���1��������	�������������/��
�������,�;�

8��1�����,������

�
��#������������"��������$�����!�

�

Page 35



�

!�

�
������	��������	�����	�
������
����������������,����������/����������������������5	���#������������

5	��������������	�����5���������%������	���������������������������������,�����888����/�����	1��

Eastbourne Borough Council Priority Themes and Aims for 2015 

����%�����������&'�
• ����	���������������������������������8����������5�	���.�8���A�����������1�
• ������/������
	��	����/��,������
����������//���	�������������/�������;���������;�

/����
�/������������������#/�����
�����������������������	������

• ��5
���
�����1������8������������������
�����������
���������#
�����
���
• ��
���������,�������������������	
�	���
�/�����������������������	���C@������������������
• ����8���8�����������������,������;��

�����������������
��,��������������;��	�������������

,��������
• ��8���������������/���������//���	�������

(� ���'���!����&����
• ���������������������������
	��������	����<	��������	����8��
������
• ��
�������&	�������������/��,���&	���������/	���
��/�
���
• �����
������/�����������	��&	�����	���������	������,�������������������#��	�������������

������8��
• ������	��8��1����
�������8������������	�������,�������������������/�����������	����
• 6�,������8�������
����������8�
��������8��
• ?����8������	//����������������
�
�����������	������
• =�������������/�����/�����;���/��,���/	���
������/��������
�
�������
��������

����!��)���&&��������

• ?�8������,�������
��������
��/��������������������8����������5�	���������
• 5	//�����������������������	���/��/���������
���������	���/���������
• ��8���������������
��,������������
��������������	���/��/��;�����������������������������������


������
• ���������,������
���	�����,��	���������������,��,����������	���������	�������

• ��8�������������&	��������������
�	������������������	�����������������������
• ��
��������//���	������������1��/���������
���������������/��������
��,�������

*��� �� #���������& ����

• 5��,�
���#
�����
����������,������
• �	������������	�
������
	�����
• ����#
���������/�������
• ���	����������������������
• ��,��	���/��������
���������/	���
;�/��,��������,��	��������
������
• �������/������������
����	���������,����
�������	����������/��,�������

�������+�� ��������%�!����������� ��#������
������0�������	����8���������/���������������������������8��������������
���������������������
������,������4��������������	����8�������������;�����,���;�������������,�������
���	�����8����

�#
���������	����;���	
������������/��������
���
��;��
��,�������/������������������
������
�������

������

*��� �� #�����&&����'�*�� ��)'�

� ��#�������������'����&����
������%�����

,� ��)���� ����� ��������&'�
,� -�����)�

,� �������� ���*%����
,� ��!����&����
,� ��&&����'�* ���'�

,� ��&&��������.��/��)���)������
,� -� ���� ���*��� ��� ���
,� 	� ����)� ���*/�����

,� ��������"�0���)����%��� ���1 &������

"��
��������D�
�
2 ����)� ���%��%���
�
3���)����� �� #���
�
3���)�����������

Page 36



�

 �

The Wider Economic Context�
�

�������������������/��/������	�������/����������������
�����
�����
�	�
���������������
�����
���8��	����,��������������8��������������
�����

��	�
�����
���������
�	������"��������������������������
��������������������������,�
���8������������������/�������,�
�������

�#/�����
������
�����	�����8��	������������������������������������	
���������	����
����������������;�����	�/��
����������8���,������

������������������/����������/����
	����
��������������������	�
��;�����������
�����8����,���������	/������������������	��
�/�����������
����
��������,�
�������	//�������������
����/��/�����������	���#/�����	����

�

"�����8�������,������������#
�������8��1�������	����������	�����5�������/��
������������������<�!������
����������������������������������
��	������������������	�
��;�8��8�������1��/��������/��������	�������,��8��"��8���������������/�������#�������������
�����
���8��	���
�����	���

���8�����������������/�
�����������	�
��$�������
�������,�������������	�����������
�/���������,������;���������
��������/��,���������������
8����,��/��,�������������	�������
����/��B�
�����;�8��������������������������8����������/��B�
�������������������/�����������%����
��������

���/������������8��������������������������������&	������������������8���������,��8���������������������	�����������
�
Eastbourne Borough Council's Financial Context��
�
1�� ��� ��������������

���

��	�
������
���������
����
����������������������������/��
��������������
	�������
�����
�
������������������,���������	����������
�����	���
���	
�����������	�
���	���������
��,���,���E���������������2�,�������������;�����������������������/��������������/������������	���8����

��,�����,������������������8���
�	��������
����������������������
�	�
��$�������
����/��������������
�	��������������	�
��������
���;������,��;�
�������������������������

�
���/����������8����������	��������	�����	�
��4����������
������������������	����5�	�
�D������	����������������
�
�

Indicator Period Value % change DoT Rank Average 

Council Tax requirement (£000s) 2011/12 £8,242 -2% Decrease Average £8,677 

Income from Sales, fees & 
charges as percentage of total 
spend 

2011/12 28.27% 10% Increase In the highest third 22.11% 

Total non school reserves as a 
percentage of net current 
expenditure 

2011/12 14.4% 15% Increase In the lowest 25% 20.9% 

Total net service spend (£000s) 2011/12 £17,145 -18% Decrease Average £16,122 

P
age 37



�

0�

Spend on management and 
support (back office) services as 
a proportion of total service 
spend 

2011/12 21.9% -60% Decrease In the lowest 20% 56.2% 

Net spend on council tax 
collection per head 

2011/12 £9.44 per head -5% Decrease In the highest 5% £5.51 per head 

Total value of assets (£000s) 2011/12 £249,828 -2% Decrease In the highest 20% £199,149 

Total resident population size - 
mid year population estimates 
(000s) 

2011 99.3 2% Increase In the lowest third 110.1 

Percentage change in estimated 
revenue spending power 
compared to previous year 

2013/14 -1.97% -57% Decrease Average -2.09% 

Total spend (total income & 
revenue expenditure, £000s) 

2011/12 £43,523 -16% Decrease In the highest third £41,519 

�

"������������
	�������
	������������������8��8�������
�������	���������/����������<� ;�����������������������������������,�
���8����������

/��,���������������������������;�,�������������	�������
���	��������������	���������������/������;����8������������,������//��/�����������
��
���8�����	����������������
�����;���������	�
����,���������������,�������������	������������
�����	�����/��,�����������������������,�
������
��������������
������

�
�����������������������������/���
�/���
�����������������8���	������	��������8��
��������
����������������<�����/����	�������������������

+	��6���	�������%����
����5�������������������,������������������������
�����
���8��	���������	��������������	�
��������
	�����������������

��������	�
�����&	�����������������,����������/���������������������������������
�������������������
�����������
������,����������@�8�,��;�
��������������������B�
��,���<�����,����������
���
����,����;��������������
���;���������������	��	������
�/��������������,���<��������

��/���������

�

5���������,�
�����������
����/��������8��������8�	������������������
��/����������������������&	�����������8������,��,�������
����1���/��B�
���
�����������������������������;�����,����������;�������	������������������,��������������������,�
������,����������������������������������

,���������#/�
�����	���"�����8��8����
�����	��������	�����������,�����������	��������,�
���������8������������������
�������������,�
��;�����

��������������,��������
�������5�������,�
��������#/�������
�����
��������/������������������������
������,�����������������#/�
��������
����	����������������,����������������������;�8��8�������1������#����������	���������<��	�
����	���;��	
������������������8���
�����������;�

�������,����/�
���
�/��B�
��������������,������
�

�

�
�����������4����5 ����/"�� #�����*%�/��%����������1�� �����

P
age 38



�

)�

Equality in Eastbourne 

�
"����/��/��;�8�����������������	��
���F��������	����/������;��������
�	������������������������������������
���������/����
�/��������8��1�
8�����������������,����/�������������
���,����������������������������������������������8����&	����������������������������������������

�,���������8������
�
"��1��8���������/��,�������&	����������//���	���������	�����,�
��/��,�����������	��8��1��������������������������������8��������������/��/���

8�������/�	������	���������
�	��,��
���	���������������	������+,�������/������8�������8����,����1����������������	����������������������/��
8�������	���������	����,�����
���	������;�
���	�������8���/��,��	�����������������������������,����,��
�;����8��������
��������������������

,��
��8�	�������������������������������������/����,�����	����������������	��
��,������������1����/��
�;����/����	�����
����������8���8��

����,����	�����,�
�������/�����������	���
��������"������
�����������������������������/����������#/��������	��8��1�������������;�
����������8�
�//���	�������������,��,���������������������������
��,��������	���8�������������	��������

�

"��8��
���������&	�������
�����������//���	����������
�����������/��/���8����#/�����
�������,���������"��1��8������������	��������

/�
1���������/��,�����������
���������&	�����������������/��/�������8��1��8�������������	�
���8��
�����������������������	������������������
"����������
�����	���	��8��1�8�����	��
���	������;��	��/������������8����,��	�����������������������
�������//���	����������������	��
��������������	����/����
�/�������
���	���������;���/��,�������������
���
����������
���������	���/����������

�
�������������������8�������	����
������������8��1����8���������&	������%����8��1�����?�
���2�,�����������������
���������G�#
������4�

�	����������+	��
���F���������	����/�������������/����������	���������������������	����	��
�����	���
��������������&	������������������;����

�����������������������������������������������8��8�����
���,���	�������������
�

P
age 39



�

*�

�#����� ��#������
�
Our environment��
�
������	�����������������8����������5	���#��������������8�����������������������������

5�	���.�8���A�����������1;�8�����//��#��������)1��'�,���!������(�����	����������

�����������%������	���������	�����������������
�������	������,��������;��������/��/�������

���8��
�������8���������������	������,���������8��������/�������
�,��8�;����������

�	�������������	�������	�����������������/�
�����
�������
���������;�����!* ���
������
'�;�����
���(�����/����

�����������������������,��	�������	����������������,���������

������	�������/��������������������������8�������	������������/��,�����������
���@�����

�

"�����������	������,��������;�������	����������8�������������/��1������������������
�������
��������������������
���������;���
�	������ ����������	����������������������/���
����

��������	����	/������/����
����8����������,���������������	����������	���������������

����������/������������	�����
����������
�	����D�����������������;������&	�������������
������
��,���/������/���������/�8��������?�8�������������
������H����	��������
���	���������

����	����/���������
�������H���������H���������������������H��������	����������������

,��	����
�����
������������
�����������������������������������	�������������������

������������������������������	��/�����
����;�8������/�����,���>�
�������/��������;��#�������������������;������&	��������������������������
��
���������5�,�������@����	�����������	�����������,�������������������	�����;���������������/���������

�������������������������,�����������


���	�������������

�
������	�
�����
��������������/�����
�������&	��������,���������������������������,�����������1�������������%%������#'���������%������'�

!������������ ��#�����"���%��� ��'����� �%�� ������������ ���� ���%��&�����������6���� ��� �� ���#�������!����&������������
& $�&�&�#����������������7�8�
�

�
�

P
age 40



�

-�

Eastbourne NI registrations by nationality, 2002 - 2011

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600
1800

D
en

m
ar

k
Fra

nc
e

G
er

m
an

y
G

re
ec

e

Ita
ly

N
et

he
rla

nd
s

Por
tu

ga
l

R
ep

 o
f I

re
la

nd
Spa

in
Sw

ed
en

Est
on

ia
C

ze
ch

 R
ep

Slo
va

k 
R

ep
H

un
ga

ry
La

tv
ia

Li
th

ua
ni

a
Pol

an
d

Bul
ga

ria
R

om
an

ia

Country

N
I 

re
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

s

Our community
1 

�

������	���������������������/�/	����������--;!����@������
����;�������������
����������
/��/������
����������,�����������8������/������������
�	���;������������������������
8����;�������	�����������������/��
��������������/�/	����������/��������������;����)�

/���
����������,���0 �������������������������������,����������0�!�/���
�����@�8�,��;�
��������
�����������������	���������	����������/��,�������������
��,����
����������

����������;�������8������������#/�����
���
��������������	����������
�����
�

��,���/�������������������
��������	������������	/;�����������������
���������������
�����
���
���	������"����8���,��!���/���
��������	��/�/	�����������8�����������������

�

������	���������������/��/����������/��/���8����������<������������/��������������������;�

'���/���
���(����������������,����������)�-�/���
�����������������	�������������������8��
8���������������������8����������1����8������������������������
1�����

�

������	����������-!���/���
����8�����/�/	�������'����	������(H����
1;�����������
��������������
�
���	�������'��6�(���1��	/�!���/���
��������	��/�/	���������

�

6������������8���������3���������������);0�����	����,��������������������������������������������	���
���	���������������	���D�
�

��

�

�
�

�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�

������������������������������������
��I������������������8��������������1�������������5	���#����%��	����
�

P
age 41



�

���

"��8��1�8���������������
���	�����������������������	//������,���/�����������8�/��B�
�����������������/��,�����,�
���������
���

����������������
�,�����	//����������
���
���	�����
������;��	����������	�������	�����2����������=����5	//����2�������������������,�
���

�
����������
�	����8��1�����	�������������/���������/���	
�������������	�����5����������������/;�����@�������������	���������;�������������4��

5��,�
������������2��	/���������������	����7�	�������������/;������/�
���
�
���	����������������������	/���	
���������.����������
��,��,������2��	/;�%������%��	�;���	���+	��2��	/���/��������������?2���
���	���������������	�����	��	��������	�������A��8��1��
�

"�������������,���/���;�
�����������������	//�������A������	������6����������/��B�
��������,��������������������8�����/���������/�8����
,��	����������
���	��������	/�;���
�������������;���������
������,����	������������
���������������A������	������6����������/��B�
���

��8��/�����������J��������;�������8��������;�"���������������;�5����8�����K�A�����?�����������+�����8���������/��B�
������1�����
����

8������
���
���	������������������������
��
���������/��������������
�,�����������������	����	
�����
���	������������������,�����������
���	��;���	����
��,�����;����������/��,�����;����������������/����������/�������������������������
��������"�����������8��1����
�������

8����?�
�����	�������������/�����������.�,��������"���������
�	����������������������������1������������������,��,����������E��������������

?�
���/������������������

�
����������
�	����8��1�����	�������������/���������/���	
�������������	�����5����������������/;�����@�������������	������������������

������	����7�	�������������/;������/�
���
�
���	����������������������	/���	
���������.������������,��,������2��	/;�%������%��	�;�

��	���+	��2��	/���/��������������?2��������
���	���������������	�����	��	��������	�������A��8��1��
�

"�������������,���/����A������	������6����������/��B�
��������,��������������������8�����/���������/�8������
�������������;���������
�;�

,��	����������
���	��������	/������,����	������������
���������������A������	������6����������/��B�
�����8��/�����������J��������;�
������8��������;�"��������������������+�����8�;�����8����������������8��1������,���/�����8�/��B�
�����5����8������������/��B�
������1�

����
����8������
���
���	�������������������/������������������	�
���������/��,������
�������������//���	���������������������������/��B�
���

����
�,�����������������������;���,��������������	��;���	����
��,�����;�������;����������������/����������/�������������������������
��

������
�

������,����������8��
�����	��������������	��
��������/�/	�������������	��������8������������������,������,�
�������������������&	������������

�	��������������������������	
�������	�������	��	�
������������	��
�	�������������
�������������
���������	��	��������
���������������	�����	�
�������	����	��������
����
������	�����������������
�������	���������������������������
����

�����	
���
��	�����
���	��������
��
�������������	���������� ���	�	����������
���
��������������
������	�������������!�"�������
 ����
����	��������������	�	������
���������	������
����
��
���	������
�
���	����
���	������
����
��
���	���� �������	�������

��	������ ���������������������������
�����

�
�

P
age 42



�

���

Devolved budgets 

������*�������	�
�����	�
���������������,��
������.�,��,����	�����������	���������
����;���
��8���������,���E��;����/��������

����/�������&	�
1���#����<����8��1�������������,��������/��,��������,����������������8��������
��������������
�	�
���8����������

/��B�
����	//������������&	�����������
�������������������������������������8����
�	�
��������

�

=���������
�����1�����	��������������8���������������	�������/���������	��8�������
����
�������	����
���
�	�
����������

���C�!����	���0��/��B�
���8�����	//����������	���������,��,����	������
�������
�	����D�
�

.�,�������� 6����8�� ����B�
��3����������8�����	��3�"�������=����2�����5/�
����/��,�������3�����������,������=����

3�5/�����%�������3��������������3���������������,��	��3�?����@����=����3����������8�����	��3�>�������������

3�@+6��
�

@��/�������1� 5	�����5/������,�����+�����8��=�
��������2��	���3��/���/���2��	/�3�"��������������������	�����2�����

3�5/�����%�������3�?���������5
�����3���	�����������	������	�����3����1������������5
�����3�.���3�������
1�

=��������	������������3�5�����������	�
��3�65J�6������������
�

?������� 5/�����%�������3�5����8��������1�3����������.��,��3�5����8��������1���
��
����
����3�5
���������B�
������F��

����3����������&	�/�����5����8��������1�
�

6����� >����������������	����3�����������?������3�@�����2�������3�@���������������3�"������8���
�

+�����8�� 5	�����5/������,�������+�����8��=�
��������2��	���3���
��
����
�����6��
�����2�������3�5��6�
���������

�����������3�5/�����%�������3�>�
������.��,��3�51����@�
1���3����������,��	��3�>�
������.��,����
�

=������ ������8����������"����3��	����8����������"����3����������5����������,��	��3����������=�8����,��	��3�

������������������"����������=�	�����	��3������������������������
����

�

5����������� 5
�	��2��	/���
�����7�	����������3�����������8�����,��	��
�

5�,������� @�,������������6�����������������5
�����3�5�����6�����8���3�J��������1�����	�����@����3�=�/�������������

6���������.��,��3����������	��
�

I//������ �/���/���2��	/�3��	����"����3�������	������������������2������5�
�����3�?�������
�����3�������	����

5��������������3���������2�����
�

�

P
age 43



�

���

Our economy�
�

.��/��������
	������������,���
�����
�
������;��	����
����
�������������8�����������

�	����������8��������	

����8���������/�����,��/��������
�����	����,���/������

�

3��������4��7���
� 6�����������������	/�����1����/�����	/�����8���������������
���������)����8�B�������

������8���*L�����������������8��1���
��8�����
������8��
��! L�8����/��,��	����

	���/��������
�

��!���%&����� �����!���&�����
� ������	��������	�����	�
������8��1�������/���������/��������,���/�����.�,�����������1�


��/��#���������"������8���=����	���������������������������

� ������,���/����������5�,�������@����	���	������C+���
�����1������������������	�
���


��/������/��������8��
������������������
������	/�����;����B�����

� ����/���������//��
������������E)����������/��������#������������������������8����//��,�������������������#/�
����������


��/������������0��

� ����/���������//��
������������E�!�����������
�������/��������5�,�������@����	��=���������1�8����//��,������������

������	
���������#/�
�������
�����
��������C�!��
� ����/���������//��
������������0 �����������������8���������	����������������	�������������8��
������8����//��,������������

������	
���������#/�
�������
�����
����������

�

��� ���
������	���4����8��
�������������,���������'����/��
�������������/�������������/��(�������������8���������������,���������*�*L�


��/���������!�0L�������.�
�����������'�
�����
�.�,���/����;�������	��������	�����	�
�������?�
���.�������/���(���

�
*/�����

������	����
�����	��������/��,�������1�����������
���������&	�����
��������,��������������
��/�����,�����
����1���������5	���#;�

5�	������������2��������������%	���������;������������������������������8�&	��������������������A>M�'�8�����������<?�,�������

A>M�?�,���(��	����������������������	���	//��������
�����������&	���������
�

�����������5	/���+	�/	��������'5+��(����6����;�+�����8�;�=����������I//������"�����������������������L���������/��,������

��	
�����;��1�������������������������������&	����������������5+����������.�,�������;�@��/�������1�����?�������"�����8��
��

�������������L��������/��,��������������	
�����;��1�����������������������������

P
age 44



�

��

�

����&��
���8�������)<������������������8��1/��
�������������,����
����������������	��������������	�
��/�����,��
��/������������

5�	������������2��������������	���

������������������������	�������������
��/�����,������������5	���#��

�

9��&%��'&����
������
���	���/����������������������	����'0�*L(�������,�������5	���#�'0� L(���������5�	��������' �-L(��,��������	������8�

����������������	���'*��L(��������������N5��
������������������	����'� L(��������������,�������5	���#�'��L(���������5�	���

�����'��!L(��	������8�����������������	���'�)L(���

�

.��������
������������,�������8��1���������'8����������	���/��������������
�	��,�����������8��1������������(����������	���������

�	�<��<8��1���������
����������������������	����'���L(���������������������5	���#�'���L(;�����5�	��������'*�)L(�����2�����

��������'���L(��,��������

�

������/����������/��,����������
�������������������������8���8�	�����1�����8��1��	������	�������������������	���

	���/�������;���
1�������������������������������;!*��5+���������������������������� �5+������������	����8��
�������������
��L��������/��,��������������/�������������������������������������.�,�������;�@��/�������1�����?�������"�����

�

�&%��'&����*������� �������% ������
�	���
���������������;���	
����������������������������������/����������
�������������	�������-L������8������8�������������

������������H���/�������������,���
�������������
�
����������*L���������
�������,����������
��
��������������������	���������

�����5	���#;�����5�	������������2��������������

�
���/�������������5	���#;�����5�	������������2������������;�������	������������8���/��/��������������,��	������/���������

��������������������������
���;�����
�����/������������������
���
�������������������

	/��������	���������
��
�������������

������������,��������
��������;��1������������;�/�����������,�
�����������������
	����������,�
���

	/��������

�

����/��/��������������<��,���/����������������������	���4��8��1���
��'-�-L(������8�����������������5	���#�'-�-L(;�����5�	���

�����'!)��L(�����2�������������'!!�0L(��

�

��%��! �����
���������� �5+�4�����������	������������������L���/��,���������������������������������	���8����������.�,�������;�@��/����

���1�����?�������8������

P
age 45



�

�!�

����! ���)�� ��#������
� �
��,������������	���������/���������/������	/��������������������������������������������D����/�	���/������/��/���

��
1������8��1������	//������/������������,���/�����������8����������8��1���
���6�����������������	���������������	���

/��,��������������B������1����������/����������/��������������,�����������/��,�����8������/������������#/�����

�//���	�����������
��������������

�
�����	�	���
�����
����
���������8�����������������������
�����
�������������������	����C�@���������������������;���������������,����������

��8��	��������������,���/��������8���������������	
�������	�������	��	�
�����������	���	����	������������� �������
����
���	�
����	�
�������	�#��
��	����
�����	�����
����$���������
�� �	$��	�����������	����	����������	
���
������	����������
���

	��
�

�� ��������������������
���
����
���
� ��
�	������������
���
�����
����	��
���������	������������
	������%������������	�


�������������
	�����	����
� �����
	������
�	������������	��������
�����������$����
�����
��������
����#��
��	���&�'��������
�	������������	������������
���
����
���
� ������	��
	��
�	�!�

�

P
age 46



�

� �

Our performance 
�
�

������	��������	�����	�
������������������
����	������������!C �������8������6���	�������%����
����5��������������8���������������
�����������	�����/������������������	�
����������������������,������������
���������,�������/��
������������/�����
�����/��,������,��	������

���������������������������"���������
�����������������������1�����������8���������������	���	����������/��������
�;���,�������������������	��

����������,�������������/�/	������;������������	������/����	�������/	���
����,�
���/��������
�

�����	��������������4�������������������������������������	�
�������������*C�-�/��������
������
���������;�8����������,����������������	��
��������������,�
���8�������;�������8���������������������
������/��,�����������������
��,����������	����������
�/�������;�/��������
��

����������;�����
���	�����������������%����8������������������;������	��������	�������1�����,��8������,����	���������/��������
��

�����������������������8�����	//�����������5��'��/��,��������������
���
��5�	�������(�������������
���,����/�����,��/������,��8������
2+5��'2�,��������+���
��5�	�������(�8��
�����������������/��,���������������������	��������������������/��������/��
���������

��/��,�������8�����	��������
������������
����������8����������	��������	�����	�
���8����������8��������������5��9��	�
����������7���:�

�8������������;�����?�
���2�,������������
�������'?2�(�	�������1���/����
�����������������	��������8��
����������������������������

��
�	������������������������,���/���������	������������%	�	���6�����/����������������	�����/����
��������	������
888�������	������,�	1C
�	�
��C/��������
�C�

�

������	��������	�����	�
�����
��������������������
�����	�������/��,����������
��,��������������
���
������������,�
��������1������	���8����
������������������
�/�������;�/��������
���������������/��,�����������	�	����	�����������������������/��������������	������	��������

�/�
�������/��B�
���8��
����,����������	�����G.=�>�4��	����B���
��/������/��B�
�����1������������	�	������	
�	�������
	��	������������	�
����
��������������� ��������	�������	
�������	�������	��	�
�����������	������
���������	��	������� �������
����
�
���(���������
����	�
������
���������	���
�
�������
���)��
��#��
�*��������	���	������%�������������������
�����
����	��������������	�

	������
�������������
���	��	�����������
����������������������������	�����������	����	
��	�
������	��
������	������
�����

��	����
�����������	���
�����������
�	�����
�	������������������	��	�������������
��	�
�����������������
������

���	������
�������
�����	�����
�	���	��� �	$������������
����	������
�

P
age 47



�

�0�

������� ���� �
�

����	��������8����
���	��������	/�;����1�������������������������/	���
����������
���	
�����,�������/���� ���������������������,���/�����
���������/���������
�����������/��������/������������	�
�������������
���	��������8���/�����������������������.�
������������������,��������
���������������8��������������������������
������B������������/���������,�����������������������������/����������������������������C� ����/������

�����8����9��/������:����9,������/�������:������;�
��������8��������	������?�
���%	�	���4���������
����,����
�;��������
�������,���������������
��	�
��4��/��������/���������

�

-� ��������� ��������&��������%�� ���%������'�������� ������
���:��������

�� ����������	����
���	�������
��������������/�����
������	�	����
�����
�/���/������/����
	�������������������������	//������������

����������������������8��
������

�� ����������	����
���	�����/��
������	�������
������������/�����
���������������������&	����������	����,����������
� ����	�����/����������8�����������
��������������
�����,�����'���������	��
����(���1��/��
��������������
���	�������������������

!� ���	���������������������	���
�������
�����������C�����/���������//���	�������������	���/��/�������
�����	���������������/�����������
 � ��������������
�����
�
���������������
����������<�������,����8��������������8�������/��/���/����������G8����4���4������4��
0� ��1����������<�����/���/�
��,�;�
���	�������������������������������������������������	//��������������	�
��4��
	���������������

/�������������������/��B�
����
�

-� ��������� ��������&�������&&����'� ���!�����������;�
�� ���������8����/�����
��
�������	�����/������/�;���������	���������������
1������/���������//���	�������

�� .�����	�����������������
����/������������
���
���	�����������������

� 5/�������������
��//��������������������
�������	���
�������
���
���	�����������������
!� ��������������<��
��������,��	�����	����������&	���������������;����/����
	�����������	����
��������	�������������	���

 � "����/��/���,��	������������,����������;�
���������/����������,��������������,��8�����������
����

�����������,�����������������,�
���
������
��������

0� ��������������������
��������������	���/��/������������������/�������������
���
���	�������

�
-� ��������� ��������&�������;�0�����1 ���

�� ���������
	��������������������������/��,�������������&	�����������8��
���������//����

�� ��������������������������������8�����	�����<�����
�����������	�	�����
	��������/�������8������������
���
�������������
��,�������	
�����
�	��
����
���;��
����;�/�������/�������
������

� "�����	���/��
���������
	���������������
�������������������������������/���������������������������������
����/��,�������
������������

�	/��,�������	������������	/��

P
age 48



�

�)�

2001-2011 Population change by age group

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

0 1-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-74 75-79 80-84 85-89 90+

Ages

T
h

o
u

s
a
n

d

����������/�'������& �����
�

+�����.�
����������;�����+���
������A��������5�������
��/	������������J���5�������
�����������?�
����	������������������������

����	����

�

���,��	������������������8�����������������/�/	����������������	�����������
����

--;!��;���/���������������
���������-;)! �'���*)L(��,��������������������
������
�����
���	��������������8�������������	����������	�����������������	�������

! ;���;�8��
���������L���
���������
���������

�
�

�

�

�
�

������������/�/	������;�.�,�����������������������8����

���������8�;���1�����,��������?��������5�,���������8�

����������
������������/�/	�����������������������

��
���������!;*��
��/�������������'�����
���������

0*�-L(��=����������������8����/�/	�������������������

8�������������������������8������/�/	�������	�������;�����?��������#/�����
�������
��������/�/	�����������,���!���/��/��;�����

@��/�������1���8��������,���������������
���������/�/	����������� �/��/����

�

�

�������	����������������������	�����8���8�������1��	/����������	���4����	������������
��������,�������������������
������

�����
���	�������/��/������������	�����������������	��������������������/������������
������;����������������������/����
	����

��
��������������������/������/�����������	���������@�8�,���������	�������������������������������/��
�����������������/������
/�����������	�����������������������"�������

�

��������������������
���������
�<�����������������
�����������������
�	/������,������������;������
��������������������������������

������-��/��/�����������������������<��#�
�,���/���������/;�8��
�������	�������������!L��������������/�/	������;����������������
��������/��
��������	���������!*���
����	�������������������������"�������������������������;�������	������������*�����������

/��
����������/��/������������������"�����8���������,��
�����

P
age 49



�

�*�

�

�������������������������
����
������������������
�������������	�������
������;������	�������/��
��������������/�/	���������������

G���<8����4�������
�������������!L������������ �-L����������* ��L����������	���4��/�/	�������8������������������������

��;-�*�8����������	�������������I������J�������������
��/��������);�-*����������+�������������	��������/��/���������	���������

����IJ;�!*L���,������,����������IJ����
��������������������������������
���������;�8�����;�)��/��/�����,�������������	������,����

���������������������+�����
�	����������������8������/�����������
�	�������	���;�2�������������������*L������	�����������
������	����
���������<����8��������������������������	������

�

��������������������
��������������	����������	��������/�
���8�������	�	�������������'���������������,�
���������
���������(;�

8��
����8���1���	/� �-L��������!);*!����	��������/�
������������	������)�)L����������	��������/�
������������������/	�/���<

�	�������
1;�	/���������L����������+8�����

	/������������
�����������������������������������
������
�����������	��������

�������,�����/��,�����������/��/����������-;)!);�8��
��������������	�����������	��������������������&	�����������)L������������

0�����������/��
����������������������"�����������	����������	��������8����	��
���������������������
����������
������;��	��

�����������1���	/���-L���������������	����������	����������

�

�����,��������	���������F��������
���������������������������������������;��	�������,�������	��������������/�����	�������
��������������������������������	��������
��������,�����8�������������	����������
������������-;��������������!0;0 *����

����;���/���������������
����������*�-L;�8��
�����������������������,������/�/	���������
������������-L���

�
����/��
����������/��/�����������8�����0�����)!�8��������
�����
������
��,��������
������������0�L������������0*L����

������?���������	���/����������
�����������;�*��/��/�������� )������/�/	����������������	���������
�	�����8��1������������

��	�����8;�8���������/��/���8��1����/���<��������
��������G@	�����������������
����8��1��
��,�����4�����G"��������������������

�����H���/�������������,���
��������������
�
���4����������������8�����	��������������/�������������/��/������������	���;��������
����������

	/�����;����������������G6�������;�����
��������������������
����4;����������/��/������G��������������

	/������4��

������	��������������
�����������&	������������������������
�������������/��
��������������/�/	�������8�������&	�����
������;�����

���������
������
�������������/��
����������/��/���8�������&	��������������������,���'�!�!L��������/�/	�������������0������,��(���

�

����	��
����������8����������6����@��
���;��������������
��+���
����
 

P
age 50



�

�-�

4��������� � ������%��� �����
�

���������8����
��/����������8��������
����#����������	����	��/����������������������/����1��������������	��������8��������������	��������
�����������,�����������	������	���?�
���%	�	����	������
������'888���
���	�	����
��(�8��
������������������������������
�����������������
����������������	/���������8�������/��,������������	���������������
��/��������
���������
�	������A������������������������
�������
	������

����4��/��������
��������������������������	������
����������8���������/��������������	�����
�

��%����� ����
������������/����
�����/����������������/��������
�������������������������������������
�������/���;�

����������������	�����������������������������������������	���������������/���L����.�����
��

�	��������������������;������������'5�	�������(�����	�<�����������'5	���#(;������������
������L��������

����������������������������
����
����������,���������������������
�������������,�������
�������������
������//��/��������������
����������4��/��������
����������B	�����������
��/��������
����������	����������
"������������������
����������
������;������	��������������/����������/��,���������������	����������

��/�����������������������
�

�
�
�

�
�

3 ���� ����
��������
������	������������/�������8�������	���4��/��������
��������,����������������	��
�	�������������������������������,��������������������
���	����������8������//��/����������

�,���������
�

District Report Card – Eastbourne 

  Sub Region Region National 

Economy       

�
�����
��
��� D D D 

����	
��,��� D E D 

�
�����
�
����� C D D 

���	����������	
�	�� E E D 

�	�������K������/���� C D C 

51�����K�&	�����
������ C C C 

?���	�����1�� D E C 

P
age 51



�

���

�������'�2�����<�
�

������ D�

• ������	����8����������������������
���������	������������������������������������������8����������5�	���.�8���A�����������1�
• +	�������������������

����������8���������8�����#/��������
��
����������������������������8�����������������/���������,�
���

������
������������;�8���������&	������/	���
��/�
�������������
������
	��	���������
�����
���/��������������������	���

• ������	��������������8������,����8��������������1����������//���	�������������/���1��������8�������
��,�������/�������������8�

�	����������
• ������	����8������,������#
����������8�������������
	��	�����
��,������
����������//���	�������������������;�/����
�/����������

��������#/�����
�����������������������	������

• ��8����/�������������,����������
��,������8������
�	������//���	�����������/���������/�������,���������������
	��	�����
������
�������8������������	������������1�������������������

• �����	����������1�8������������������
�����������
���������#
�����
���

	/��������	���������8���������������������1����

• ��������	���8������,��
�/����������������������	��������5�	���"�����������������
��������,�������������������	
�	����	
�����
�����/��������
���	�������
��������

�������'����&���=�����%�����������&'�
�

�������'����&���7�����
�

6�����D���	�
��������������@��/���

�
+���
��D����
���6
A	���;�5������@���������	���������?���	����

�

�

�

P
age 52



�

���

�
Eastbourne’s Economic Profile  
�

�

������/����
����������������������	���4���
�������������
�����	��������8�������8�����������,������/������������������	���������
�����

�������������������
���������	����������������/���������������������������
������������
�	���������/��,���������/���	
��,���;�
�
�����
�
������������������	�����1����������51���������&	�����
�����������������������,�����������������������������	/����
����
���������
/��������
������
����������������
��
	�������
��,�������8���������������
������������,���/�������������������	�
������	����	���������	�

������������	���
�����������������	���������	���	���������������	�������������������
�

�����������%����� ���=�� ��#������

�� *����$������������������ *������ ��� 
 ���� ��

�����&'� �
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

�
�����
��
���� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

����	
��,���� �� �� �� �� 3� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� 3� ��

�
�����
�
������ �� �� �� �� �� �� 3� �� �� �� �� 3� �� �� ��

���	����������	
�	��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

�	����������������/����� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

%�����/�
��
������ �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

51�����K�&	�����
������� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� 3� �� 3� ��

?���	�����1��� �� �� �� 3� 3� �� �� �� �� 3� �� �� 3� 3� ��

P
age 53



�

���

Number of visitors  

0.00

1,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

4,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

6,000,000.00

2009 2010 2011 2012

Years

V
is

it
o
rs

Number of visitors  

Visitor spend

£0.00

£50,000,000.00

£100,000,000.00

£150,000,000.00

£200,000,000.00

£250,000,000.00

£300,000,000.00

2009 2010 2011 2012

Years

V
is

it
o
r 
s
p
e
n
d

Total tourist spend 

Total day visitor spend

Total accommodation

spend

Average (median) earnings, workplace-based, 2006-2013

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

Great Britain

South East

East Sussex

Eastbourne

A
m

o
u
n
t

Geographical area

Part-time

Full-time

All employees

Tourism and information about  Eastbourne’s economy  
�
�,���������8����
��,������ �
������!���;�8��
����������������
�����
���/�
�����

��	��������������	�����%�����������/����8������������������������	���������������

���8��	����8������,��������8����,����
�����������������������	����;�����,�����������

�

������������/�������������	��������������8��	�������������1�����	������������
���	����D�

�
�

�

�

�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�

�

�

�����'������(��,������������8��1���������������/��/���8��1�������

������	��������E!)0�'�����	�������(�����E���'����/��������(�8��1����������

��/��������E )�����E�0����������5�	��<���������������������

�/����

�������������,���������	���8���������������������������;�������������

,��	������������1��������������	��
�������#������,��	���'�����������
�	���������,������������,������8��������(�

�

�

P
age 54



�

��

Employment rate

0 20 40 60 80 100

Great Britain

South East

East Sussex

Eastbourne

Hastings

Lewes

Rother

Wealden

D
is

tr
ic

t

% employed

Apr 2012-Mar 2013

Apr 2011-Mar 2012

Apr 2010-Mar 2011

Retail floorspace 2012

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

Eastbourne

Hastings

Lewes

Rother

Wealden

D
is

tr
ic

t

Floorspace (sq.m)

Retail

��/�����������1��8�����<���,�����
������������8���������������,�����;�������
������;�8����

������	�������1������������������!�L����������
���'����������(������������)�L������/�����������

��������
����;�
��/�����8�������)!L�����������;����))L��������5�	��<����������-�*�L����5	���#��
'��/�1D��
�����'81/�(�������������������	������	����������"�����#��������������������$��	����	��

����������	���������������������	���%�������
�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

���������	����'N	������(;�)��!L�����������������8��1��������

/�/	�������8���������/�������;�
��/�����8����)��-L����5	���#�����
)���L�������������

��

�
�

�

�

�
�

�

�
�

�
������	�����
��������������������5	���#�������������������������/�
���
����������
�	����������/����������������������
������������8����
��
������

������@�8�,��;����������������������
�����������������8��������
������/�
�;�/����
	������8������������8��
��������

�

�

P
age 55



�

�!�

����%�����������&'<�>�'������������?��
�

������&�5 �/����)� ���3� �����!���%&�����
• A�8���	����������
�����
�.�,���/��������������

• A�8���������,���/������������1������
��/�����

• A�8�8��1���������,���

• 2��8��������������������������5����,���������������������������������1������,���

�&%��'&��������7���������
• ���
������8�/���������//��
������

• �������8������������������

• ���������,���/�������
�������������,���/��������������������
• 5/�
���������������/���������������,�������������/��,���������������	��=����

• =�,��8������#�����������������

3��������*�%%����*���&��

• I��������
�����������/���������
������,�
�����
�	�����/��
	�������

• 6�#�������	�������=����=��������,����E*��1���
1�����������	���������

• =�,�����������	����?�������5
�����

�&%��'&������*�!����)��- �#����
• ���
����/���������//��
����������5�,�������@����	��?�������5���������5	���#�

• �������������/��,�����������������	������������

• .���,�������@����	������,������6����

P
age 56



�

� �

�

����%�����������&'�<�������& ��������� ��������?���

�
���C�!� ���!C� �

�����K�5�����A�����
>��	�� �������

.�O��!���8��
������,�
�����	��������/�
��� -�*-L� P��L�

.�O�� �N5�������������	���� �;!� P�; ���

.�O��*�A	���������	����������
1����8�����	

����� �-� ���

�?O�������������/�������� ��;�0 � �;����

�?O�� �6��1������
��/�����,��	������������� E��**� E��**�

�?O��*���������
������������� ��;�!�� �;����

�?O�0��+�������

���������������������������  0;*!� Q 0;*!�

�?O�!�������%����,���<���
1���������� !-)� !���

�?O�!��A	��������,��������'����,�����������������������/�(��  ;���;�������  ;���;�������

�?O�!����������	������/����� E� �;�-);������� E� �;�-);�������

�?O�!�����������,��������/����� E��;0!;������� E��;0!;�������

�?O�!!��������

������������/����� E�!*;! !;������� E�!*;! !;�������

�

��
�

P
age 57



�

�0�

�
�������'�2�����<�

�

������ D�
• ������	����8������,���������&	�������	�����������	������,���������8��
�����������������
	��	�������������������	������������������

����	��;��	�/�������������IJ���8������������������F��

• "��8������,���������������������������������
	������������	��������
�����������	����8��
������

• +	��/	���
��/�
��8�������������
��,�;������&	�����;�8����/�����,�������
���������������������������
• +	���/����/�
��8������
���������&	�����������&	�����;��������������
���	��������
�������������������B�������/	���
��/�
��������

�����������
	���8���

• "��8���������,������8�������
����������8�
��������8��8������8���������������
���������,�����,������������������������������,��;�
8��1����8������������	�������,�������������������/�����������	����

• ����&	�����������������
�8�����8������,���������
��������
�������	//�����������8�����������������������������
�
����;�����
���	
����8�����

• ������	����8������,������������������/�����/��������
�	�������/��,���/	���
������/��������
�
�������
��������

• "��8����
�����	�������,���/������������������
����������1�������	��&	�������	�������������	��������	�
����������
���	���������
��	�����;������8�����������	������,���/����������
����	��
	��	��������������������������
�������������,����������

�

�������'����&����=�(� ���'���!����&�����
�

�������'����&���7�����
�

6�����D���	�
������5��,��"������

�
+���
��D�@������������;�5������@���������������	
�	���

�

�

�
�

�

�

P
age 58



�

�)�

Eastbourne’s Environmental Profile 
�

�����������%����� ���=�� ��#������

�� *����$� *������ ��� 
 ���� ��

��!����&���� �
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

@�	������������������� �� �� �� 3� 3� 3� 3� 3� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

�����
��,���� 3� 3� 3� 3� 3� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

5��,�
��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� 3� 3� 3� 3� 3�

���������� �� �� �� �� 3� �� �� �� �� �� 3� 3� 3� 3� ��

A��	������,��������� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

�

������	���4����,�������������/����
�������8���������/��������������	������,�����������������������
����
��,�����	�����������
����������

�

������������������/�������8���������	�������������������������//������������	���������������������������,���������������
��/��������
�,��������	���/��
������������������1��������

�	�������������,������8��,��������	���������
�����	����������/�����������������,���������

/��/����������������������������

P
age 59



�

�*�

�

�

������	����������1��������	����� !�������
�����������
�,���������	������,����������
����'���(;�/	����������������

��/�!�L����������
���������������
�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

�

�
�

�

�
�

�

����/��/��������������������8������,���������8��1�8������������	�������/	���
������/����8������!�L��������;������
��������������! L����

���������
��/�������������	��<��������	���8������)L��'�5�%(���
�

������	����������8����/�����������������������������
������������������������/��1�������/����/�
������8����������
�����8����������

�����������������������������
��������������,��������������
������������
�����������������,����
�������	���������������
��5	�,���'���*(�����
/��,��	�������>��	��5������
������	�,�����

�
"��������������
������	��������//��
�����������	����
�����,�������������	����	����	�����/��,�����������,������	
������������
���@����
6����������

�
�

�

P
age 60



�

�-�

(� ���'���!����&���<�>�'������������?��
�

5 � )��)�. �������%����#�'�
• ��/��,��=�
�
�����������

�&%��!��)�������� ���������������*������ �����#������� ��
• ���,�������
��/������������	
����,�����������
�����

• =���,���������/	���
�
��,�����
���

�����&�������!������
• ������	������	�����#�����������������/����������	���	�����������

��7 ���� �	�7�� �#�����7��

• ������	�������/���������,���������5���������
����������
• ��/��������
������������	
������
������	������������	�
��4���8���	��������

�� ��%����=��'����)����!������
• ��/���������
���5��������3���,����/��/�����
�
�����	���������8����
���	��������

• ���/��������8���	����������#��/��������@������5�8���
�
�����	���

� ��#������� �/�
• %������������8��������	/��������1������������	/������/��������
�����/���������������1�

• �������	��������������8��1�������8����������������������	����
�������������� �/��

• %��������������;��//�������/��������/���������������	����@��/�������1�51�������1�

• �����,�������=�/�������@��/�������1�?�1��

• @��/�������1�6���������������

• +�����8��=�
��������2��	���6���������������

• �	��������������
������1�.�,���/����������

�

P
age 61



�

��

�
��

(� ���'���!����&����<�������& ��������� ��������?��

�
���C�!� ���!C� �

�����K�5�����A�����
>��	�� �������

.�O�����5������
�����8�����������
�����������<����	���
����
������ -!L� QR-!L�

.�O�����5������
�����8�����������
�����������<���������8��/����� *�L� QR*�L�

.�O���
�5������
�����8������
�
������ *0L� QR*0L�

.�O��0������������%���/�����<��	��������� �!�*�)�������� �! ���������

.�O��)������������%���/�����<�>���
����� !��������  ��������

.�O��-���
�����������������/�����	������ ���� *�

.�O�-�����
������������	�������8����������������	��;���
�
���������
��/�������� ��*0L� ���L�

.�O�-!�6������8�����
����
������
'A�8������������������������������������	�����������(�

��C��
.����+����
'����������������
�����	�	��������(�

�

��

�
�
�

P
age 62



�

��

�

�������'�2�����<�
�

������ D�

• ������	����8������,����������������8������,�������
������������5�	�����������;���������	��;��	��
���	�������8���������

�����
• %��������������	���/��/���8��������	//������������,���

���������8��������������
��,������������
��������������/������

���
���������	���/���������

• +	��
���	�������8������,����������	�
�����������������
���,���������,�������,��	���������������,��,���������
����������	���������	�������

• ������	��������1������������	����8����/��,������8�������������&	��������������
�	������������������	���������������

��������
• +	��
���	�������8��������
��,�������,���/����/�������������D���	����;�
	��	��������/������
�	�������������,��,������

����������/����;�����	��;�
�����,�������������
��
��,�����H��,��������������,���H����	�������������/����
�/����������

�//���	����������������������B�������8����/�����
	��	����/��,�����������������	����

�

�������'����&��;�=�����!��)���&&��������
�
�������'����&���7�����

�

5�&#��<������������5 �) ����3 ��������
�

�������<�����%��F/����
1;�5������@�����������	�����

�
�

�

�

�
�

�

P
age 63



�

��

Affordability: score GB=100 (2012)

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Hastings
Crawley

Worthing
Eastbourne
Mid Sussex

Rother
Lewes

Wealden
Horsham
Brighton

Adur
Arun

Chichester

D
is

tr
ic

t

Score

Eastbourne’s Community Profile 
�
�����������%����� ���=�� ��#������

�� *����$� *������ ��� 
 ���� ��

*�����'� ��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

J��8������8��1���� 3� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� 3� �� �� �� ��

����/������ �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

.�/��,������ �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

���&	������ �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

@������ �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� 3� �� �� ��

�
�

��������	�������/����
�������8������
�������������	��������1��8������8��1�����������/�����������	�������������

������	���4��/���/������������/��,�������
������������/���������������
������������,������,����������
�������������	�����������

����
��������������,���������/��,�������������/�
1�������������8���������������
��������
�����
�/������������������	���������
�

5�������/���	���
������������
�����������������

�
"��������	��������������������
�������

) �*;�������	�����������������!��������
�����������������
�����5	���#��
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

�

P
age 64



�

�

Cultural Amenities: per 000 sq km (2012)

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 500

Eastbourne

Sussex

South East

England

A
re

a

Cultural amenities per 000 sq km

���&�<�������	�������
��/�����8�������	��������������/��������	��������������
���8��������$6����5�������2��	/$�'652(����

���������,�������;����������������/��
;��������/��
�������
��<�
�����
�/������������������M	������������������������

������	����
	��������'6��
�����(������,����������
������8�����,������
����������/������	�����/�/	�����������.�
������

�����������	��������������8�����������
��	�����������;������	���
&	�����,��
����;�,���
�������������������
������	�������/���
���	�����/�/	��������������652��5���������	��������	�����	�
��4��&	��������/��������
����/�����

888�������	������,�	1C/��������
������/����������/��������
������
�

�����	��������
	��	��������������

/��������&�1�����������	�������
!)0�����������/��
���������	�������

������/���L����������
��������������

����
��/�����8����8��������
�����������������������
�������

�

�

�
�

�

�
�

�

�
�

�

.��� ��������&D��,���������#����������	��������
������������������������������8����
�������������
������������
�������

��
�	������������������	�
�����#��������;�����������@�	������������;�����������.��
����������5�
����%	���������������/��������
����5	//��������8��
�;��������������.����������?�,��������8��
�;���������������������������������������	
��������I��,������

���������

�
���������	���;�8��1��8���������������	��������8��1������������������8�������������	
��������������
�����%���������
�;�8��

1��8��,���*�����
������	����������������������	����8�����������
������������/����������	���������	
������"��8�������8��1����
����	//������	����������B	������������
��������5���"�������=������/������������"���������

�

P
age 65



�

!�

����!��)���&&�������<�>�'������������?��
�

��!���%�0�����*��!����� �������!������
• .���,�����8�7�	���5����������������/��������������� �

• .���,���7�	���%�������!�������	���/��/���������8
�����������1����������
���,�������
• .���,���7�	���A��8��1����������������,�
�������
��,����/��,������

• ��/�������
	������7�	���5��������

�&%��!��)�
��)�#������������!��'�
• .���,�����/��,���������������������8���������

• .�,���/�5����8��������1�/��B�
��

• .���,�����������������	���������>��	��������������������

3����9������-�����)�����������
• @�	�����%	�	����3���������8�������������,�����	���������������������������������������/������� �

• "��1�8����������	����@������������������/������������	�������/�����
�����
������������/��
	�������

• .���,���A�8�@�����/��������;���/���@�����/�������������.��,����.�,��������%��8����

o ��,��������	���

o ����������

o �������C?���������
*�%%�������2����� #���-����������

• .���,���"�������=�������
����������

• .�,���/�
���	���������	�
���������
1������
�����
��������/�

• ��
1�����	�������/����
• @�	�������������������	�
�����#������������������

������ �����!������
• ������������8���������������/����

• �����������8���������	���

• "��1�8������������@�������������
	����	�����������,���/�����=���	����������

�������;���,�����	��	��

���������!���%&����
• =��	������
�	�������@��/�������1�����+�����8��=�
�8������8���������������/��
�������	�
����

����!��� ��#������

• ���/�����������/�����������������/������������������
��,��������	�������������

��!��������� �/�
• ���/���������
��
�/�����������������������8�����
��/��#�

P
age 66



�

 �

• I������1����#��������������������	������������
���/�������������3���8���S������������������������

P
age 67



�

0�

�

����!��)���&&��������<�������& ��������� ���������?��

�

�
����C�� ���C�!�

�����K�5�����A�����
>��	�� �������

�.O��!�?�
���/��
������������	�
�����#�
����
������������� -)�� L� -)�� L�

�.O��0�A�����������<�������
�������
����
����� -*�)0L� -*�)L�

�.O��*�����C��!�.�
����@���������������<����	
�������	�����������������������������������.�
����@������������ �� !L� �L�

�.O��!�A	����������
�����������������������/��,���������������,���� ! ����	�������� .���������

�.O��0�A	����������������������//��
�������� �-�� .���������

�.O��)�A	����������������������

�/���
���� ��� .���������

�.O� ����/���/��,�������8�������������	���������

	/��������������	�������
������������� �!�� ����

�.O� ��A	�������������
	���/�������/��/����������������C����	������
1������	����������.����
	������/�����2��	/��  �� ��

�.O� ��A	��������������8������������������F�����'��,�������1��������(���,���������������������/��,��&	��������������������	��������� �!)� ����

�.O�  �A	��������
��/���������/��������'.��������%�
��������2�����(�� ���� ��*�

�.O� 0�6�������,�������	�������������������������
��8�������/��������'.��������%�
��������2�����(�� **������ ����

�.O� )�%�8������������8����
���������

	/�����	��	��������������������/��,������
����� �-� .���������

�.O�0��A	����������	���/��/��������������/�����,���
��,������� �00� .���������

�.O�0��A	��������/��/������������������7�	���%��	��� � � .���������

�.O�  �A	�����������������������������,�����'�����(�� �*� �*�

�.O� 0�A	����������	����������,����������/�������

������������ ��� � �

�.O�*���������1������/��
����@�	������������C��	�
�����#�����������8�
����������
�������,������ -�!������ ��� ������

.�O� !�A��������������������/��,������ �0�� ��*�

��5�O����=��	
�����/����������� L����������C���� <���!L� <L�

��5�O��!�=��	
��>�������������������	���
����
�����L����������C���� <)L� <L�

��5�O�� �������������������������!�����8��������	������������������	/�'652(��������������������
������������C�!C������C�C�!��� �� PR!�

��5�O��0�=��	
�������	���
&	�����,��
�����'�������;�
���
����������	��������8������(�� �� <L�

�?O��!���8����<�,��������� ���;���� - ;����

�?O��)��=���	���,��������<�/������,���������  ; 00�  ;0���

�?O����N	�����'����PR�0(�/����
�/����������/����'�	����(� �! ; 0*� �!0;0���

�?O��0��������	����������������	������ �); !!� ��;�����

�

��
�
�

P
age 68



�

)�

�������'�2�����<�
�

������ �������	��������	�����	�
���8���D�
• ��,����,���/�������/	��������������5�	��������=�������������,�
���#
�����
����������,������

• �����
���������������������������������������
	����������,��������	�
������
	����;�����,�������������,�
�������

�����������������������������������
• ����
1��8���������������������������#
���������/������/��,�����������/��������������,���/������//���	�������

• ����������������	���������������������
������	���������
��,���������������,�������/	���
����,�
���

• �����,��	������,�
������,����/������������,�������������������������
���������/	���
;�/��,��������,��	��������
������

• ����������/������������
����	���������,����
�������	����������/��,�����������������	������������8��1������
���/�
�������������

�
�

�

�
�

�������'����&����=�*��� �� #���������& ����
�

�������'����&���7�����

6������ ��	�
�����������������������2����6����
1�

+���
��� N	�����+�������/�;�.�/	����������#�
	��,��

�

6������D���	�
�����������������������2����6����
1�

�
+���
��D�N	�����+�������/�;�.�/	����������#�
	��,��

�

�

�
�

�

�
�

�

P
age 69



�

*�

Eastbourne’s Performance Profile��
�

������	��������	�����	�
������������������
����	�����������8������6���	�������%����
����5�������������������������

��B	�
�����8������������/����������;�������������������,������������
���������,����@�8�,��;�������	�
�����
������������

��/�����
�����,��	��������������������������������1�����������8���������������	����������/��������
�;���,������������������

�	��
����������,�����������������
	�����������	�	���/����	�������/	���
����,�
���/���������

�
������	��������	�����	�
�����
��������������������
�����	�������/��,����������
��,��������������
���
������������,�
��������
�#��������	����������������	�
��;�������������-C������	�����,�����
����/�������������	�
��;�����
������������
������/��,������

�����/��,��	��������������
�������������������8���������������
�������������/����/��
���������
���������
�	��������
�����
8�������	�����������������,������������
����/��������
������
�����	����8������������������	���������������

�

����1������	���8����������������������
�/�������;�/��������
���������������/��,�����������	�	����	�����������������������
/��������������	������	���������/�
�������/��B�
����������,����������	�����G.=�>�4�����B���
��/������/��B�
�����1�����������

�	�	������	
�	�������
	��	������������	�
������������������� ��������	�������	
�������	�������	��	�
�����������	�

����
���������	��	������� �������
����
�
���(�������������	�
������
���������	���
�
�������
���)��
��#��
�

*��������	���	������%�������������������
�������	�������������
��	������
�������������
���	��	���������
��
����������������������������	�����������	����	
��	�
������	��
������	������
�������	����
�����������	���
��

���������
�	�����
�	������������������	��	�������������
��	�
�����������������
���������	������
�������
�����

	�����
�	���	��� �	$������������
����	������!�
�

P
age 70



�

-�

Future Model (needs refreshing) 
�

����/�������;������������������	�
��4��%	�	���6�����/���������8������,����������/������������B���
�������������8�������
��	�
�������,�����������,�
������������������������1������������������������������

�����������,�
��������������/���������������

������1���������	�����������������
������

�

����������)������&���1�����
�
����/��������8��������	�
������	�������%�����<�
����
���������
�	�
���8�������

�������������,���������D�
�

• ��8��	�������%�����
����
�������������8���������	��&	������<���8�,���

��	�
����
��	���
• ��������8��//�������	�������/������

• ����8�A������	������%���������������������	�������������/���	�&	�
1���

�����,�����	���������/��,�������������

�
��������������6������D�

�

• �������	���<���������8��������
• �//���	����������
��/�����������
��������������

• ���
1�����/�������������	����&	����������//��
��������
�

"�������������������������	T� �

�
• +���/��������
����
����������������������������
��������,�
���

• M	�
1���������������/������������;�������������������������
• 5����,��������������	�������/��������������/���������

• +������	/�����������	����&	����������//��
��������

• �����	
���������
�

%��������������������/������,�����
���/DCC888�������	������,�	1C
�	�
��C������<���,�
��C
	������<�����C�

P
age 71



�

!��

������& � )�&����@���������������)A�
���

��	�
�������������������	���������������,��������<��������,�
���������
1�����
���	�
�������@�8�8��	��;��������������,�������

�	��/��/���������������
�����������	��������������
���,��,��	�����������;�����,�����,�����������/��,������,�
�����������
�����
/��,��������������������	���	��������;���
�	�����������,��	�;�����
��/�����	��8�����������	�����������

�
���/����������8����������	��������	�����	�
��4����������
������������������	����5�	�
�D������	����������������
�
Indicator Period Value % change Direction of Travel Rank Average 

Value of operational assets, by 
asset type - Community assets 
(£000s) 

2011/12 £1,970 -2% Decrease Average £3,551 

Value of operational assets, by 
asset type - Infrastructure assets 
(£000s) 

2011/12 £26,862 -2% Decrease In the highest 10% £14,057 

Value of operational assets, by 
asset type - Other land and 
buildings: Other (£000s) 

2011/12 £64,103 -2% Decrease In the highest third £52,629 

Value of non operational assets, 
by asset type - investment 
properties (£000s) 

2011/12 £4,809 -2% Decrease In the highest third £10,283 

Non operational assets as a 
proportion of net spend: (i) 
Investment Properties 

2011/12 7.67% -1% Decrease Average 18.10% 

Spending on construction, 
conversion and renovation of 
existing assets as a percentage of 
total asset value 

2011/12 5.09% -16% Decrease In the highest 20% 3.36% 

Spend on assets - £000s spent on 
new construction and conversion 
and renovation of existing assets 

2011/12 £12,725 -17% Decrease In the highest 10% £6,401 

Spend on assets - £000s spent on 
acquisition of land and buildings 

2011/12 £111 270% Increase In the highest third £167 

Income from the sale of assets 
(£000s) 

2011/12 £1,624 231% Increase In the highest 20% £1,088 

�
�

P
age 72



�

!��

*��� �� #���������& ���<�>�'������������?��
�

������5 � )�&����
• =����	
�	������,�
�����
�����������/������?�������������

• 6��1������������"������8�������������������	�����

*��� �� #���*��!��������!��'�*�� ��)'�@**�*A�
• ��/���������������%	�	���6�������������

�#/������������������/���������/������
���,���	����������
���
����

��

P
age 73



�

!��

�

*��� �� #���������& ���<�������& ��������� ���������?��

�

�
����C�� ���C�!�

�����K�5�����A�����
>��	�� �������

�5O���5�
1����������
��<��,����������������/�����/�������  ��)������  �*������

�5O�������������!���������8�����8����������
����� �C�� .���������

�5O��������/�����
����������������������  ��L� )L�

�5O���������������������������/��������
����
�� �C��
.����+����
'����������������
�����	�	��������(�

�

��
�

P
age 74



�

!�

�

5��������)� ���5 � )�&�����
�

.� ��� %%������$�B�
�

�������������������������������/�����������������	��1���/��B�
�������/��������������;�8��8����/���	
�����	������/�����
������������������	/<��<������������������,���������������8�������/���������&	�����������������������5
�	���������������

���������/	���
�����	����	��8����������888�������	������,�	1C/��������
������������/������������������
���	��
����

�	

�����������������������������/��������������
�����������	���8��
������������������,��
�����
�

+�������	�
�����������������D�

�

5	��������������	�����5��������
������=��	
���������������/������

���*����
��5	�,�����/����

�
%����������������������������������
���������������/�������������	��������	�����	�
��4��/��������
�;�/������
����
������

5�������
����������
��������������!� !�*;���������������
��,���/����U������	������,�	1����,�����

888�������	������,�	1��

P
age 75



�

!!�

4���� �'�
�

������������������������������8���������/�������	����8�������������
	������������,�������������������������
���	�����

��/���������,���8������/���	�����
��
1����������������������������/�����������/��������/	���
�������"�4����1������������	��
����1����������������������/	�������	����������8��
��8����,����
��/��������������������,�����������������
	������

�

�)����.��/��)� +����������,����������8��1/��
���/�����������	�
�����������
�	��������<���1���;������
8��1���������������8��1�����������,������,�
������������
��������

���������������� ����
����
��������/��/��������8�������������	�
����

��������&&������� �������/�������8��
����;����,�����
�����;�����
���
����������
��,�����������
���/	���
�

���,�
���888��	���<
������������,�	1��

3��������-� ��������/� ��������������
��������	������	��������������,�
����������	����������������

3�������������������

��)�������)�

?��1�����������������
�����8�����������,������,�
����

��&%�������!����� �
������&����

�������������������8�8����������
���������������������������������������������
�������������
�	�������������������������
	��������������5	���#��������

+�������������������������8��
����
	�����������?�
����	���������

� ��#�����?- ���� &���� �)��� ��������/��
����������
��/�������������	��������@��������8��
����������������������

�������
	�������
�����
���������������

��� �����-�����)��%������

>��/�� ������)� &&��

���,������/��������������	������/��������,�
�;�8��1�������/���������/�8�����	//�������

���,�
���<��	
�����/��,�����������/�����������������������,�
��<������
1������������


�	���������	�����������

1 &�����������!����������C���� ���,���������������$������1$����������8���������������,��;��������,���	//�����������������
��1��/�����,��
��������

4�����1� )��7 ���� ������������8�����������
��������������8���������������������/�
����������
�	��������
�����������������������������/��1�����������������"����;�������
��������8�����������;�

�����&	������������888�����������8�������	1��

4����*%���� �������������������������8�����������
�	�������
��
��������/���/��
��/������������
���������������/	���
�����A������	������������������,��������������������,�����8��

,�����������6����������������������������8��������������������������
����
�����
����

�	�������;�1��8����
��������9�8������:����9/������8���:��+��������������	������������

8��
���������������<�����8�������;�������������
����	����������8������/��������
�������
������������������8������/DCC888�������	������,�	1C�����/���C
�������C����<

�/���CT��
���R����

P
age 76



�

! �

-�&��� �����&&���������)���'�
@-��A�

���������������	��������������������������
��888���������
���	�������
��	1��

�(� �� �� � ���� ������������
������������	//������������/���
���

>��7���)��.��/���� ��1��8������8��1�������������8���8��1����������,��������������1�������,���/�������

	�����1��8�������%����#��/�����������8���8��1�������������������1�����/�������;�

�
&	�����;�����
����;������F���;�������F���;��������;�/����������;��������	����;�
���1�����;���������8����
������	�������������������������������
�����
�����

����������������������8���8��1����	���������1��8���������/���	
����

	�!�����(� ����� ������ •  �2�5������2�������V�<���

• �����%�����.�/��������+�=�A���������������
����?�,������
• ?�,�����A>M��

• �������������2A>M��

• =5��.�/������

	�!���;�(� ����� ������ • ������������,��
�����,���/�������

• !����������5���,�����

• A>M�?�,��������2A>M���,��
����

• �����K�2	�������,��
�� 

	�!�����(� ����� ������ • ?�,���!��������������.�/������

• ?�,���!���������������������
�����

• ?�,���!���������������8�����
• �����K�2	�����?�
����������/��

• �������
�������@��������	
������

	�� ��1������� ��8�����������������������������������/	���
����,����������������
�����/��,����


��/�������/��������
���������������������������������������


��)�#������������!��'� �������������������
����������
1�����
���/���������������
������/�������������,�
��

/��,�����������/��,������&	������������������/��/���������������	�������


�7��6� ���'�1� &�7��/� ��8������������������8�8��������	�����������	������������;�
���	��
����������

����,�������&	����������	������������������������������
���������

(� ������� ��8������
��/����������	�������4��/��������
���������������������������/�&	�������

/��������
�������������8���������������/�� L�����	���������;�����M	�������8�	������
������#��� L������������

*�%������%������ �@*��A� ��������/��
�������������������������
����
���������/	���
����������������������������
��

3����������	���4��
���;���������������������
������8������5+�����,���������������

��	������&	���/�/	���������F�������������������
��/���������

P
age 77



�

!0�

*�%%��&��� �'��� ����)�
����&����

����
�����,���/�������
	��������������
�,�����������������	��;��������
��������<
�/�
���
;�����/��,������	����������������/���
��������/��/�����������$/�����$���,���/�����

/������
	������

*��� �� #���������3 ��� 2������������
����������	���������8����/��/��������������������	�����,���������������
������,�����������<������

.��/��������� "��1��������������������������������������	���/�������������#�����������������
	���/������������
�	����������8��������
�����
��������
��,�;���������������8����������

8��1���������������8��1H��	����������	
�����������������H����������������
��,����
���1����8��1�3�.���������������N������������	���

�

P
age 78



���������� ��	�
���

����� �������������

��	����� ����������������� ��!�

��������"� ��#����$��%��&���'���()�#��

*��%+!,� ����

� �(�!�� �������	
���
�	���������	���������������������������
����	������������������������������������������������

	������������������������������������������	�������
�

�����������	�������	�����	�������������������	��	�����
�������������������������	��������
�

�����������	���������
������������	��������������
���������������	�������������������������������������

������������	��	����������������������	�
�������� 
�

��#�����  ����!��������"������	������������������	"��

#�$	����!���"�������	���
������%�&'#()(*�+#,),'��

�-
���%������	��������.������	�����������

����))�#%����#!� #� ���������������	������������������������

	�������������������	��	���������������������
���������	������������	����������������

�������/��)'#+0#,����������	��	�

����	�������
�	�����	���
�	���
���������������%�

�

�� 1����	�����������������	����������	����
� ���������	���������	����

�� 2�	����3�����������#�
�

)� ��������������	�������	�������"�������4�������
��	��
�������������	���	�������������	�
��

������������ �����$���	�
�������������

�������������
�����"��������������	����
������	����������������	�
�����������������

3��������	�����5����	
��/��$	������������
��	��	�����������������������������������
�����������������	�������������������������	��

���������	�����	/�����������	��	�

��������
)'#+0#,��

�
(� ������������	���

����5���������������

�����	��������������	���������������������	��

���������������������������	������	�
�����
���	���	�������������	���

������������ �����

$���	�
�����������
���
��������������		����

Agenda Item 10

Page 79



������������������������������������"����	��
���	��	����"����������	�������������������

���	�����������	������������������	����
�	�
���������������������������	������

�
+� ��������������	�������2�	��������	�!�����

��������(�����������	��	���������������

�������������������������������������	�������
������������������	�����������	�����	/����������

�	��	�

��������)'#+0#,��
�

,� ����������������������

�����	����������	����

���������������������������������	�����
2��������	�������������������������	�������

������������������	�2�������6������
�������
�����������������������������7�	�������2����	�
�����	�����������4������	�������

 

� �
�-�� �#���% ����#�

�

#�#� 8��5�	��	��)'#)"�����������	�������������������	��������	�

������	����������	���������4����������������	�����������������������
9�	����-����������	���������������������	�����������������������
�	���������������������
��������������������	������������	��������

��������������������������	�����������������9�	������������������������
	�����������������	����������������������������	�������������������&����

2�	����������!����*��������������	������	����������!�����&������:����
����	���7�	���*����

�
#�)� ���������	������	�������������	������������	����������������������

�	���������
����
���"��������"�	��	����������������	�������������������

	�������	���	��	�����������	��	��������	������������������	�����������������
�����������	������������������������������������	���������
�	����

��������	����������	��	�����������	����������	��������
�

#�(� ������	��������������������������������	��	����	�����%�

�
• 1����	�����������������	����������	����

• ���������	���������	����
• ����	����&�����������3��������	�����5����	
��/��$	���*�
•  ��������������	�����2�	��	���������	���������	��

• 3����������6	����
• ���������	�����2��������

�
#�+� ;��������	����������������������	����������	��	������	���
���	���������

������	
�������
�4�	���	���������������������������%-�
�

• 1����	�����������������	����������	����
• ���������	���������	����

• ����	���� &������ ���� �	�
������ ������� ���� 3���� ����	� ����
5����	
��/��$	���*�

Page 80



• ���������	�����2���������
�

8�������������	���	������������	����������	�������������2�	����3���
��������#�	�����&!������������������!��������!���*���������2�	����3���

��������(�	�����& ���	�����6	������� �������	��������"���������������
��������������������*��������	�������������	
�����	���������������
��������������

�
����������	��������	������������������������	��	������9������"�����������

��������
�������	�����
�
5������������	������	�������������������������	�����������������"���	�

���
�������������	���7�	���������������������	�����������	�����	/��
���������	��	�

���

�
�-�� ������!��&������� ��!�

)�#� �#�'��!���������.#���#�����#%����&��#��

�

�����	��������
���������������	����	�����������������������������������

������������%�
�

����������<�1����	�����������������	��

�
��	������!���"�������!���"�����	����!���"�;���;	���	��!����

&��	������*"�$	����!����&���������*"�1���	����!���"������������
������� ����	�/��!�����

�

�����������������	��������	�������	
�����!���01���	����!����
	�������������������������������������	�����������������1���	����

!���0�����������4���������
�

��������9�<�1����	������������	����

�
��	������!���"�3��
��������=��	������:���������	���7�	�����

�
8���	��	��������������������	�����������	����	����"������	�������������	�

������	����������������������	�������������������	����������:����
����	���7�	����������������������������>�	���	���������������������
���������������������������>�	���	���������

�
)�)� ��.#���#����������&��#��

�

�����	��������������	�
��������������	�������������	����������
��	
�����!���"���	�������!��������6�������	��7������

�
����������������������	��������	�����������
�	����	��������������

	���������������������������	�����������	����	����������������������
>�	���	������������
�������
�	������	�������������������������
	�
������

�

Page 81



)�(� ���&��#��/�*�!����.������"�!���)�#0!�1���#�

�

�����	�����������������������������	�
�������	�
�����3��������	����
5����	
��/��$	����������������������������	������	�%�

�

• ��������������������������������������������������������

�	�
������������������	�����������������������	�����&��������	��

�������������������������������	����	���	������	���������*��

• �������3��������	"��������������������	�������������	������
������

�	�
������������������	�?�
��	���������

• �������7��	"��������������������	������������	�������������	�����

���������������������	�����������	�������������������

�

9���	������������	����������������������	�
�����������	�����������������
�������������	�����������������	���������������������	�
�����������
�����������������������
�������5�	���	���������	����������������
����	�

�	���	�����������������������+���������	���	���
�

������
���������	�������	������
�������������������������	���

������
�����������������������	������	���������	��	�����"����������������

�����	���������	��������	���)'#,������������	����������������� �����
������������	�����	��5�������& ��5*�����	���	�������	���������������
	���������������������������	�����������	�����	/�����������	��	�

��

������)'#+0#,"��������������������	����������������������
�

)�+� ��.#���#�������$�!(�����

�

����	������	�
��������������	����������������

�	�����!���"�1���	�

������"�9����	������!���"����������7����"�$�		�����!���"�������9�	��
 ��������:�����6	����������������������������	������	�%�

�

• ��
��������-	�����������	����������0����������

• �������	��������������	�����	���	���������������������	�������������

������:�����6	�����7�	����������	���	����������	�7	�������!����

�����������������������������:�����6	�����

�

8���������������������	������������������7��������������������	������
����	�����������1���	������������$�		�����!�������������	��������
�

)�,� $��!���*���������#���

�

��������������������������	��������������	�
�������	���!���������������
���!��������!����&���	�����
�������������)�����������	���
������
���������������������������������������
�����	�����������0���������

�����������������������	������	�%�
�

• �����������������	�������������	�������������������!�������

���������

• !������������	
�����������	�����������������������������
�	�

Page 82



���4�������������������	���������	������������������	��	������	�

����������

• ����������������������������������������
�	���������������������

	�������������������	�����	�������	�����������	������������������

������	�������

• ���������������	����������������������	���������������	��!����

������������������4��������������������	�������������������

������

• ��������	��������������������������������4����������������	��!����

��������������7���������������������������������	���������	����

����	�����

• !������������	
�����������	��������������
�	����4���������

����������	������

• ��������������	�������������������	��������	����3�������!�����

�
8�����	������������������������	����������������	���������������������	�
����!��������������������������������-�	�������������������	���

���������������������	�������������������������	����������	����������
�	��������
�	���
����������	
�����!������

�
)�?� $��!���*���������#�2�

�

��������������������������	��������������	�
� ���	�����6	�������
 �������	��������������������	�������-	�������������	������	����������	�

 ���	�����6	��������9�	���!����������������������������	������	�����
�������%�

�
• ������������	�����������	�������������������	��������	����

 ���	�����6	�����������������������������������������	��	����

2�

�����6	�����

• ������������������4����������������������������� �������

	�������������������������������������

������������	�����

��������������

• ���������������������������������	�
��������	���������������

���������������������������������������&
������������������	��*�

���	������������	�������������������������

• ���������	����������������������	������������������������������

��������������������	���������
�����	�
�����������

• ������� �������	��������������������	�����������������
��������

�������������������������������	
�	����
�������������������������

���������	������������������

�

2-�� ��#! ������# 

(�#� 8��@����	��)'#+���������������������������������	�������������	���������

���������������������������������������2�������5	�����#'���@����	������
����	����##���@����	��)'#+���������	����������	��
���������������	�
���������������������������������/������9�	������������/����������

Page 83



�������)�����(#�@����	��)'#+�����������������=����������	������
����������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������=����������	������������	������������������	���������	��
���������������������#�����)�	�������������8����������"�����������������

����������	���������	���������������	��������������������������������
���������������������,��
�

(�)� �����������AB+�	�����������	��	�����������������������������������������
�������	��������������������������"�����

�	�����������

�����	��������

����	���������������
��	����������������������(������	���������
	���������	�
�������������������������	���	����������������������+%�
�

• 9�������
• ��
��������	�9����	��	�����	��<�������������

• ������	��/��2���������		������	����
�
;�����	���	�
������������������������������������������	���9�	�����

�����������������	����������������������������������	��������������������
������������������������	�������������	�������

�
(�(� ����	����������������

��������������������������(���������������


�4�	�������	����������������	�����������	����������������������������
����
��%�
�

• 1����	�����������������	����������	����-�A,C������	�����	�
��	�����������	���������	���������

• ���������	���������	����-�AAC������	�����	���	�����������	����
�����	����������

• ����	����-�A(C������	�����	���	�����������	���������	���������

• ���������	�����2��������<�AAC������	�����	���	�����������	����
�����	���������

• 2�	����3�����������#�-�A+C������	�����	���	�����������	��������
�	���������

• 2�	����3�����������(�-�ADC������	�����	���	�����������	��������

�	���������
�

(�+� �����	�����	�����	��������������������������	������������������
������������������������	�����2��������	��������������������������
�����
���������	�����	���	��������������:�����6	���"���������	���������	�����

������:�����6	����&��������-	�����	���-	���*���������	������������
1���	������������ �����!������8���������������������	���

�����������


�	���������������	���������������	�������������������������
����	�����������������	������	�������;�����	���������	�����������
����������	����������9����������������������������������������	�����

���	���
���
�����������
�

�-�� ������!��&��������)�#�%��	����.!��#%����������!!�����)�#%�
 

+�#� �����	�
���������������		�����������"��
��������	�������%�

EF��������

�

Page 84



&#*� G����	���������"���������	���������������"�	�����	��
�	�����������"�
���	������"�
���	����������	���������	�
������������

�	������������������������	�
�����"��	�	�����	������������	������
����������	�
��������
���	������"�
���	��������"��	����	��	���������	�


�������������	����������������&����	�������������*"�����������������	��
��������	�
���������	�����	�������	��������������	�����������������������
�	����������	�������������������	���	���������	����������	��
�������������

���������
�

&)*� 8�������������������������	������������������	�
��������	�������
���������������������"�����������������������	����������	�������	��	������
�����������������������������������������	�"��	������	����"�������������

�������������������������������������"����������������������	��������
�����	�
�������

�
&(*� ������������������������������%�
�

� � &�*� ����������		�����H��	��
� � &*� ����6������	�����

�
&+*� 8������������%�

�
I�����I�
�������������"����	������"��	�������������������	��	�
�	��
������"������������������������
���	��������	�
���	��������H�

�
I����6������	���I�
������������������������		��������		�������������	��

���	��������������	�
�����������������������������H�
�
I����������		����I�
��������������"�������	�
�������������	���������	�

���"���������������������������������������������#,'������	�
�"�����
�������������������������������'�B,�
��	���������������������

�����	�������	�����������	�������	�������		��������������	���"��������
��	���������	�����	�
���
�������������������	�����������������������
������������������	���H�

�
I
���	������I�
�������
�������������	���������������"�������������

����������		����"�������������������	��������������������������������
������������������������+#'������	�
�H�
�

I
���	���������I�
�������
�������������	���������������"�������������
����������		����"�����������	�����������	��������	����H�

�
I�	����	I�
����������������	��������
���	������������������������
��	������

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+�)� ��������������������������
����������������������������	��	��������

������������������������	
�����������	����������"����	�����	��	����"�
�������������������������������	�
������������������	����"������	����
������������������-������	������������	������"����	��-�������������

���������	������	�����"���������������������������	�����������������������
�������"������	��
���������	�
���
�������
���������"���
����	����������

�����	�
���������	����������	�
����������"���
�����	��������

Page 85



��	
������������������������	�����	��������	������������������
������
�������	�������������������
�����������
�����������������	���	�������

5�������������8�������������������
�

+�(� �����������"���������	�
�������������������	��
�������������������
���"���������������������������������������������"���	�����������������
�	����������������	�
��������������������	������	�=��	�������

�������
�����������	���������������	���	�������������	���

������������
 �����$���	�
����&� $*�����������=���������������

�
+�+� ����� $�����������	���������������������������	���������	�����
�������

����	�������"���������������������
��	����������
��������"�����������	�

������	������������
�	�����	��	������������	���������
���������	�����
����������������	��������������������	�����������������������������

������	�
�������������	����������������	���������	�������������
����
�����������������	�����
�����������������������������
����
��
����������������������������	�����	�������	��	�������	���������

��
��������8�������	������������
������"�����������������������������
����� $������	
������������������������������	������
���
������������

�������D�
��������������������������	���	����
�

+�,� 8���������"���

�	���������"����	�������
����-������	���	�����	������
�������������������������������������"��������������������
���
����
��
������������������

�
������	��������"����������� $������������������������	�����
�����������

�����������"�����������	���������
���
����������������������������
����	��������	��������������������������	�������
�

+�?� �����
���
�������������	����������������������������������������	
��"�
�	�
���
�������
�"����������������	�������������	��	��������������������

�	�
��������7	�������������	�������	����	�����
���
�����������������
����������������	�
������ $����	�����������	�����������������
��
������"������������������������	
"������������������������	�����������

������� $������
����	��������	��������������������������	���������
��������	�����������������������������	������8�����������"������ $��	����

�	�������������	�������
�

+�A� ���	������������
��������������
���������������������	
��	������������

���	������������ $�����������������	�
�5���������������������	�������
���������	�������������������������������

�
+�B� ����������������	����������
��������������������
���
��������

����������������������������������������������������� $���	������	
���������

�����
���
���"��������������������������������
���
���������������
����������	��������������������������������������
��������
����

	��	����������������������	���	����������"�����������������	���"��	��	����
����� $������	
���������
�

+�D� ����� $�����������������������������	��	������������
����������
�����
�������������������	�������

��������������	��	�������������������������


��������������������������������
���������������

�������������

Page 86



	��	����������������������	�������	�������	�����"��������������������������
����� $���	������	
��������������
���
���������� $�������������	�����

�4�����������������������/��	���������������
��8�����������"�����������
�����	
����������"������������	������	
�����������������������

��

����
��������"������������	
��������������	�
���������	����������
��������	
��������������	������������������������
������������������
��
�����������	����������������	������������

�
+�#'� ��������	���������������	���������������������
������	������������������	�

���������
���
��������������	�����������������	����"�����	��������
����������������������������������	���������������������������
�����������

�
3-�� "�#�#������)(�������#!�

�

,�#� ��������������
����������������������	������������������
���������	��
�����	���

�������������������	��	�����������������������	�)'#+0#,�

��������J#"'+'"'''����������2�	����3�������
������������������
�	�
���������	�����	��������������������������������	�����2�	��	�

�������
����������	�
�����������
���&���������������	����7	�
������
	����*�����������������	�
����������������	�������������������

������������������@����)'#)"��	�
�����$���	�
���/�� ����������������
�	�����	��5����& ��5*����������������������������������	���)'#,���
�

,�)� ���������	������������������	����������	�����&�����������	�
������
�����������3��������	�����5����	
��/��$	���*���������������������

��	�����������	�����	/�����������	��	�

��������)'#+0#,�������������
��4�������������	������������������������
����������
���
�����������
�������

�
,�(� �����=������������������	�������������	��������������������������������

��	�������������������������������������������
������������	�
������
�������������
����	�
�������������������	�������������
�

4-�� ��#�� !��#�

�

?�#� ����	��������������	���������������������������	�������������	�����������
���������
�4�	�����������������	��������������	�����������	������������
������������
���������������������������������8��������	���	��

	���

���������������1����	�����������������	����������	���"������
����	���������	��������2�	����3�����������#�	����������������	��	�����

�������������������������	������������	�����������������������/��)'#+0#,�
���������	��	�

����	� ������	�����	��8
�	���
������8����������
	���

�������������������	����!�����&�����������	�
�������������

3��������	�����5����	
��/��$	���*���������2�	����3�����������(�
�����������������	��	�����������������������������������������������

�����	������������	�����������	�����	�����������	��	�

��������
)'#+0#,"���4������������������������������������8����������������

�����
	��������������������������	�����2��������	����"�������	���

������

�������	���	��������������	��������������������	�������������������������
����	�����������������	�����	������

�

Page 87



?�)� ����������	���������������
�������������������������������	�����������
	��������	������������"��������������������	�������������
�	����������

�	����
�������������������	���������	��������������/���4�����������
���
������������	�������"�	������������������������
�	��������	�

=�������������������������8���������������������������	����������������
�
�

?�(� ���������������������	�������	���

����������������
�

9����	�����7���	�%�
�
�������!���	��������#+�@����)'#'�

�������!���	�������#,�6���
�	�)'#'�
�������!���	��������#(�@����)'##�

��2���������������7������	�������	���&����	����<�#DD+*�
���������������������������-�����������	������&)''D*�
�������!���	��������B�5�	��	��)'#)�

������	�������������	������&)'#)*�
��������������������������/��!���	����� �������������
�	���	��	�����	������

����	��
����#B���	���)'#+�
�

������������	�������������������������	���������	"��������	���	����������������
������	��������������

�
�

Page 88



APPENDIX 1 
CONSULTATION QUESTIONNAIRE 

�

�

�

EASTBOURNE CYCLING IMPROVEMENTS 
�

Your views about our proposals 

 
We would like to hear your views on our proposals to introduce a number of new 
routes for cyclists in Eastbourne. 
 
An online version of this survey is available on our website along with plans showing 
the proposals:  www.eastsussex.gov.uk/haveyoursay   
 
Please return your completed survey by 31 January 2014 to: 
East Sussex County Council, Eastbourne Cycling, Communities, Economy and 
Transport Department, FREEPOST (LW43), Lewes, BN7 1BR. 
 
If you would like a copy of this survey in a different format such as large print, Braille 
or in a different language, please contact us: 
 
Email: alan.cook@eastsussex.gov.uk, or telephone: 01273 482500. 
 
All responses received will be treated in the strictest confidence.  The Council will 
use the collective responses from this survey for research purposes only. 
�

Your Status 

We are asking these questions as we want to make sure that we have a 

representative view of the proposals from residents, businesses and stakeholder 

groups. 

Q1 Are you � An individual   � A business   �Other 

If you ticked ‘A business’ or ‘other’ please provide details 

�

�

Page 89



Q2 Are you a � Resident of Eastbourne   � Other   �
�

Q3 If you are a resident of another town or village or a commuter where did 
you travel from?��

�

�

 
 
 
Q4 Please provide your postcode as this is required for analysis purposes. 

It will not be used to identify you. 
�

 

 

  

 

Route 1 – University (Meads) to Seafront and Town Centre 

This would mainly be an on-road route with signing and carriageway markings along 

Denton Road, Carlisle Road, Meads Road, Saffrons Road, Old Orchard Road to the 

roundabout adjacent to the station. There would be a cycle lane marked in red 

around the Terminus Road roundabout to make drivers aware of cyclists. Cyclists 

could either use the roundabout to get to the railway station or travel west along 

Upperton Road onto The Avenue and Commercial Road where they would  link up 

with the proposed route to the District General Hospital. 

The route would also run the length of Carlisle Road and Wilmington Square (on- 
road) to the seafront where it links up with the proposed route along the promenade 
 
Q5 Do you support the proposed cycle route from the University to the 

Seafront and Town Centre?�

�

� Strongly Support  � Support   � No Opinion    

� Oppose   � Strongly Oppose  � Don’t Know  
 �
�

Q6 Are there any comments that you would like to make about your 
response to Q5 or about how the proposal may affect you? 

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

 

Page 90



Route 2 – Town Centre to Seafront via Cornfield Road 

This would be an on-road route and cyclists would be directed along Terminus Road 
and Cornfield Road to the Memorial roundabout and from there to the seafront via 
Devonshire Place. A cycle lane would be provided on the roundabout to make 
drivers aware of cyclists. 
 
 
Q7 Do you support the proposed cycle route from the Town Centre to the 

Seafront? 
 

� Strongly Support  � Support   � No Opinion    

� Oppose   � Strongly Oppose  � Don’t Know  
�

Q8 Are there any comments that you would like to make about your 

response to Q7 or about how the proposals may affect you? 

 

 

 

 

Route 3 – Along the Promenade from Wish Tower to Fishermans 

Green 

We are planning to allow cyclists to share parts of the promenade with pedestrians. 

Cyclists would be allowed on the Upper Promenade, from the Wish Tower to the 

Pier, and on the Promenade from the Pier to Fisherman’s Green both on an 

unsegregated footway/cycleway. 

Q9 Do you support the proposals for cyclists to share sections of the 

promenade with pedestrians? 

� Strongly Support  � Support   � No Opinion    

� Oppose   � Strongly Oppose  � Don’t Know  
 

Q10 Are there any comments that you would like to make about your 

response to Q9 or about how the proposal may affect you? 

 

 

�

�

Page 91



Route 4 – Town Centre to Eastbourne DGH, via Commercial Road 

This would be mainly an on-road route which would  direct cyclists from Eastbourne 

Railway Station to Eastbourne Hospital from the rear of the station car park onto 

Commercial Road and then northbound via Upper Avenue. 

The route would then be either via Bedfordwell Road and Mayfield Place or Gorringe 

Road (subject to detailed design) leading to Tutts Barn Lane and Kings Drive.�

�

Q11 Do you support the proposed cycle route ? 
�

� Strongly Support  � Support   � No Opinion    

� Oppose   � Strongly Oppose  � Don’t Know  
�

Q12 Are there any comments that you would like to make about your 

response to Q11 or about how the proposals may affect you? 

 

 

 

 

Route 5 – Horsey Way Section 1 

A continuous route would be provided for cyclists from Eastbourne Railway Station 

to Ringwood Road (where the existing cycleway starts). The route would follow 

existing roads and would include some on-road sections and some sections of 

shared footway/cycleway that would be provided on the pavements where they are 

wide enough. 

Q13 Do you support the proposals for Section 1 of the Horsey Way? 

� Strongly Support  � Support   � No Opinion    

� Oppose   � Strongly Oppose  � Don’t Know  
 

Q14 Are there any comments that you would like to make about your 
response to Q13 or about how the proposals may affect you? 

 

�

�

�

�

�

 

Page 92



Route 6 – Horsey Way Section 3 

This route would allow cyclists to travel from the end of the existing cycleway at 

Hammonds Drive, across Lottbridge Drove (via a Toucan crossing) and then 

alongside Horsey Sewer to Langney roundabout via Willingdon Levels. 

 
Q15 Do you support the proposals for Section 3 of the Horsey Way? 
 

� Strongly Support  � Support   � No Opinion    

� Oppose   � Strongly Oppose  � Don’t Know  
�

Q16 Are there any comments that you would like to make about your 
response to Q15 or about how the proposals may affect you? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
�

�

Tollgate School link between Horsey Sewer and Winston Crescent 

A link to Tollgate School is being proposed as part of Horsey Way Section 3 

Q17 Do you support the proposals for the Tollgate School link as part of 
Horsey Way Section 3? 
�

� Strongly Support  � Support   � No Opinion    

� Oppose   � Strongly Oppose  � Don’t Know  
�

Q18 Are there any comments that you would like to make about your 
response to Q17 or about how the proposals may affect you? 

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

 

 

 

 

Page 93



About you...  

Q19 Are you….? 
 

� Female   � Male   � Prefer not to say    
 
 

Q20 Which of these age groups do you belong to? 
 

� Under 18 � 18-24 � 25-34 � 35-44 � 45-54 

� 55-59 � 60-64 � 65-74 � 75+ � Prefer not to say 
 
 
Q21 To which of these ethnic groups do you feel you belong? (Source:2011 
census) Please select one answer: 
 

� White British  � Mixed White & Asian � Black or Black British Caribbean 
              

� White Gypsy/Roma � Asian or Asian British � Black or Black British African 
           

� White other*  � Asian or Asian  � Black other* 
              British Pakistani  
         

� Mixed White &   � Asian Other*  � Arab 
     Black Caribbean 
 

� Mixed White &  � Chinese   � Prefer not to say 
     Black African 
 

� Other ethnic group* 
 
*If your ethnic group was not specified in the list please describe your ethnic group. 
 
 
 
 
 

Q22 Do you consider yourself to be disabled as set out in the Equality Act 
2010? 

 

� Yes   � No   � Prefer not to say    
 
The Equality Act 2010 describes a person disabled if they have a longstanding physical or mental 
condition that has lasted or is likely to last at least 12 months; and this condition has a substantial 
adverse effect on their ability to carry out normal day to day activities. People with some conditions 
(cancer, multiple sclerosis and HIV/AIDS, for example) are considered to be disabled from the point 
that they are diagnosed. 

 
 
 

Page 94



Q23 If you answered yes to Q22, please tell us the type of impairment that 

applies to you.  

You may have more than one type of impairment, so please select all that apply. If 

none of these apply to you please select other and write in the type of impairment 

you have. 

� Physical Impairment    � Mental Health Condition   

� Sensory Impairment (hearing or sight  � Learning disability 

� Long standing illness or health condition � Prefer not to say 

     Such as cancer, HIV, heart disease,   � Other* 
     Diabetes or epilepsy 

 
*If you ticked other please specify 

 
 

 

 

Q24 How did you hear about this consultation?  Please select all that apply. 

� In a newspaper   � On the radio  �

� Via Social Media   � A poster 

� A leaflet through your door � An invitation or personal letter 

� The County Council website � The Borough Council website 

� Other website   � Back of bus advert 

� Bus stop advertising  � Another person 

� Other (please specify below)  
 
 
 
 
   

  
 

 

Thank you for taking part, your views are important to us. 

Page 95



APPENDIX 2 

OVERVIEW PLAN OF PROPOSALS 

 

P
age 96



 
APPENDIX 3 

 

Results of the public consultation exercise on Eastbourne Cycling Proposals  
 
1. Details of the public consultation exercise  
 
In January 2014 a public consultation exercise was held to inform the public about proposals for six cycle 
routes in Eastbourne.  
 
A public exhibition was held in the Court Room of Eastbourne Town Hall on Friday 10 and Saturday 11 
January 2014  where plans were exhibited showing the proposals.  Copies of the proposals were also 
made available on the County Council’s website.  The consultation period ended on Friday 31 January 
2014. 
 
2. Publicity 
 
In order to advertise the consultation, 5,000 flyers were delivered to addresses within the vicinity of each 
of the six proposed cycle routes, with posters advertising the consultation being placed in Eastbourne 
library and local cycle shops in Eastbourne.   
 
A press release was issued on 20 December and a full page advertisement was placed in the Eastbourne 
Herald on Friday Dec 20 and Friday January 3 2014 and also in the Eastbourne Gazette on Wednesday 
January 8. These promoted the date and time of the exhibitions and the online consultation. 
 
In addition, advertisements were placed at seven bus stops across Eastbourne, namely Terminus Road 
(4), District General Hospital (1), Langney Rise (1) and Seaside (1). Advertisements were also placed on 
the outside of selected buses.   
 
Details of the consultation were sent to local Members of East Sussex County Council and Eastbourne 
Borough Council. A total of 44 key stakeholders were sent details about the consultation exercise these 
included Eastbourne Residents Associations, Community Interest Groups, Neighbourhood Management 
Groups, Eastbourne Can and other representative residents groups in Eastbourne.  
 
Details of the consultation were available on the County and Borough Council websites from   2 January 
2014.   
 
 
3. Public Feedback on Cycleway Proposals 
 
The public were asked to complete a questionnaire either at the exhibition event or on-line. There was a 
good response from the public with an estimated 296 people attending the exhibition with many more 
visiting the website. A total of 784 questionnaires have been completed. 
 
The analysis of the feedback has been undertaken and the results are presented below. 
 
Question 1 – Are you an individual, a business or other?  

 
Response Number Percentage of responses 

An individual 776 96% 

A business 13 2% 

Other 16 2% 

 
 
As shown in the Table above, the majority of respondents were individuals.   

   
Question 5 – Do you support the proposed cycle route from the University to the Seafront and Town 
Centre?  
 

There were 784 responses to this question and as shown in the table below, 75 percent of respondents 
either strongly supported or supported the proposed route.    

 
 

Response Number Percentage of responses 

Page 97



 
Strongly Support 416 53% 

Support 169 22% 

No opinion 105 13% 

Oppose 38 5% 

Strongly Oppose 49 6% 

Don't know 7 1% 

TOTAL 784 100% 

 
 

Question 6 – Are there any comments that you would like to make about your response to Q5 or 
about how the proposal may affect you? 
 

A total of 256 comments were received. The comments have been reviewed and categorised into themes 
with the main themes are presented in the table below.  
 
 

 Theme Number of 

respondents 

making this 

comment 

Comments 

1 Good route/Excellent proposal/long 

overdue 

26 - 

2 The roundabout lanes could cause 

conflicting interpretation of right of way. 

Not in the highway code. 

25 The proposal to provide a marked 

cycle lane around the roundabout 

is being reviewed. 

3 Will make cycling safer as roads are 

too dangerous 

16 - 

4 Would encourage more cycling  15 - 

5 How are you going to stop parking in 

the cycle lanes? 

11 The proposals for this route do not 

include cycle lanes. Cyclists will 

use the road as they do now but 

the route will be signed. 

6 Not enough room for a designated 

cycle path (Orchard Road?) 

10 There is no cycle path because of 

the limited width of the existing 

carriageway and the impact on 

parking. Cyclists will use the road 

as they do now. 

7 Would prefer an off-road cycle route 10 There are many reasons why an 

off-road route is not being 

considered: 

� The creation of a an off 

road route along the 

footway would require 

widening which would be 

expensive.  

� There would be many road 

crossings which would 

greatly increase the cost of 

the scheme and make the 

route unattractive to 

cyclists. 

Page 98



 

� Parking restrictions may 

need to be considered 

which would displace on 

street parking. 

 

8 Waste of money for a minority of 

cyclists/not needed 

10 The funding that is being provided 
by the Department for Transport is 
specifically for cycling and walking 
improvements and cannot be used 
for any other purpose. This funding 
has been made available by the 
Government to local transport 
authorities sustainable transport 
initiatives, which support economic 
development and reduce carbon 
emissions.  
  

9 Will promote a more active lifestyle 7 - 

10 Need to have dedicated lanes on the 

road to reduce potential conflict with 

cars 

6 There is insufficient carriageway 

width to consider dedicated cycle 

lanes. These lanes would also 

likely involve parking restrictions 

which may be unacceptable. 

11 Welcome the proposals as they would 

improve health and the environment 

5 - 

12 Road is not wide enough for cycle 

lanes. 

5 Cycle lanes are not being provided 

as there is not enough carriageway 

width. 

13 Too much street signage would cause 

confusion 

3 Signage is necessary in order to 

provide clear guidance for cyclists 

and other road users. 

14 Too much traffic and dangerous for 

cyclists  

3 The majority of roads that will form 

part of the cycle route are lightly 

trafficked. 

15 Where cycle lanes are proposed the 

roads should be subject to a 20mph 

speed limit 

3 Cycle lanes are not being provided 

on this route. All the roads covered 

by the route are covered by a 

30mph limit and the introduction of 

a 20mph limit would only be 

appropriate if speeding was 

identified as a problem causing 

danger to cyclists, pedestrians and 

other road users.   

16 Cyclists will not use the routes 3 The routes proposed are lightly 

trafficked and will provide those 

unfamiliar with Eastbourne and 

less confident cyclists with signed 

routes between a number of key 

destinations in the town.  

17 Need to keep to national guidelines for 3 The County Council is fully aware 

Page 99



 
cycling infrastructure of the guidelines for designing 

cycling infrastructure. On 

occasions constraints on the space 

available mean we may not be 

able to meet the guidance in full.  

 
 
Question 7 – Do you support the proposed cycle route from the Town Centre to the Seafront?  
 

A total of 784 comments were received. The comments have been reviewed and categorised into themes 
with the main themes are presented in the table below.  
 
 

Response Number Percentage of responses 

Strongly Support 420 54% 

Support 180 23% 

No opinion 87 11% 

Oppose 43 5% 

Strongly Oppose 48 6% 

Don't know 6 1% 

TOTAL 784 100% 

 
Question 8 – Are there any comments that you would like to make about your response to Q7 or 
how the proposal may affect you? 

 

A total of 238 comments were received. The comments have been reviewed and categorised into themes 
with the main themes are presented in the table below.  

 
 

No. Theme Number of 

respondents 

raising this 

issue  

Comments 

1 The roundabout lanes could cause 

conflicting interpretation of right of way. 

Not in the highway code. 

31 The proposal to provide a marked 

cycle lane around the roundabout 

is being reviewed. 

2 Good route/excellent proposal 29 - 

3 Would prefer an off-road cycle route 17 There are three main reasons why 

an off-road route has not been 

considered: 

� There is insufficient space 

available to be able to 

create an off road route 

which would be sufficiently 

continuous to be attractive 

to cyclists.    

� There would be many road 

crossings which would 

greatly increase the cost of 

the scheme and present 

cyclists with a difficult 

route. 

� Parking restrictions may 

need to be considered 

Page 100



 
which would result in a 

loss of on street parking 

space. 

 

4 Could cyclists use the whole of 

Terminus Road to the seafront? 

12 The County Council did consider 

the route along the entire length of 

Terminus Road but have not 

pursued this because the 

pedestrianised section of the road 

is heavily used by pedestrians 

criss-crossing from the shops on 

one side of the street to the other 

which means there is a high risk of 

collisions between pedestrians and 

cyclists. In addition the lower end 

of Terminus Road towards the 

seafront is one-way and the 

introduction of contraflow cycling 

next to the parking areas would 

have been difficult to achieve. For 

this reason we opted for a route 

along Devonshire Place. 

5 Waste of money/cycle lanes not 

required 

9 The additional funding is being 

provided by the Department for 

Transport specifically for cycling 

improvements and cannot be used 

for any other purpose. 

6 Would encourage more cycling 9 - 

7 Would prefer cycle lanes to be provided 8 The width of the carriageway is 

insufficient for the introduction of 

cycle lanes. 

8 Road is not wide enough 6 Dedicated cycle lanes have not 

been proposed and cyclists will 

use the road. 

9 The cycle lane around the roundabout 

is a good idea 

6 The use of cycle lanes around the 

roundabout will be reviewed. 

10 Need more cycle parking 5 Could be introduced if suitable 

sites could be identified. 

11 Issues with cycling along bus area of 

Terminus Road 

5 The Terminus Road proposals 

provide a direct cycle route to the 

seafront. Cars are banned from 

this area and as such the mix of 

cyclists and buses is not deemed 

high risk in what will become a 

shared space environment.   

12 Concern about cyclists in Terminus 

Road 

4 Cyclists will share the space with 

buses and pedestrians in what will 

become a shared space 

environment. Other shared 

pedestrian/cycling facilities have 

Page 101



 
worked well in other parts of the 

country. 

13 Where cycle lanes/routes are proposed 

the roads should be subject to a 20mph 

speed limit 

4 Cycle lanes are not being provided 

on this route. All the roads covered 

by the route are covered by a 

30mph limit and the introduction of 

a 20mph limit would only be 

appropriate if speeding was 

identified as a problem causing 

danger to cyclists, pedestrians and 

other road users.   

14 Cyclists should use the road 4 The aim of the proposals is to 

encourage more cycling as this is 

not only sustainable but leads to a 

more active, healthy lifestyle. To 

achieve this we need to provide a 

safe network of routes for cyclists 

avoiding busy/congested roads.  

15 The cycle routes needs policing to 

ensure that cyclists follow the highway 

code 

4 The opening of the routes will be 

accompanied by a publicity 

campaign with one of the 

messages being that cyclists must 

comply with the highway code.  

16 Will encourage a more healthy lifestyle 4 - 

17 Need to keep to national guidelines for 

cycling infrastructure 

4 The County Council is fully 

conversant with the guidelines for 

designing cycling infrastructure. 

On occasions constraints on the 

space available mean we may not 

be able to meet the guidance in 

full.  

18 Concern about causing congestion 3 Congestion should decrease if the 

new routes encourage more 

people to cycle rather than use 

their cars.  

19 Cycle lanes are of no use, car drivers 

take no notice 

3 - 

20 Will make cycling safer as roads are 

too dangerous 

3 - 

21 Pedestrians and cyclists don’t mix, 

someone will get injured 

3 There is clear evidence both 

nationally and locally that shared 

cycling/pedestrian facilities work 

well. 

 
 

Question 9 – Do you support the proposals for cyclists to share sections of the promenade with 
pedestrians?  

 

Page 102



 
There were 784 responses to this question and as shown in the table below, 73 percent of respondents 
either strongly supported or supported the proposed route.    
 
 

Response Number Percentage of responses 

Strongly Support 505 64% 

Support 74 9% 

No opinion 27 3% 

Oppose 18 2% 

Strongly Oppose 160 20% 

Don't know 0 0% 

TOTAL 784 100% 

 
 

Question 10 – Are there any comments that you would like to make about your response to Q9 or 
how the proposal may affect you? 

 

A total of 460 comments were received. The comments have been reviewed and categorised into themes 
with the main themes are presented in the table below.  
 

 

No. Theme Number of 

respondents 

Comments 

1 Good route/excellent proposal/long 

overdue 

141 - 

2 The proposals will result in more 

accidents between pedestrians and 

cyclists (pedestrians and cyclists do not 

mix) 

81 Shared cycling/pedestrian facilities 

work well locally and in other parts 

of the country. The opening of the 

route would be accompanied by a 

publicity campaign aimed at 

ensuring safe cycling along the 

promenade. 

3 The prom is too narrow in places/not 

enough room in places 

59 Further design work will be carried 

out on the “pinch points” to 

determine how best to 

accommodate a shared cycling 

and walking facility. 

4 Should be a segregated cycleway 54 There is insufficient width to be 

able to provide a segregated cycle 

way along the promenade. A 

segregated cycleway may result in 

cyclists travelling at inappropriate 

speeds with the risk that 

pedestrians will stray into the area 

reserved for cyclists.    

5 The promenade should be for 

pedestrians 

49 The objective of the proposals is to 

encourage more people to cycle by 

creating a network of routes across 

the town. The introduction of a 

cycle facility along the seafront is a 

critical link in that network. An 

increase in cycle based tourism 

would provide a boost to the local 

Page 103



 
economy.     

6 Cycling on the road is dangerous 45 - 

7 The existing By-law is not enforced, 

more cyclists will make matters worse 

21 Evidence from elsewhere in the 

County (Hastings and Bexhill) 

clearly demonstrates that 

pedestrians and cyclists can 

successfully share seafront 

environments.  

8 Cyclists should use the road 18 The aim of the proposals is to 

encourage more cycling as this is 

not only sustainable but leads to a 

more active, healthy lifestyle. To 

achieve this we need to provide a 

safe network of routes for cyclists 

avoiding busy/congested roads. 

9 Good signing is essential (pedestrian 

priority?) 

18 Suitable signage will be used to 

inform all users about their 

responsibilities.   

10 Consider timed use of the prom (e.g. no 

cycling during major pedestrian activity) 

14 A timed facility would be extremely 

difficult to operate. Obviously 

cycling will not be possible during 

times of heavy demand such as 

the Airbourne Festival. At other 

busy times cyclists may choose to 

use alternative routes.   

11 Education for all on shared routes 

needed (and enforcement) 

13 A publicity campaign would be 

mounted to coincide with the 

opening of the route to help ensure 

the safety of all those using it.    

12 Who will police the cyclists? 13 The introduction of a shared 

surface will in the main be ‘self 

policing’ as cyclists will have to 

moderate their speeds to take 

account of the volume of 

pedestrians. A publicity campaign 

would be mounted to coincide with 

the opening of the route to 

reinforce the message about safe 

cycling.   .  

13 Speed restriction for cyclists should be 

considered 

12 Evidence from similar shared 

surface schemes demonstrates 

that in the main cyclists moderate 

their speed to take account of the 

volume of pedestrians.  

14 Eastbourne should be inclusive by 

considering families not just the 

elderly/make the promenade accessible 

for all 

12 - 

Page 104



 
15 There is a greater risk to toddlers and 

young children 

10 There is no evidence to suggest 

that shared space schemes 

present a particular risk to 

pedestrians.   

16 Will damage the tourist industry 10 An increase in cycle based tourism 

would provide a boost to the local 

economy.  

17 Shared routes for cyclists and 

pedestrians works O/K 

8 - 

18 Will improve health and wellbeing 8 - 

19 Would encourage more cycling 7 - 

20 Create a route along the seafront with 

speed restrictions for cars (remove 

parking?) 

6 An on road route along the 

seafront will require the removal of 

parking. This will be very 

controversial. Such a route would 

not be as attractive to less 

confident cyclists.  

21 The route will attract tourism to the 

town 

4 - 

22 Will provide the “missing link” along the 

seafront 

3 - 

 
 
 
 

Question 11 – Do you support the proposed cycle route from the Town Centre to Eastbourne 
DGH? 

 

There were 784 responses to this question and as shown in the table below, 77 percent of respondents 
either strongly supported or supported the proposed route.    

 
Response Number Percentage of responses 

Strongly Support 422 54% 

Support 178 23% 

No opinion 102 13% 

Oppose 25 3% 

Strongly Oppose 47 6% 

Don't know 10 1% 

TOTAL 784 100% 

 
 
Question 12 – Are there any comments that you would like to make about your response to Q11 or 
about how the proposals may affect you? 

 

A total of 235 comments were received. The comments have been reviewed and categorised into themes 
with the main themes are presented in the table below.  

 

No. Theme Number of 

respondents 

Comments 

1 Good route/excellent proposal/long 45 - 

Page 105



 
overdue 

2 Cycle route should be off-road/parked 

cars are a problem 

31 There are many reasons why an 

off-road route is not being 

considered: 

� Some of the roads that the 

route would follow have 

low traffic volume/speed 

and are suitable for use by 

cyclists. 

� Parking restrictions may 

need to be considered as 

widening of the footway to 

accommodate cyclists 

would leave no space for 

parking. 

� It has not been possible to 

identify a suitable off road 

route that could be 

designed and constructed 

within the timescale and 

budget available.   

3 The loss of parking along Kings Drive 

will greatly affect the residents  

19 The County Council is fully aware 

of this issue and will be carrying 

out further feasibility work to 

assess other route options.  

4 Kings Drive is too narrow to 

accommodate the cyclists 

12 See response to items (2) and (3) 

above. 

5 The southern part of the route needs to 

be reconsidered, there are several 

points of concern along this route 

10 The County Council will carry out 

further feasibility work to assess 

other route options. 

6 Dangerous to cycle on the road 9 - 

7 Cyclists may not use this route, it is not 

direct. 

8 See response to item (5) above. 

8 Use a different route to Kings Drive  

(e.g. via the allotments) 

7 See response to item (5) above. 

9 Introduce 20mph speed limits where 

on-road cycle routes 

6 All the roads covered by the route 

are covered by a 30mph limit and 

the introduction of a 20mph limit 

would only be appropriate if 

speeding was identified as a 

problem causing danger to 

cyclists, pedestrians and other 

road users.  

10 A waste of money/not needed 6 The additional funding that is being 

provided by the Department for 

Transport specifically for walking 

and cycling improvements and 

cannot be used for any other 

purposes. 

Page 106



 
11 Need a Toucan crossing on Kings Drive 

to get cyclists across to the underpass 

5 See response to item (5) above. 

12 Do not want narrow cycle lanes, they 

are useless (drivers ignore them) 

4 See response to item (5) above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Question 13 – Do you support the proposals for Section 1 of the Horsey Way? 
 

There were 784 responses to this question and as shown in the table below, 74 percent of respondents 
either strongly supported or supported the proposed route.    
 

Response Number Percentage of responses 

Strongly Support 417 53% 

Support 165 21% 

No opinion 118 15% 

Oppose 31 4% 

Strongly Oppose 39 5% 

Don't know 14 2% 

TOTAL 784 100% 

 
 

Question 14 – Are there any comments that you would like to make about your response to Q13 or 
about how the proposals may affect you? 
 

 
A total of 186 comments were received. The comments have been reviewed and categorised into themes 
with the main themes are presented in the table below.  
 

No. Theme Number of 

respondents 

Comments 

1 Good route/excellent proposal/long 

overdue 

41 - 

2 Shared footways not a good idea 31 Shared cycling/pedestrian facilities 

have been shown to work well both 

in other parts of the county and 

nationally. 

3 Better route via Junction Road, 

Dursley, Firle Road and Courtlands 

Road 

16 The County Council will review 

parts of the route in view of the 

feedback received.  

4 On-road sections not good, parked 

cars, etc. 

12 See response to Item (3). 

5 Route is not direct/too many road 7 See response to Item (3). 

Page 107



 
crossings 

6 Footways not wide enough/bins a 

problem 

5 The existing footway will be 

widened to 3.8m which is wide 

enough for shared use by 

pedestrians and cyclists.  

7 Would prefer an off-road route along 

St.Philip’s Avenue and Ringwood Road  

4 See response to Item (3). 

8 Waste of money/not needed 4 The additional funding that is being 

provided by the Department for 

Transport specifically for cycling 

improvements and cannot be used 

for any other purpose. 

9 Will encourage a healthy lifestyle  4 - 

10 Introduce 20mph speed limits where 

on-road cycle routes 

3 All the roads covered by the route 

are covered by a 30mph limit and 

the introduction of a 20mph limit 

would only be appropriate if 

speeding was identified as a 

problem causing danger to 

cyclists, pedestrians and other 

road users.  

 
 

Question 15 – Do you support the proposals for Section 3 of the Horsey Way? 
 

There were 784 responses to this question and as shown in the table below, 79 percent of respondents 
either strongly supported or supported the proposed route.    

 
 

Response Number Percentage of responses 

Strongly Support 456 58% 

Support 166 21% 

No opinion 125 16% 

Oppose 14 2% 

Strongly Oppose 23 3% 

Don't know 0 0% 

TOTAL 784 100% 

 
 
 

Question 16 – Are there any comments that you would like to make about your response to Q15 or how 
the proposals may affect you?  

 

A total of 146 comments were received. The comments have been reviewed and categorised into themes 
with the main themes are presented in the table below.  

 
No. Theme Number of 

respondents 

Comments 

1 Good route/excellent proposal/long 

overdue 

70 - 

Page 108



 
2 Why not extend to Pevensey 

Bay/Langney 

4 Outside the scope of the project. 

Could be considered in the future 

should funding be available. 

3 Will encourage more cycling 4 - 

4 Waste of money/not needed 3 There is a strong demand for 

improving cycling facilities as this 

would not only improve 

sustainability but also enable a 

more healthy lifestyle. The 

additional funding that is being 

provided by the Department for 

Transport is specifically for walking 

and cycling improvements and 

cannot be used for any other 

purpose.  

5 Shared routes are not safe 3 Shared cycling/pedestrian facilities 

work well in other parts of the 

county and across the country. 

6 Safety risk of route beside ditches 3 The independent safety audit 

carried out on the proposals 

requires a minimum of 2m 

separation between the cycleway 

and any waterways. This has been 

achieved in the current design. 

 

Question 17 – Do you support the proposals for the Tollgate School link as part of Horsey Way? 

 
There were 784 responses to this question and as shown in the table below, 74 percent of respondents 
either strongly supported or supported the proposed route.    
 
 

Response Number Percentage of responses 

Strongly Support 434 55% 

Support 152 19% 

No opinion 154 20% 

Oppose 8 1% 

Strongly Oppose 22 3% 

Don't know 14 2% 

TOTAL 784 100% 

 
 
Question 18 – Are there any comments that you would like to make about your response to Q17 or 
how the proposals may affect you?  

 
There were 109 responses to this question. The comments submitted have been categorised into themes 
for simplicity. The table below lists those themes together with the number of people making similar 
comments shown. 

 
 

No. Theme Number of 

respondents 

Comments 

Page 109



 
1 Good route/excellent proposal/long 

overdue 

39 - 

2 May encourage more parents/children 

to walk/cycle to school 

19 - 

3 Shared routes are not safe  6 Shared cycling/pedestrian facilities 

work well in other parts of the 

country. 

4 Cycling proficiency needed for school 

children 

3 Cycling proficiency will be 

arranged for school children before 

the cycle route is opened.  

5 Inconsiderate parking outside schools 

is a major problem 

3 - 

6 Could a route into the rear of the school 

be provided 

3 This has been considered but 

rejected for the following reasons.  

� security at the school 

requires access be 

achieved from the 

southern entrance only. 

� land is a premium and a 

cycleway would reduce 

available land for the 

playground.  

 

Page 110



 

APPENDIX 4 
RESPONSES FROM STAKEHOLDERS  

 

1. Response from Bespoke 
 

 
 
 

Page 111



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 112



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 113



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 114



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 115



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 116



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 117



 

2. Response from Campaign for Better Transport 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 118



 

3. Response from Eastbourne Hackney Carriage trade 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 119



 

APPENDIX 5 
 

STAKEHOLDER DISTRIBUTION LIST 
 

Organisation 
Bespoke 
Bexhill Wheelers 
Brighton & Hove Buses 
British Cycling South East 

Campaign for Better Transport 
Cycle Seahaven 
Cyclist Touring Club (CTC) Wealden & South Downs 
Devonshire West Big Local 
Eastbourne Area Panel Groups 
Eastbourne Can 

Eastbourne Chamber of Commerce 
Eastbourne Community Environment Partnership (CEPE) 
Eastbourne Community Interest Groups 
Eastbourne Disability Involvement Group 
Eastbourne Hospitality Association 
Eastbourne Neighbourhood Management Operation Groups 

Eastbourne Neighbourhood Panels  
Eastbourne Society 
Eastbourne Strategic Partnership 
Eastbourne Town Centre Management Initiative 
Eastbourne Youth Forum 
East Sussex Disability Association 
East Sussex Downs and Weald NHS PCT 

East Sussex Fire & Rescue (ESFRS) 
ESCC Rights of Way 
Healthy Eastbourne 
Highways Agency 
Meads Community Association 
Network Rail 

Places for People 
Queens Estate Residents Association 
Rodmill Residents Association 
South Downs National Park 
South East Coast Ambulance Service (SECAMBS) 
Southern Railways 

Sovereign Harbour Residents Association 
Stagecoach 
Sunbury Farm Residents Association 
Sussex Downs College 
Sussex Police 
Sustrans 
University of Brighton 

Wealden District Council 
 

 

 

Page 120



Page 1 of 4 

 

Body: Cabinet 
 

Date: 19 March 2014 
 

Subject: East Sussex Joint Waste Strategy 2014 - 2025 
 

Report Of: Henry Branson, Senior Head of Infrastructure 
 

Ward(s) All 
 

Purpose To consider adopting the East Sussex Joint Waste Strategy 2014 
– 2025. 
 

Decision Type: Key decision 
 

Recommendation: That Cabinet adopt the East Sussex Joint Waste Strategy 2014 
– 2025. 
 

Contact: Sue Oliver, Manager, Specialist Advisory Team 
Telephone 01323 415360 or internally on extension 5360. 
E-mail address sue.oliver@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

  

 
1.0 Introduction  

 
1.1 In 2006 the East Sussex Waste Resource Partnership (the Borough, District 

and County Councils working together) published a Joint Waste Strategy for 
2006 – 2020, to set out how the County’s waste would be managed in a 
sustainable way.  The targets that were set in 2006 have already been 
exceeded, which has led to a review of the previous Waste Strategy, looking 
at the potential for managing waste more sustainably, reducing costs, and 
maximising the value of waste materials.  

 
1.2 The revised Joint Waste Strategy for East Sussex summarises the waste 

management arrangements and sets out new aims, objectives and targets 
from 2014 to 2025. The Strategy reiterates the continued focus on the 
Government’s waste hierarchy and gives an overview of achievements since 
2006. The waste hierarchy is as follows;  
 

Reduce (produce less waste in the first place, the preferred option) 

Reuse (without re-processing) 

Recycle (re-processing into the same type of product or something new)  

Energy recovery – (waste converted to energy, as at Newhaven) 

Disposal (to landfill and incineration, being the least preferred option)   

Travelling down the hierarchy, the options have a greater environmental 
impact and are generally more expensive.  

Agenda Item 11

Page 121



Page 2 of 4 

 
1.3 The Strategy sets five main targets for 2020: 

• Work to limit the total amount of household waste generated to 
995kg per household per year; 

• Reuse 15% of the household waste generated; 
• Recycle and compost 50% of the household waste generated; 
• Recover energy from at least 95% of the rubbish that isn't reused, 

recycled or composted; 
• Divert at least 95% of waste from landfill. 

There is one target for 2025: 

• Recycle and compost 60% of the household waste generated. 

 
1.4 As well as these targets, the Strategy aims include: 

• Recovering more value from waste;  
• Delivering waste services that offer value for money and are 

accessible to everyone;  
• Reviewing and continuously improving waste services to ensure 

they remain environmentally sustainable and affordable;   
• Managing waste as close as possible to its source, ideally within 

the County. 

 
2.0 Consultation 

 
2.1 Public consultation on the draft Joint Waste Strategy took place between 30 

October and 11 December 2013.  It was advertised by press release and on 
the County Council’s website, as well as being sent to all County, District and 
Borough Councillors. The on-line consultation questionnaire asked set 
questions and people were also given the opportunity to make general 
comments in open questions. ESCC received 794 responses to the 
consultation questionnaire. The version of the Strategy published for 
consultation included information on the Household Waste Recycling Site 
(HWRS) service review and the proposed closures at Forest Row and 
Wadhurst (in Wealden DC) and Seaford (in Lewes DC) in order to make 
efficiency savings.  

 
2.2 The online consultation questionnaire found 40% of respondents agreed with 

the broad aims of the Strategy, 31% agreed with the targets in the Strategy 
and only 13% thought the targets would be met.  These are low percentages 
of agreement for a strategy review, however, the majority of the comments 
related to people’s views on the proposed HWRS closures. Overall the 
consultation feedback suggests that, apart from the HWRS closure proposals, 
people were broadly in agreement with the Strategy’s aims and objectives.  

 

2.3 Subsequently the details of the changes to HWRS proposed were removed 
from the Strategy and were considered separately by the County Council’s 
Cabinet at its meeting on 28 January 2014, and it was decided to: 
 

• Keep the Seaford, Wadhurst and Forest Row HWRS open Friday to 
Sunday and to close them Monday to Thursday;  

• Instruct Communities, Economy and Transport to develop additional 

Page 122



Page 3 of 4 

proposals for finding further savings in the HWRS network.   
 
ESCC propose to start a process of engagement with boroughs, districts, and 
town and parish councils to explore a range of options on how further 
savings could be met from the HWRS budget, to make up the savings gap 
from the partial closures.   
 

3.0 Local performance 
 

3.1 Eastbourne is a part of the Joint Waste Partnership and entered into a new 
waste contract with Kier Environmental Services Ltd on 1st April 2013, 
alongside Wealden District Council. Hastings Borough Council joined the 
contract in July 2013, and Rother District Council will join it in April 2014.  
 

3.2 We have a local indicator in Eastbourne to measure performance as regards 
reuse, recycling and composting. The target for 2013/14 is 33%, and as at 
the end of Q2 (September 2013) performance is showing a year to date 
figure of 35.77%, with October’s performance being 35.4%. There is always 
a time delay with the data as it is subject to verification by ESCC. The Q2 
performance represents a slight increase on the previous quarter, as 
customers get used to the new collection system and become more familiar 
with the wide range of materials that can be recycled, and in addition the 
greater variety of materials that can now be recycled under the co-mingled 
service has lead to an improved level of recycling in comparison with the 
level achieved using the previous kerbside sort system. 
 

3.3 It is envisaged that performance will continue to improve and that the 
targets of 50% of household waste being recycled by 2020 and 60% by 2025 
across the county are achievable. However this will require intervention and 
there is clearly an important piece of work to be done in terms of educating 
and influencing customers. Eastbourne Borough Council along with the other 
councils in the Joint Waste Partnership and Kier, rely upon the cooperation of 
customers to recycle their household materials. The financial mechanisms 
that support the contract provide an incentive for Kier to positively influence 
resident behaviour and seek to maximise the volumes of recycling collected 
each week 
 

4.0 Resource Implications 
 

4.1 Financial – given the life of the Joint Waste Strategy and the targets 
contained within it, it may be necessary to support more customer education 
and promotional activities alongside Kier’s interventions, to increase 
recycling. Financial resource implications will be kept under review.   
 

4.2 Staffing – interventions will be carried out within existing staff resources 
and in partnership with Kier and the other members of the Joint Waste 
Partnership. 
 

5.0 Other Implications, Environmental, Community Safety, Youth, Anti-
poverty, Equality and Fairness analysis 
 

5.1 Environmental: Local authorities must follow Waste Regulations and the 
Government’s waste hierarchy, taking all such measures as are reasonable 

Page 123



Page 4 of 4 

to prevent waste and to apply the waste hierarchy in handling household 
waste. The Joint Waste Strategy addresses this issue, and focuses attention 
to the need to reduce waste at the top of the waste hierarchy, to ensure a 
reduced environmental impact. 
 

6.0 Summary 
 

6.1 The new Joint Waste Strategy 2014 – 2025 sets out new aims, objectives 
and targets for the East Sussex local authorities to deliver the Government’s 
waste hierarchy and to reduce the impact of waste on the environment. 
 

Sue Oliver 
Manager, Specialist Advisory Team 
 

  
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
Reports to ESCC Cabinet on Seaford, Wadhurst and Forest Row HWRS are at; 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/about/committees/meetingpapers/cabinet/2014/
28january 
 
East Sussex Joint Waste Strategy 2014 - 2025 
 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer 
listed above. 
 

 

Page 124



Appendix 1 

  

  

East Sussex
Joint Waste Strategy  

2014 – 2025 

  

Page 125



Page 126



���������� ��	��
�

���������� � � � � � � � � ��

	������
����������� � � � � � � ��

��������������������������������������������� � �� �

����������
�� � � � � � � � � ��

��������������� � � � � � � � ��

��� ��� � � � � � � � � � !�

�� ��� � � � � � � � � � ""�

�����#��������
$���� � � � � � � "%�

&�������������� � � � � � � � "��

'���(�##� � � � � � � � � � "��

)��*�� ����#������������������ � � � � "��

�������+�,� � � � � � � � � "��

������� ����������#���������� �#���� � � � "!�

-����� ��( #���� 
�����������(��
������ � � ���












Page 127



��

�������


&����� ���+����������������������������.��� ������/��������0� ���#����������0� ����0� ���#���������
�����##��

����������������������#���� ����#�����������������$�������������1��2����������$ 3#������������������������(���


����������0� ���4�������������� ������3#�����1������������5���4����#
������ 3#��������
� ����(����������

�� ��5������#��������
$����������4������ ������������������#���(�##�3�������6�71��2����"�8"%���������#��5�

��
$�����5��� �����������������������(��
�6�7��(�� ���� ����#��������������#���7���������#���(�##1�	�����
���

����+��������������������������������5�������������������������������������������+$#�����������4##�
��������������

���##���� ���#�����1���

�

�����������&����� ���+��� ����#�����##������������ ���66�9�:�#
�����������;��(����������������#������������5�

����4����
���%65������������(��������������#1�����������(����#������������������� ���<"���$����� ����#��$��������:���

�(���"%8"�;1��-����$��(�����5������������=>��� ����#��������������<�!���������(�(������������9���� �##�������

�� #�������3�������� 
��1��. ����������#����$������
���7��(�������� �������������#�������������������1  

�

2������$����(��������5�#������ ����#������������3����$��� ���������3�(���5�3 ������� 
3����(�$��$#��#���������

���9����������0� ������##���������5�
������
����������(��� ��������#������*������#����##�����������
����������

��������
�9��� ��������1��

�

�����������
������ �������������
����� ������3#���������#����� �������������������
�9������������������

�((����3#�������##������
����1 �- ���������������� ����##��(�� ��������(��
�����+$�������$��3#�
����������# �3#��

���� �����������(��
��(����
��(����� ��5�
������#��(�����$��������5����( �#�(��������1������������������
 ��� ��( #�


������#����$����3#��� ���(������ ��3��������� ������������#��1���4##��#������9������� ��������
� ����(�������

��������������4##�� $$��������?�����
���4���������#�������@����������@����

�������#$� ���������1���

�

������������������� �����������0� ���#����##�������������������������5�3 ��� ��������#����������������� ���

��

��
���������������9��(����������1���������������##�3��
���3��
��� ������4����#������$ �����$#��������
$�����

�����#�����������5��������������������
������ ��������3�����1����4##�
�������� ��$��������������������������

���������������������$ 3#������� $����1�

�

�����������������##����(��
�������$#���1��	�����������&���3� ����.��� �5��������#���������������/��������

0� ���#������ $���A�����������@���������$������"%1�������������0� ���#����������������������"���������������������

����>����?�� $����$���������3���������������������#�����##��������������1����������������� ���#���+�$�������#
����<%�


�##����������������������##������������1��'�����/��������0� ���#����������� �������5��
$�����������#�����##�������

��������1���������������������
������4������
 ����������(���&����� ���+�������������������#��������
$����
���1������

��##���#$� �����������������#��������������� �������������������(���7�3�������������7�3������1�

�

=�����&����� ���+�0� ����0� ���#4��%���������������������B��#���&������
����#������������4���3 �#������������

(���#�����������������������#���������
$���������������������������(��
�� �������1��)���#���##��(�������������������

���4�������#������� �����##�3�� �������( �#�(���������3#�������5�
�����������#���#���������#���(�##1������������������+�

$��������( ������<"1��
�##���������������������������$���#������1�

�

����#���������������9�3������&����� ���+���������#�������������1������##����9������� ����� ���&�����4�$�������5���

�� $��(��� ���#�����# ����.�����������	���5�	�
$�����5�>���5�C�����5�� ��������������� ���+1������� #�����##��

�����(��
���������������#�������������������#��������
�3�� ����� ��D�����3 ����������##���$����5��������

9���#���5�����
�9���3���� ����(�����������(���#�������������1�������� #����#$� �����3���
�������
�����((������5�

� ���������������
������# ��� ���(������1��




Page 128



��

��
�
����	�
����




������9����������������&����� ���+����������� ����@���������$����
�����������##��������������$���#��(��� ��

�����1�

2��&����� ���+�����(����/������������.��� ��0� ���#�5�&���3� ���5�	������5�'����5���������������#���������������

��##�������� ���������1��������##������ �����������������#���(��
��� ��9��3���������$�����������3� ������

�����#���$�����������#$��� ������#����������������(�
������#��������� ����
�1�

&����� ���+�0� ����0� ���#����������������$���#�� �������5��$������������	� ����#�������������#��������5�������

����$��3 #9�����
�������������������(�
������#��(��������#��1�����0� ����0� ���#��#���� ������$�����#�*��##������

����������(�����������������
$���5���������������(��
��� ��� ��3���������#�����������������)��������&�����

�������������#���1��-�#�����
�##��
� ����(��������������#���(�##1�����0� ����0� ���#4�����������$���#�������������

 ����������� �#�������5������� �������������((���������������*�((����������$����3#�1���
�

���
������
��
���
����
������
�����
���������
�����������
���




����������	��������������� ���$������(������#������������������������(��������
����#��
$���1����������$����������5�

�������������$��(�������$����������� �������������3����(��������������
���1���������(�##�����3�������5���������5�����

��������� ����:���������# ���������������������������������������3�����������;1�����##�5�!�������
�������#�����

������3#���$����5��������# ����#���(�##����������������������� ����������������1��

����� ������#����������	��������5������$���������������������������
����#��
$�����������������##��
����

�+$������1������
����
���������0� ���4����������������������������������5������
�����(�����$��(�������$������

�������$������(����#���#�����$����3#�1�����������	���������(��
��$�����(�=>��������� #��������������
 �����9��

�������3#��
��� ��������$$#������������������������#���������� ����#�������1�

�

"��
�����
���������


"��
�����
���
#�������
����





����0� ����0� ���#��������$#���(�������#��*���
�
����
�����(������1����������������C�����#��@#���(���&����

� ���+5��� ���/���������.�����������	�����������#���#�� ����������##�����������������##����������(��
���

�����#�

������� �����#�$��
���������(��
������� �����5���
�#�����������+������������9�1�)��*#���#�� ����������##������

������
�9��� $��$$��+�
���#���!7��(��������������������������1�����$#��4���$$��������������� ��������
� ����(�

���������������������
�9��� �������������������� ����$�������������( � ���������#������������������������#�������

����������(������1�-����������+��������������4##����� #�������$��$#�����������(���$���(���������(�������������
�����#�

��#�����(���#��������������������1�������������+$�����������4##����������
����#���(�##���������������� ���1��

Page 129



��

����
�$ �
����� ��
�	�����
���	���
�����
%&&'�
�

�����
���
�������
(
���
)�
*+,


�
�

�

�

�

�

2�������������������������#�
�������������������

�� ����#��������#���#������1�7�$��������3�����61��

-�
.���/
���
�����
������
����
���
��������
�������


���
��
%&0%102
�
��������
*+
����
����
����
��


%&&'3


��������	
���
���������	
(
��
)�
0%+,


2�����������������4����������������#�������

��
$�������(��� ����#��������(��
���7����

%%7�3����"�1�

-�
%&0%102
�
��������
���
���������
24+
�.


���
����3




�

�

�

�����
������/
��������
��
��� �����
��
����	�
(
��
'*+,


�

2�����������������4��3����������#�������������

����������(��� ����#��������(��
���7�������#�����

��7�3����""5�������7�3����"�1�

-�
%&0%102
45+
�.
���
����
��
������/
��������


��
��� �����
��
����	�3



�

�

�

�

�����
��
����.���
(
���
)�
42+,


2����������#���(�##���"6�5������������(������1�

�������� �������� ��������
� ����(�

3��������3#����������������#���(�##����"��5����

�������3����"�1�

-�
%&0%102
�
����.�����
02/5%&
������
�.


���������
����/
����6�

7���
'+3

�

Page 130



��

������	�
8���

�

E� ��&����� ���+�0� ���#����##����9������������
��������������������##���������� ������3#�����������

�((����������1����
���
��
��9
��
�����������
����

�

�

• ������
���
������
�.
����
��������3�


• -�������
���
������
�.
����
������/
��������
���
���������3


• ������
���
������
�.
����
����.�����3



• ���� ��
����
 ����
.���
���
����3



• ��� ���
����
��� ����
����
�..��
 ����
.��
�����/
�3�3
����
���
	���
���
�..����)��/
���
���


�������)��
��
� ������3



• �� ��
���
������������
����� �
���
����
��� ����
��
������
����
������
�� ������������


��������)��
���
�..����)��3




• #���	�
����
��
�����
��
�����)��
��
���
������/
�������
�����
���
������3


�

�

�

������	�
"��	���


�#��� ��&����� ���+������������������� �����������$���������5������#����������������������5�����& ��$����

0�

���������F �����C�
3������������������#������� �����7��(��� ����#��������3������5�����������9����$�������

�����1��2���������� �������������(���&����� ���+5���������
����� ��������� ��������
����
�����$������
�9��

�����
��������������
����#������1�

.��%&%&���4##G


• ���9
��
�����
���
�����
������
�.
���������
����
��������
��
44:
9	
���
���������
���
����3


• �������
���
�������
:&+
�.
���
���������
����
��������3


• �����
0:+
�.
���
���������
����
��������3



• ���� ��
����	�
.���
��
�����
4:+
�.
���
��))���
����
���;�
������/
��������
��
���������3



• !� ���
��
�����
4:+
�.
����
.���
����.���3


����3��%&%:���4##G


• �������
���
�������
'&+
�.
���
���������
����
��������3


�

Page 131



!�

������

�������	
����
��
���
����
���������
����


���������3
��������	
����
����
��
���
.����
�����


�� ��
��
���
.��������
���
�� ����������
�����3


<���	
����
��������
��
����	�/
����.������
���


���9�	��	/
���
9�����	
��������
.��
���	��
��


)�����
.��
���
�� ��������3
-�
����
.���


���������/
�����
��
����
��
���������/
���
��
�������


���)��
���������
���
����3������
%&0&
��
%&02/


���
� ���	�
����
������
���������
�������
44:9	


=������
�
�����>
�.
����
���
��������	
���
����3



��4##����9����������?�����
���4������������@����������@����

�����
���������������H���������������
�4�

���������� ���������( ##����# ������������#������������������������#����������1���4##����9������$������������ $$����

�������#�������$������������
$����1�'���##�5�'�����/��������0� ���#�� �����( ##��������?�����
�������������������

����������4I����	���4���
$���5�������� ���������������(�'�����/�������������� ��������5��� ������������#�1���������

/��������0� ���#��������##�����?�����@����������
�������������� ����#���(��������#���������� ���������������#���#�

����� ���������((���5�����$����������$������#���1�

�

.�(�������������
�������� ��5�� ������#�������������������������������1���������������������� ���5����������������

9��$��������������� �#��
� ����(�������$��� ����$����� ����#���������� ������#���#��(�66�9�� ���������
���

��������1�2������#��������
������
������� ���������#���#�1���������##�� ����������������3������( ##���������������

���3 �5���#��3 �����������4##� ��������������(��������( ##�1���4##�
��� �����������#��
� ����(����������$��� ���

����
�������$��������������� �������1��

���������� �������������������������������
����3���������� #���(����������
������ �����5���4����������
��� �������

� �������(�� ���((������������ ����$��$#�����$��������������������9��������������4�����������# ��(���
����1����

��4����� ��� ���3� ���������� ��������$ �������������$������������
$����1�	�����������0� ���#����##������� �����

� $$����������$���������������4��$��(���3#�����$��� ����
����������������#�����1�����?�����
��������#���#��9������

����#�$���������(�
��� ���������
$�����(�� ��������$�����������((����1�

��4##����$����3 ���������������������������������#���������������� ����������������$���������1����3�#�����

#��������$����3 �������������$�������������������#���(�������#�?�����
���1�����?�����
���4������������@����������

@����

��(���&�#������
��������9������3 ���������G�
�

• ��� ���(���������5�

• ���� ������������� ����������������������� �����((�������5�

• ���� ������# ������������������� ���$��9���������������
$����������#�3�#���5�

• ������������3 ������������
���
����$��9���1�

Page 132



6�

�

�
�

�

�

�

1�

Page 133



"��



���
����
��.��������
��
���
���
���
��
��
������
����
����/
���
���
�)�����
������
��
��	�
%&3


Page 134



""�

�����





�����
�����
����	
�
�������
��
��������
�	���


������
�����������	
��3
"���
��������
����9��	/


�������	/
��������	/
��.��)�����	
���
������	
��


�������	
������?����
	����
��9�
�������/
����/


)��9�/
�!�/
!�!�/
�����������/
.��������
���


�����3   

&��������$��� ����3������)��������&������������������#������� ������������� �����1��� ���������������������

�����#��������� ������������������������
���
����D�3��$��������������#���(�##������������������1���

������$���������5��� ������������#����������������������$��������0� ���#���������1������+�
$#�5�����0� ����

0� ���#4���/�������������&����� ���+�� $$��������
�4����9�������#���#��� ����������������$�������3������ ����

���
��:� ������( ���� ��;�������������������#$�$��$#��#��������$������#������������������������������ ��


�����(�����������#�1��




Page 135



"��









	�������� ���� ����������5�.�+��##�������




���
����
��.��������
��
���
���
���
��
��
�����
����/
���
���
�)�����
������
��
��	�
%&3

Page 136



"%�

�������
���
�������


��������	
��
���
��
����
��
��?���������
����


���
����
����
�.
�������
��
����
����


��������	
��3
��������
���
������	
�����


����
.������	/
�������
)������
����
)��9���9�
��


	�����
����
��
�������3
"���
�������
���


����
.��
��
���������/
��� ����
����
���


�������
����	�
���
���
���������3
-�
%&0%102/


���
���������
��������	
���
���������	
����


��
��	����
��
52+/
���
24+
��
����
������3



�

�����#��������������������##���
$�������������������##�����������������(�
������#��(��������#����������
����

��# ��(��
�� ������������������3�(���1���4���3 �#������(���#������(��������������������0� ����:���������$����;1�

- �������#�3#��
������#������������������C������#���������������#�������
�9�����
�������(��������$�����������*

$���������1�����#�����0�
$����������#���������'�����$���������� �������������������������$�����#�*��##������

9������������1�������� #������
$���������#���������	� ����#�������������#������������@��*?����$����(�������#�

�����������1���

�������������#�����##��������(��
���
������&����� ���+�
�9�����
 ����������(��������������������#��������
$����


���1���4��#�9���������9�����������(���������� $$����� ����������������������1�2��&���3� ���5�	������5�����

���#���5�������
������$����(�
������#�����������##������(��������#������# ����$#������� 3����������������(��������

����9��������1������4������+����3�+���������#��#������������������(����������#��������������������3��1����������#���

D��������������������A �����"�1������� ���#������������������������9������$���������$������������������������##������

�� ���#���+�$������<%��
�##������������������1���

'�����/��������0� ���#����������� ������(���������������#���

��##���������#$��� ����������#�������
���1



�����4��������������##����������������������#��5�����������4��

���##�
���������
���#�(��� ����������#������
������#�����

��##����(��������#�������������������
����#���(�##�������( �#�

(��������1�������������##�� �������#�3#��
������#��� ���#���5�

������������������(���������
��(��
�� �������������5������

��� ��������������������������1��������9����������� ��������

3�#������(����9�����������5�3 ����4##������� ������������


��9������������������������������������$��(��
1�

����0� ����0� ���#��������������	� ����#�������������#���

������������������$��$���������#���������������������������5�

���� �����������(�����������((��������
��� ��1��
�

	������5�������������( ����������������(�#���#���
����(���������������5��(������$ 3#������� #��������������

$��$������#�� ���5�����0� ����0� ���#�������������������$�����1�2�����������������9��$�����������$�����##���$��5�����

����+$#������������
���������������(�����	� ����#�������������#�������������������#������##����������������1��

�����#���3��9�(���(#�������	�������

�����#���#����$��� ����

Page 137



"��

���
����
��.��������
��
���
���
���
��
��
�������
����/
���
��	��
0@/
04
���
%&3

Page 138



"��

����	�
���� ���




"���
��
����
�
��� ���
���
��))���
=����
���6�


��������
��
���������>
����
�����������
��
���


����	�
���� ���
��������
��
A��� ��3

"���
��


)�����
����
������	
��
��
����.���
��
���
����


�����6�
����
���	
����
����	�����3

"��


�����������
��
����
��
����
�����
���


)���������3



���� ��(����#�( �#��� ��� �5���((����������������������

������3���
��
�����
$������1��2��&����� ���+�

��4���� ����������������������3#�������1���������� #�5���������
��������#���(�##���+�:<!���������������"�8"�;�����

���������������
��(��
�������#���(������#�����������������)������#�?���1��������#$��9��$��� ���#���+�3�##������1���

��������$��� ����3��3 ��������������( �#����$ ��������� ��������3 �#����
������#1�����#�����9��������
������


���#��(��
�����������������#�����
1�����)��������&������������������#����
�������������
������������������� � ��

3����1�2�(��
������������������3��(� ����������B��#�����3����G�

���1���#���������
����#��������1��1 98�� �������8����#�����8)�������*&����*��������*����#���*8&
��������

����&������������������#�������)��������

Page 139



"��

B���.���




-�
�������
�����
����.���
��
�����
���
����
������


.��
����
����3
-�
%&0%102
�
������/


��������
���
���� ����
����	�
.���
45+
�.


���
���������
����3
��
����
����
'+
��


����.���3




��
��#�������
���(���������9����������	� ����#��

�����������#���������������#�������#���(�##����

$������1������������9�������$����#����(���#������

� ������&����� ���+1��

- ��&������������������#�������)����������������#����(����� �#���������9�������������(���$#������
����������1�

����������
�5���
���(�� �������������������#���(�##�� ������������ �������������������$���#���(�##�������#�(�����&����

� ���+1���

�#��� ������#�������������6�7��(������������(��
�#���(�##5����9#���������
�������7��(���������������#����##���1��

������#�������
$�������##�������
�5�$�������� �������������# ������(������#�������������
�##�F ��������(�������

��������� �����#������������������#���(�##1��- ������������������������ ��#���(�##����������������(��
�6�7����6�71���

�







@�3���
�#���(�##������

Page 140



"��

A��?���������
���
"����
�����


�#��� ����� ���6�7��(��##��������������
���������� ����#��

�����5�����0� ���#����##�����������#��������
��"�5�������������

�����:����(���"�8"%;��(�����������4�������#����������� ����#��

�����1���������(#�*��$$���� 33���5�3����������5������������5�

��������5����#5�$#�����3�����������3�����1���4##����#�����������

����������������������������	�������������� ������������
�1��
�

���#�������������������* �������$ ��������� ��5����������#���(�##�

������(����+�
$#�1�@#�����3�������������#���������
���(�������������������������#��������
$�����1�C�����(�����(#�*

��$$�������3�������������� �������( �#�(��������1�������#�����$���#��$�����(�����3�����������������������#���(�##�� ���(�

������ ���1�

�

C�������
����
���
��������	
��� �����

�

B���
!�������
����������##�����������(������$���#�����$�$�����������3�����(��������#��5���������0� ���#4���

0�

�����#�������0�##�������$��G����1#����1��1 98�����1��E� �������������'�����/��������0� ���#���G�

/����������������5�'�����/��������0� ���#5��� �������	� ��5��� �����������5�'����5�.)��"�.�

��#G��"��%��!�666���J���&
��#G�� ���
��1��������K#����1��1 9���J����C�����
G��"��%��!��!!���

��3����G����1#����1��1 9�

D���
����������
�����
��� �����������9�������������������������������#�����##��������$����� �#������#���3��

���#����/��������0� ���#������#��������������&���3� ��������	������������1�>������##��#�����##����(��
��������/��������

(��
��$��#���"�1���������# ���������#�����##��������(���$�$��5�����5�#���5�����3����5�����������*���������4���##�������

��������(���$#������3���#��5�(������������9�����5�(��#5�������#��������+���(������������9�:������@�9;��������1�

��#G��"%�%�!"�������J���&
��#G���

�����#�������������K9���1��1 9��

�����
����������
����
��������
������������#�������������0� ����0� ���#4����3����G�

���1����� ���+1��1 98�������
���8� 33�����������#��83 ������������

�




"����
C�������
$���
��
���
����6
��� ���


��
��0� ���#��������$����� $��������������������������$����������������������������������������������
����(���

3 ����������������$���#����&����� ���+1������0� ����0� ���#�����+$#�������������3 ����������� #�� ���� ��������

�����(���������������&���3� ���5�C����(��#������@�3���
5�������$�������� ������4�3����1������������(���3 �������

�������� #���������������������������(����#����������5�3 ���� #��3����
$�������#��$�����1�2������ #������������#���#�

3 ��������5���4##�#��9��������##������$�������� ������4���������(�����������������������(����������������(�����������1�

����
����E�
%&%&
���
)�����


	�����
�������+�������������������������� ���#�����������5�������������������� ��������������9�� ���������1�����

�����#���������
$�����5���4�����
��������������7�3������1������ ������D�������������������>����(�����##������

&���3� ���5�	������5���������������#���4��� 33�������������#�����
�������������������%5������������##�3�����

�$$��� ��������#��9����� �������������1�

��4##����9������� ���� �������5������ ������������#��
���5������������������#�������#���(�##1��������������##��������

���#�������������������������
����##��� ������3#�5��((������������((����3#�����1������������&����� ���+5����������

������#���#�� �������������������������4##����9����
�9������������� �����������������#����������������
�9������


�����(�������# ������ �������1����4##��������� ��������������������������� ������
$��������
��������������#�����

�����$$��� ������������1��

Page 141



"!�

�

����
���
���
�������
����
���
�� �


����
���
���
�������
��
����)�����/
������	�
���
�������


������
7����
���
��
��� ���
.���
2&
F���
%&05

�

����������������##��������������������������������(�
������#��������##�����
(��
���
���3������.��� ������/��������0� ���#������������3�#��1��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

E� �����(����� ��
�����3� �������#������&���3� ���5��

	������5���������������#����3��������������0� ���#��

��3������#���������$�����1�

�

���������	

P
age 142



"6�

����
���
���
�������
��
B���
!�������





'�����/��������0� ���#���9����������������(����
��(��������#��1�������3#��3�#��������������������##������(��
���
��1��

�����
��������	
)��


(
�����








B��	�
��������	
)��
(


����
���
��������








��������	
)�	
(


	����





��������	
)�	
(


����)����




�

��������	
)�	
(
��������





�

����
�������





)���$�$����

A �9�
��#�

C��H�����

0���#� ���

'�������

.���� ����

0�����

�����L�����9������

0#�����# 
��� 
�(��#�

:�����3�;�

�
�##����
���(�����$�


���#�:�11�� �#���5�

3�9��������;�

@#������3���#���

.�����������������
�##�

$#������3��$��������

�##�(����L�����9�

#����3���#���

?#����D����

�##�����3�����

$��9���5��11G�

�0����#�3�+���

A �9�
��#��

0�����

0���3�����3�+���

0#������L�������

	���3���L�#�������

����5�

��+��#���((*� ���L�����

.��9��

@��*���������/B/��L�0/��

B������

.���*�*3����

�

C�������������:����L����9��;�

�� ����������:����L����9��;�

�##�������L����

.����5���9��5�$��������

����5�$����5�3�����

=�������(����

����3��5���((����� ����

�

���������#����
��� ��������+���������@�9�(������������9��������5��$�����#��5����
$������
�3�#��$����������3�������#����������3��9����������#����������������

0�

 ����������#���0���������'����5���������.��9�'���������3�$���: ���1�����#����1��
8�$$#��������8�����#����M�!83��9#������1�����(����������

��##�����������
����������$������������������/��������������##����##����#$� �������#��
���1��E� �����(����� ��
�����3� ��'�����/�������4�����������������3��

������������0� ���#4����3����G����1#����1��1 98�����8����+1��$�

�����
��
��9�
����
��������	
���
����




����0� ���#���#���$�������#���#������#���3��9��:�(�������� $��
��9�������$��9�;�����	� ����#�������������#����������������&����� ���+1��������� ����#$�

��$�������� �������#�3#��
������#���������	� ����#�������������#���������:������$�4;5�������������#�������
���1��E� �����(���������#���(��������������������

�������������$���������0� ���#���3�$����#���������$�����1�

P
age 143



���

�����
���.��
���������
���
��.��������

�

�������
����
���
��������	
�)
��	���



• &����� ���+�0� ����0� ���#G����1����� ���+1��1 98�������
���8� 33�����������#���

• &���3� ����.��� ��0� ���#G����$G88���1����3� ���1��1 98���������83���*���*�����#���

• 	�������.��� ��0� ���#G�

���1�������1��1 98�������
���M$#�����8�#�����M�������8�����M�����#��

• '�����/��������0� ���#G����1#����1��1 98������

• ���#����/��������0� ���#G����1���#���1��1 98���#���8�����#��M���M�����8�����#��M���M�����1��$+�

• �������/��������0� ���#G����1������1��1 98�����#����

B����
������
.��
�������	/
������	
���
��������	�


• �������?�����@�����G����1�����������1��1 98#$8�������

• �I����	����0�
$�������'����G����1H���������1
��

�������	
�����


'���������	���������G����1#���(������������1��



�����
��	�����������


• 	�������� ���� ����������G����1�(�1��1 9�

• � ���� ���)��N����1( ���� �����1��1 9�

• &

� ��	�������L�������G����1�

� �1��1 98�������*���*�������

• �#����
�����A����
�����$������5�'����G����1#����1��1 98�����8"%���1��$�

• &����� ���+�0� ����0� ���#�� ���� ����� ������������#�����3�$��G�

���1����� ���+1��1 98�������
���8� 33�����������#��8������ �����8( ���� ���

A��	�)�������
��������	
������
���
���������
�����
��������	
������


• 	�������.��� �������#���$�����G�

���1�������1��1 98�������
���M$#�����8�#�����M�������8� 33���M�����#�8���M��M�����#�M��M������

�8�����#��M������

• &���3� ����.��� �������#���$�����G����1����3� ���1��1 98���������83���*���*�����#��8�����#���

• '�����/�������������#���$�����G����1#����1��1 98�����8��"61��$�

• �������/�������������#���$�����G����1������1��1 98�����#�@�����

• ���#����/�������������#���$�����G�

���1���#���1��1 98���#���8�����#��M���M�����8	� ����#�M�����8�����M)���3� �����M�����#��

M@�����1��$+�

• &����� ���+�	� ����#�������������#��������G�

���1����� ���+1��1 98�������
���8� 33�����������#��8�����#�������8����������


�������
������	���
���
�����


@����� ��&����� ���+�������C����
������������:������������������;G�������������������G�

���1����� ���+1��1 98�������
���8� 33�����������#��8
����������8������������8��������

&������
�����������������������������0� ���������
������((������������������G���"��&������
�����������G�

���1����� ���+1��1 98�������
���8$���������8�������
�����������

��������������C�����#�@#���(���&����� ���+5��� ���/���������.�������L�	���G�����������C�����#��@#��G�

���1����� ���+1��1 98�������
���8$#�����8����#�$
���8
�����#����������

Page 144



�"�

��.�������


��������F ��������������������#���(���������(� �������� �� ��������������1�������������������&����

� ���+������3������9���(��
�����
����������������#��3���������������
����&����� ���+1��C���������#�

(����������3������9���(��
������������G�

�

�������������� ������������@����

�G����1���$1��1 9�

�

'���������	���������G����1#���(������������1��


�

����������� ��(������$��*�����������G����1����������1��1 98����8(�#��8���� ����8"68�*�����*��*�� �*

(������$�*�����#��*���*��� ���1$�(�

�

�������#�)�$$��2�(��
�������������G����1����#1��1 9�

�

��������������������
������3��#���#�� �������������&�#���������"�8"%G��

���1��1 98�����
���8 $#����8�����
8 $#����8������
���M����8(�#�8����"�8����������M)�����"1$�(�

�

?�����
���4��������@����������@����

��(���&�#���G����1��1 98�����
���8$ 3#��������8�����*

$���������*$����

�*(��*��#����

�

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 6 

Body: Cabinet 
 

Date: 19 March 2014 
 

Subject: Eastbourne Borough Council's use of its powers under the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (‘RIPA’) as 
amended by the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 
(‘POFA’) and associated legislation 
 

Report of: Julian Osgathorpe, Deputy Chief Executive 
 

Ward(s) All 
 

Purpose (1) To report on the authority’s recourse to the its powers 
available under RIPA and associated legislation during 
the 2013 calendar year  

(2) To ask Cabinet to approve the adoption of a policy on 
the acquisition and use of communications data which 
brings the authority’s approach into line with that on 
covert surveillance. 

 
Recommendation: (1) That Members note the results of the yearly RIPA review, 

and of the authority’s recourse to RIPA regulated 
surveillance during the 2013 calendar year. 

 
(2) That Members adopt a policy on communications data which 

brings this authority’s approach to those powers in line with 
the ‘last resort’ approach to all types of covert surveillance 

 
(3) That Members give authority to the Lawyer to the Council to 

a) incorporate such amendments to the policies of this 
authority on both surveillance and communications data 
which are necessary to ensure that it is up to date and 
accords with the law and b) to continue to review the 
authority’s procedures, policies and training on RIPA related 
matters on an annual basis in consultation with the SRO for 
RIPA and the Cabinet portfolio holder.  

 
Contact: Victoria Simpson, Lawyer to the Council, Telephone 01323 

415018 or internally on extension 5018. 
E-mail address: victoria.simpson@eastbourne.gov.uk 

  

 
1.0 Background 

 
1.1 Members are aware that RIPA supplies a statutory framework within which 

certain types of covert investigative tools may be lawfully used  by public 
authorities for the purposes of enforcement as long as rigourous criteria are 
met and a set process followed. The latter includes amongst other things 
obtaining both internal approval at a senior level and also judicial approval 
before the measures are used.  
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 147



Page 2 of 6 

1.2 The types of covert investigative tools covered by the RIPA regime include 
directed surveillance (essentially covert surveillance in places other than 
residential premises or private vehicles) as well as the use of a covert human 
intelligence source, or informant.  
 

1.3 In addition, however, RIPA also regulates the interception of some types of 
communications data (the ‘who’, ‘when’ and ‘where’ of a communication, as 
opposed to the ‘what’ i.e. the content of what was said or written). While the 
interception of communications data is also covered by RIPA, it is subject to 
a separate overview and inspection regime by an entirely separate office: 
that of the Interception of Communications Commissioner. 
 

1.4 Notably, local authorities may only authorise the acquisition of the two less 
intrusive types of communications data: service use (the type of the 
communication, time sent and its duration) and subscriber information 
(including billing information). Under no circumstances are local authorities 
empowered to obtain traffic data under RIPA, ie information about where the 
communications were made or received. Similarly, local authorities may not 
intercept the content of any person’s communications and it is an offence to 
do so without lawful authority.    
 

1.5 The last report to this Cabinet, in March 2013, noted the safeguarding 
measures incorporated into the Protection of Freedoms Act 2013 which 
aimed to constrain local authorities’ recourse to RIPA-regulated surveillance. 
Some of those measures apply equally to communications data powers.   
 

2.0 The Protection of Freedoms Act: safeguards applied to 
Communications Data powers  
 

2.1 Since the Protection of Freedoms Act came into force, local authorities’ 
powers relating to communications data must – like those relating to covert 
surveillance - be subjected both to an internal application process and also to 
the justices at the Magistrates' Court. The requirements for judicial approval 
are that the judicial authority is satisfied that at the time of the grant or 
renewal there were reasonable grounds for believing that the actions 
proposed were reasonable and proportionate and that these grounds still 
remain. Further conditions must be satisfied in relation to the authorisation 
or notice in that amongst other things the application is be made by the 
correct person using the process laid out by the statutory framework. 
 

2.2 Although the requirement of judicial approval of a local authority 
authorisation or notice applies to applications to obtain communications 
data, there is no requirement that the "serious crime test" is met. This 
requirement that the offence being investigated is either punishable by a 
custodial sentence of six months or more or be concerned with the sale of 
alcohol or tobacco to a minor is to be applied only to directed surveillance 
and the use of a CHIS.      
 

Page 148



Page 3 of 6 

2.3 Members may have noted the introduction of a Communications Data Bill to 
Parliament in 2013. While this has yet to be enacted, it largely relates to the 
arrangements which communications providers may (or may not, depending 
on the outcome of the Bill) be required to put in place to enable enforcement 
authorities to access communications data more readily. It is not therefore 
dealt with in any detail here. 

3.0 Eastbourne Borough Council's recourse to RIPA: the annual returns  
 

3.1 In accordance with the relevant Codes of Practice, the Lawyer to the Council 
retains a central record of all RIPA applications and authorisations made by 
either this authority or by its investigative partners. Those records are held 
securely (although the redacted data thereon is freely available to people 
making FOI requests) and is reported quarterly to the Audit and Governance 
Committee in line with best practice.  
 

3.2 The annual returns compiled for the period 1/1/2013 to 31/12/2013 include 
the following data:  
 
RIPA applications for the use or conduct of a CHIS:  
Nil applications made by EBC  
Nil applications by partner organisations with which the authority is 
working on relevant matters 
 
RIPA applications for authorised surveillance:  
Nil applications made by EBC   
Nil applications made by partner organisations with which the authority is 
working on relevant matters. 
 
RIPA applications for the acquisition of communications data:  
Nil applications made by EBC  
Nil applications by partner organisations with which the authority is 
working on relevant matters 
 
 

3.3 The 2013 returns show that Eastbourne Borough Council's historically low 
usage of RIPA continues across the full range of enforcement activities 
governed by this legislation.  
 

3.3 This authority’s arrangements in respect of covert surveillance remains 
subject to inspection by the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner, who 
inspected this authority and gave it a favourable report in June 2013. 
Notably, the Interception of Communications Commissioner (the ICCO’) is an 
entirely separate inspectorate with responsibility for communications data. 
While the ICCO has not inspected this authority’s arrangements at time of 
writing, it has responsibility for doing so across the range of enforcing 
authorities in much the same way as the OSC.   
 

3.4 Both Commissioners report annually to Parliament and take a critical stance 
where they find inadequate policies and/or arrangements. In his most recent 
annual report, the ICCO noted various in those enforcement agencies which 
had recourse to their communications data powers. Where issues were noted 

Page 149



Page 4 of 6 

those appeared statistically more likely to come from authorities which did 
not rely on expertise from a third party to assist them in making 
communications data applications – hence the recommendation below.   
 

4.0 This authority's arrangements in relation to communications data: a 
new policy alongside recourse to the National Anti-Fraud Network, or 
‘NAFN’ 
 

4.1 This authority’s requirement of an annual audit of its RIPA policies, 
procedures and training was discharged by the Lawyer to the Council at the 
end of 2013 at the direction of the Senior Responsible Officer. In the context 
of a recent favourable write-up by the OSC of the authority’s arrangements 
in relation to covert surveillance and the use of CHIS, and given the ongoing 
nil returns with regard recourse to surveillance powers, no substantive 
changes were considered necessary other than an updating of the resources 
available to enforcement officers and to information on the website.  
 

4.2 It was however noted that – although this authority had not had recent 
recourse to its communications data powers – a formal policy on the 
acquisition and use of communications data would clarify matters. It was 
considered that a policy of ‘last resort’, which made provision for use of said 
powers only exceptionally and where stringent criteria were met, would be 
consistent with this authority’s approach to the other powers available to it 
under RIPA. That policy is appended hereto and in the interest of clarity 
makes basic provision for relevant roles and accountabilities should this sort 
of activity be deemed necessary on exceptional grounds.  
  

4.3 Four individual roles are required where local authorities seek to acquire 
communications data: the Applicant or investigator, who submits the 
application for communications data; the Designated Person, who objectively 
and independently considers the application; the Single Point of Contact, 
who is an accredited individual responsible for acquiring the data from the 
Communication Service provider and ensuring that the local authority acts in 
an informed and lawful manner, and the Senior Responsible Officer, who is 
responsible for the overall integrity of the process.  
  

4.4 It was considered that the Deputy Chief Executive was best placed to act as 
the SRA, while the Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer would be 
best placed to act in the role of Designated Person: a role which has a 
parallel with that of Authorising Officer. That left the role of the Single Point 
of Contact, or SPoC, and as a result it is proposed that this authority use the 
services of the National Anti Fraud Network, or ‘NAFN’ if or when needed.  
    

4.5 Like the majority of local authorities, this authority subscribes to NAFN: a not 
for profit organisation which provides advice and support across a range of 
enforcement areas. NAFN are in a position to provide assistance with 
applications to acquire communications data by acting as designated ‘Single 
Point of Contact’ for authorities at a nominal cost, thereby ensuring that 
consistency is achieved by those authorities who do not apply to the justices 
on a regular basis.  
  

4.6 Reportedly 87% of local authorities used NAFN to perform the SPoC function 
in relation to communications data and as a result appear to have more 

Page 150



Page 5 of 6 

consistently achieved good practice. Recourse to NAFN has therefore been 
built into the ‘last resort’ policy - NAFN charge on a case by case basis and 
the likelihood is that there will be little recourse to this investigative tool.  
 

5.0 Consultation 
 

5.1 Consultation has taken place with the Senior Responsible Officer for RIPA 
and with the Cabinet portfolio officer.  
 

6.0 Resource Implications 
 
None  
 

6.1 Financial 
 
None  
 

6.2 Staffing 
 
None 
 

7.0 Other Implications: Environmental, Human Rights, Community 
Safety, Youth, Anti-poverty. 
 

7.1 None. 
 

8.0 Conclusion  
 

8.1 Since RIPA was first introduced in 2000, local authorities have had to put in 
place robust arrangements which ensure that they are seen to deploy the 
protection it offers only proportionally and in situations where doing so is 
adjudged to be strictly necessary according to rigorous criteria.  
 

8.2 
 

This authority's covert surveillance policy includes rigorous safeguards to 
ensure that this authority engages in RIPA-regulated activity only as a 
measure of last resort. Those arrangements were noted with approval by the 
Surveillance Commissioner when his inspector attended in June 2013. It is 
proposed to roll out that same approach to this authority’s use of its 
communication data powers, and to ensure that – notwithstanding this 
authority’s consistently low recourse to its powers under RIPA – the 
authority’s arrangements continue to be reviewed and updated regularly. 
way.    
 
 

JULIAN OSGATHORPE 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 

Page 151



Page 6 of 6 

Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 

• The Regulatory and Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
• The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 
• Reports to Cabinet on RIPA from 2008 to 2013 
• Guidance issued by the Home Office and the Office of the Surveillance 

Commissioner, as well as the Interception of Communications Commissioner 
• Annual Reports of the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner and the 

Interception of Communications Commissioner 
• Other resources and guidance protected by copyright  

 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer 
listed above. 
 
 

 

 

Page 152



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Policy on the Acquisition and Disclosure of  
Communications Data  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Version Control 

Version 

Number 

Date Review 

Date 

Author Reason for 

new version 

01 Jan. 2014  Victoria Simpson 3 year review 

 

 

Last Updated : February 2014 
Victoria Simpson, Lawyer to the Council and Monitoring Officer 

victoria.simpson@eastbourne.gov.uk 

Page 153



 

  
Introduction 

 
1. Local authorities are empowered to acquire and use 

communications data in certain circumstances by the Regulation 
of Investigatory Powers Act (‘RIPA’) and related legislation. This 

provides a regulatory framework for certain types of surveillance 
and data acquisition carried out by local authorities to gather 

evidence of illegal activity. The Council is aware of the human 
rights concerns which require it to exercise its powers only in 

accordance with the law, in situations where doing so is a 
necessary and proportionate response of last resort.   

 
2. This authority has adopted a policy in relation to covert 
surveillance (both conducted pursuant to RIPA and outside it) 
which is available here: http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/about-
the-council/surveillance-and-ripa/.  

 
3. The Council has adopted a policy of not normally conducting 
covert surveillance but of doing so only as a last resort, where all 
other investigative options have been deemed insufficient. While 

each situation will be considered on its own merits and all 
relevant factors will be taken into account, covert surveillance 

will be considered only where deemed to be a proportionate 
response of last resort. A similarly rigourous approach is applied 

to communications data acquisition under RIPA.   
 

4. What is Communications Data, and what powers do local 
authorities have in relation to it? 

 

5. Communication data is information about a communication. It 
can show when a communication happened, where it came from 
and where it was going. It does not however include the content 
of a communication, and has therefore been described as the 

‘who, what and where’ but not the ‘what’, or substance, of the 
communication.    

 
6. Chapter 2 of Part 1 of RIPA allows local authorities to access 
communications data about an individual from any 
Communications Service Provider (CSP), such as a telephone or 
mobile phone service provider.  

 

Page 154



7. A new section 23A was added to RIPA by the Protection of 
Freedoms Act 2012. Just as with directed surveillance or use of a 
informant, or CHIS, an authorisation or notice to obtain 

communications data from a CSP shall not take effect until a 
Magistrate has made an order approving it. The magistrate must 

be satisfied that:  
 

a) There were reasonable grounds for the Designated Person 
(the person authorising the obtaining of the data) within the 

local authority to believe that obtaining communications data 
was necessary and proportionate and that there remain 

reasonable grounds for believing so.  
 

b) The Designated Person was of the correct seniority within the 
local authority in accordance the Regulation of Investigatory 

Powers (Communications Data) Order 2010 (SI 2010/480) i.e. 
Director, Head of Service, Service Manager or equivalent.  
 

c) The granting or renewal of the application was only for the 
prescribed type of communications data to be acquired for the 

prescribed purpose as set out in the above Order (i.e. subscriber 
and service use data (e.g. mobile phone subscriber information 

and itemized call records) to be acquired only for the purpose of 
preventing or detecting crime or preventing disorder). 

 
8. Policy and Procedure 
 

9. All activity invoking the powers conferred on this authority under 
RIPA are undertaken in accordance with this document and with 
regard to up to date and relevant law, including the following:  

• Human Rights Act 1998 
• Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
• Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 
• Data Protection Act 1998 
 

10. The Council in addition has regard to relevant official 
guidance and Codes of Practice, particularly those issued by the 
Home Office, the Interception of Communication Commissioner 
(ICCO), the Office of the Surveillance Commissioners (OSC), the 

Security Camera Commissioner and the Information 
Commissioner. Officers of the Council use the most up to date 
forms issued by the Home Office, which are available on their 
website. 

 

Page 155



11. Council officers also have recourse to other guidance and 

resources which have been approved by the Senior Responsible 
Officer in consultation with the Lawyer to the Council. 

Enforcement officers are required to contact the Lawyer to the 
Council or the Senior Responsible Officer for RIPA with any 

questions or requests for guidance on this topic.     
 

12. This authority subscribes to the National Anti 
Fraud Network and therefore benefits from recourse to 

appropriately trained experts who function as this authority’s 
Single Point of Contact insofar as Communications Data is 

concerned. Subscription to NAFN does not however obviate 
the need for expertise on this area within this organisation. 

The Designated Person role is carried out by the Monitoring 
Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer at this authority, while 

the Senior Responsible Officer is the Deputy Chief Executive.  
 
13. The following guiding principles shall form the basis of any 

covert surveillance activity undertaken by the Council:  
• Interception of Communications Dtaa occurs only where 
it is deemed absolutely necessary to achieve the desired 
aims. It is  undertaken only where it is proportionate to do so 

and in a manner that it is proportionate. 
• Adequate regard is had to individuals’ rights and 
freedoms, and attention is given to the possibility of collateral 
intrusion. 

• All authorisations are granted by appropriately trained 
and designated Designated Persons (‘DPs’), after obtaining 

judicial approval in accordance with the requirements of the 
law. 

 

 
Training and Review 

 
14. All Council officers involved in enforcement are 

appropriately trained to ensure that they understand their legal 
obligations and the framework in which their decisions are made. 
 

15. This policy shall be reviewed annually by the Senior 

Responsible Officer, in consultation with the Lawyer to the 
Council, in the light of the latest legal developments and changes 
to official guidance and codes of practice. 

 

Page 156



16. The operation of this policy shall be overseen by the 

Council’s Audit and Governance Committee, which shall receive 
regular Reports on this policy and its implementation.  

 
Conclusion 

 
17.  While the effective enforcement of criminal and regulatory 

legislation is vital, the Council only invokes its powers under 
RIPA as a last resort, where stringent criteria have been met.  

 
18. Adherence to this policy will ensure that where situations 

arise wherein the Council does elect to invoke the protection 
afforded by RIPA, it will do so proportionately and in such a way 

as to involve minimal intrusion into others’ lives. This will ensure 
that any legal challenge to the Council is avoided. 

 
19. Any questions relating to this policy, and any queries 
regarding the procedure, forms, guidance materials and/or law 

to be deployed in following it, should be addressed to the officers 
named below: 

 
 

Julian Osgathorpe, Deputy Chief Executive 
 

Victoria Simpson, Lawyer to the Council and Monitoring 
Officer 

 

Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Body: CABINET 

 

Date: 19 March 2014  

 

Subject: PAY POLICY STATEMENT UPDATE 

 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive 

 

Ward(s): ALL 

 

Purpose: To ask members to approve updates to the Pay Policy 

Statement produced in accordance with the requirement 

in the Localism Act 2011 

 

Contact: Becky Cooke, Strategic Organisational Development 

Manager, 01323 415106 

 

Recommendations: That Cabinet :  

 

1. notes and approves the rationale for changes to the 
content of the Pay Policy Statement and 

recommends it to be adopted by the Council 

 

2. notes and recommends that the amended Policy 
Statement is published on the Council’s website once 

it has been approved by Full Council. 

 

1.0 Introduction 

 

1.1 The Localism Act 2011 places an obligation on local authorities to be 

more accountable to the communities they serve.  Chapter 8 of the 

Act requires the Council to adopt and publish a Pay Policy Statement.  

 

1.2 In accordance with the legislation, a Pay Policy Statement was 

adopted and published in 2012/13, and updated last year for 2013/14. 

We are required to keep the statement up to date and it has now been 

reviewed to take account of the latest statistical data. The revised 

version is presented to Cabinet as Appendix One of this report for 

consideration and recommendation to full Council for its approval. It 

will then replace the current version on the Council’s website to meet 

the requirements of the Localism Act.  

 

2.0 Key changes to the Pay Policy Statement 

 

2.1 There have been a number of minor changes to reflect the current 

position. The other key changes are: 

 

2.2 The significant reduction in the length and breadth of the Pay Policy 

Statement. The elements that have been removed from the 

statements previously published since the inception of the Localism 

Act 2011, are those that offer context to the statistical data that we 

Agenda Item 13

Page 159



2 of 3 

are required to publish in accordance with legislation.  

 

2.3 These non statutory sections are lengthy and whilst they offer context 

they do become out of date and subject to close scrutiny in terms of 

accuracy and relevance. This has the potential to impact on the 

credibility of the Council’s commitment to offer as much transparency 

as it can in relation to matters of pay. 

 

2.4 Scrutiny of the website ‘hits’ on the Pay Policy Statement indicate very 

low numbers for the two years since the statement has been 

published. The inference being that the reduction in the statement will 

do nothing to dent any confidence in the Council’s commitment to be 

transparent in relation to pay.  

 

2.5 The Government has consulted on an updated Transparency Code with 

a greater breadth of information that we will be required to publish. It 

will be prudent to focus resources on the provision of our statutory 

obligations, rather than non obligatory contextual information.   

 

2.6 The shortened statement (from 35 pages to 12) does itself offer 

greater transparency in that the key information is more available, 

ensuring that any member of the public searching for the information 

has a concise and factual document to reference.  

 

2.7 Research of other local authority Pay Policy Statements reveals that 

the majority provide the statutory elements without the non statutory 

context.  

 

3.0 Financial and other implications 

 

3.1 There are positive financial implications in this report, in that less 

resource will be required to ensure the statement remains current and 

relevant, enabling a focus on the Council’s statutory obligations. 

 

4.0 Consultation 

 

4.1 CMT has discussed and agreed the content of the amended Policy 

Statement in a context of the Council wishing to provide as much 

transparency as it reasonably can in pay matters. 

 

4.2 

 

UNISON has also been consulted on the revised Pay Policy Statement. 

 

 

4.3 All those occupying posts where information relating to their roles is 

published have been given the opportunity to raise any concerns. 

 

5.0 Conclusion 

 

 Cabinet is asked to:  

 

Approve the revised Pay Policy Statement and recommend it for 

approval by Council. 

Page 160



 3 

 

Approve its publication on the Council’s website following approval 

by Full Council.  

 

Julian Osgathorpe 

Deputy Chief Executive 

 
   

Background Papers:  

 

None 
 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

Email: Human.Resources@eastbourne.gov.uk | Telephone: 01323 410000  Page 1 
 
 

 

  

PAY POLICY STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

2014/2015 

Version Control 

Version 

number 

Date Review 

date 

Owner Reason for new version 

01 March 

2014  

December  

2014 

Becky Cooke 

Strategic 

Organisational 

Development 

Manager 

Statement required by the Localism 

Act 2011 

 

Contents 

 

 

Page 

1 Opening Statement 2 

   

2 Remuneration of statutory and non-

statutory Chief Officer posts, deputy 
chief officers and Monitoring Officer  

 

3 

3 Remuneration of lowest paid and other 

employees 

8 

   

4 Pay Relationships  10 

   

5 Decision making on pay 11 

   

6 Amendments to this pay policy 
statement 

11 

   

7 Publication of and access to information 
 

11 

 

 
 
 

Page 163



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

Email: Human.Resources@eastbourne.gov.uk | Telephone: 01323 410000  Page 2 
 
 

1 OPENING STATEMENT 

1.1 Transparency and autonomy 

 

The Council recognises and welcomes the aim behind this pay policy 

statement to ensure that its approach to pay is open and accessible for 

residents and to enable local taxpayers to take an informed view of whether 

local decisions on all aspects of remuneration are fair and make the best use 

of public funds.  

 

It also welcomes the government’s recognition that each local authority 

remains an individual employer in its own right, and, as such, has the 

autonomy to make decisions on pay that are appropriate to local 

circumstances and which deliver value for money for local taxpayers. 

 
This policy statement has been produced in accordance with Sections 38 to 

43 of the Localism Act 2011 (the Act). 

 

The Secretary of State has produced guidance on the Act’s provisions relating 

to openness and accountability in local pay, which local authorities must have 

regard to in preparing and approving their annual pay policy statements, and 

the Council’s statement takes account of this guidance as well as the 

provisions of the Act.  

1.2 Status of policy statement 

 

The pay policy statement will be reviewed on an annual basis and revisions 

adopted for implementation by the Council at the start of each subsequent 

financial year.  

 

The pay policy statement can also be amended during the course of any 

financial year by a resolution of the full Council. If it is amended during the 

year to which it relates, the revised version of the statement will be 

published as soon as reasonably possible after the amendment is approved 

by the Council. 

 
 

Page 164



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

Email: Human.Resources@eastbourne.gov.uk | Telephone: 01323 410000  Page 3 
 
 

2. REMUNERATION OF STATUTORY AND NON-STATUTORY CHIEF 
OFFICERS, MONITORING OFFICER AND DEPUTY CHIEF OFFICERS 

 

2.1  Remuneration of Chief Officers (Statutory and Non Statutory) and 
Deputy Chief Officers 

 
This section covers the Council’s policies in relation to the remuneration of its 

senior employees, including: 

 

• Its Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service; 

• Its first tier managers (i.e. the Chief Officers who report to and are directly 

accountable to the Chief Executive) – this includes both statutory Chief 

Officers and non-statutory Chief Officers; 

• Its Monitoring Officer (i.e. the officer responsible for ensuring the Council’s 

compliance with the law in all its activities); 

• Its second tier managers (i.e. the Deputy Chief Officers and senior staff who 

report to a first tier manager). 

2.2 Overall Policy on Remuneration for Senior Roles  

 

The Council’s overall approach to remuneration for its senior employees is based 

on: 

a) Compliance with equal pay, discrimination and other relevant employment 

legislation and 

 

b) ensuring that its overall remuneration packages align broadly with market 

norms for relevant local government and public sectors, taking account of: 

o pay levels in the local area, including neighbouring public sector 

employers; 

o the relative cost of living in the local area, including housing costs; 

o the responsibilities and accountabilities of specific posts which may be 

very demanding  

 

The Council seeks to maintain this overall approach by monitoring pay data 

provided by the Joint National Councils (JNCs) for Chief Officers and Chief 

Executives, the Local Government Association/Employers, Local Economy database 

resources and other pay surveys. 

 

In terms of pay differentials, the Council recognises that:  

• the role of Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service (HoPS) leads the 

organisation’s workforce and has the greatest level of accountability, and so 

warrants the highest pay level in the organisation; 

Page 165



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

Email: Human.Resources@eastbourne.gov.uk | Telephone: 01323 410000  Page 4 
 
 

• the Deputy Chief Executive, furnished with a level of accountability and 

leadership obligation second only to the Chief Executive/HoPS, warrants the 

second highest pay level in the organisation. 

 

At Chief Officer level: 

• The Council recognises that all its Chief Officers have a collective and 

corporate responsibility for contributing to and delivering the overall strategy 

of the organisation.  Therefore, it offers the same level of remuneration to 

all Chief Officers. 

• This, unless market forces as described at 2.2 b) above demand a 

supplement to the remuneration package to ensure that the Council can 

source sufficient calibre of individual to meet its strategic needs (see also 

2.8 below) 

 

At deputy chief officer level, the Council recognises that the demands on and 

accountabilities of different management roles vary considerably, and seeks to 

align pay levels with the relative importance and responsibilities of roles using a 

process of job evaluation. Remuneration package details are published on the 

Council’s website at:  http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/about-the-

council/information-requests/open-data/ 

2.3 The Remuneration Offered to Senior Employees 

 

At Chief Executive/Chief Officer/ Deputy Chief Officer level, the Council offers an 

annual salary and access to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  Any 

other benefits are set out below. 

 

The Council does not offer performance related payments or bonuses to its Chief 

Officers.  Remuneration package details are published on the Council’s website at:   

http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/about-the-council/information-requests/open-data/ 

2.4 Annual salaries 

Annual salary levels for senior employees are set in accordance with the overall 

principles set out in section 2.2 above.  At Chief Executive/Chief Officer/Deputy 

Chief Officer/Monitoring Officer/other senior manager level, they consist of a grade 

range which is determined locally by the Council. This grade range consists of a 

number of incremental salary points, through which employees may progress until 

the top of the grade is reached.  

2.5 Remuneration upon appointment 

The Council’s policy is to appoint new employees at the lowest point on the scale 

for the post unless, exceptionally, a higher pay point is needed to secure the 

recruitment.  In the case of Chief Officers, a decision to pay initially above the 

lowest point on the scale remains subject to the endorsement of a panel/ 

committee nominated by the Council to act on its behalf. 

Page 166



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

Email: Human.Resources@eastbourne.gov.uk | Telephone: 01323 410000  Page 5 
 
 

2.6 Pay progression  

Pay progression is normally by annual increment, payable from 1 April annually. 

 

Pay progression is based on the period of time the employee has served in that 

grade, subject to satisfactory performance as evidenced through the Council’s 

performance appraisal scheme.  

 

The Council’s performance appraisal scheme sets out the standards/criteria which 

must be met in order for an employee to receive any pay progression, the roles 

and responsibilities of managers and employees in this process and the monitoring 

and review arrangements to ensure this is applied fairly and equitably across the 

Council.  

2.7 Pay awards 

The level of any increase will be determined by the Council, and will take into 

account a number of factors including that agreed by Joint National Councils (JNCs) 

for Chief Executives/Chief Officers or National Joint Council (NJC) for Local 

Government Services (as appropriate for the category of senior manager), the 

prevailing economic conditions, Government public sector pay policy and the 

Council’s financial position and consultation with the Trade Union.  

2.8  Market Supplements 

The Council recognises that pressures in the national or regional labour market can 

mean that pay levels for a particular category of manager in a particular function 

(e.g. Chief Finance Officer) can be such that the Council’s normal pay level would 

not be sufficiently competitive to enable it to recruit or retain a manager in that 

function. In that case, the Council is prepared to review the remuneration package 

and to pay salary points at a level commensurate with the market in order to 

secure the skills’ set required to meet the Council’s needs. 

2.9  Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

The Council offers its most senior employees access to the Local Government 

Pension Scheme, in accordance with the statutory provisions of the scheme, on the 

same basis as all of its employees.  Any pension payments made to its senior 

employees on termination of employment either on grounds of redundancy, in the 

interests of the efficiency of the service or on grounds of ill health will be made 

within the statutory terms of the LGPS. 

 

The employer’s contribution rate for senior employees who join the scheme is the 

same as for all other employees. 

 

The discretions which the Council is able to apply under the scheme upon 

termination of employment are the same for senior employees as for all other 

employees who are LGPS members.  

Page 167



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

Email: Human.Resources@eastbourne.gov.uk | Telephone: 01323 410000  Page 6 
 
 

2.10 Payments on Termination of Employment 

The Council’s payments to managers whose employment is terminated on grounds 

of redundancy or in the interests of the efficiency of the service will be in 

accordance with the policy the Council has adopted for all its employees in relation 

to the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary 

Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006.  

 

Other than payments pursuant to the LGPS (including the exercise of the Council’s 

discretions) or payments in accordance with the Council’s policies under the Local 

Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) 

(England and Wales) Regulations 2006, the Council’s policy is not to make any 

other termination payments to its senior employees, other than where it has 

received specific legal advice to the effect that a payment may be necessary to 

eliminate risk of claims against the Council. 

2.11 “Earn back” pay 

The Council has considered the suggestions in the Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the 

Public Sector, published in March 2011, about the introduction of “earn back” pay. 

The introduction of “earn back” pay within the Council’s current systems as a way 

of relating pay levels to performance and contribution will not be progressed at the 

present time but may be given further consideration in the future. 

 

2.12  Re-engagement of Chief Officers 

 
Re-engagement of Chief Officers who have left Eastbourne Borough 
Council with a severance or termination payment: 

2.12.1  Re-engagement as employees 

(1) Subject to any relevant provisions in employment and equalities legislation, 

the Council’s policy is not to re- employ [as a Chief Executive or Chief 

Officer/ in any capacity] any former Chief Executive or Chief Officer who left 

the Council for any reason other than compulsory redundancy, and was in 

receipt of a severance or termination payment, for a period of three years 

from the date of termination of employment.  This policy may be varied in 

exceptional circumstances which are approved by a delegated 

panel/committee of Council Members acting on behalf of Full Council and 

advised by appropriate persons including the Monitoring Officer, except 

where the Council’s Monitoring Officer is a Chief Officer. 

(2) Where a Chief Executive/ Chief Officer’s employment has been terminated 

compulsorily on grounds of redundancy, they will not be re-employed in the 

same or a similar post for a period of one year following the date of 

termination of employment. If they are re-employed in another post within 

four weeks after the effective date of redundancy, they will lose their right to 

a redundancy payment, including any enhancements under the provisions of 

the LGPS or the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) 

Page 168



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

Email: Human.Resources@eastbourne.gov.uk | Telephone: 01323 410000  Page 7 
 
 

(Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006.  Any 

re-employment will be subject to the Council following the strict application 

of the normal process of competitive selection for employment. 

(3)  Any former Chief Executive or Chief Officer who is employed by Eastbourne 

Borough Council and who has previously received a severance, termination 

or redundancy payment from this or any other Council or related body will 

not have previous service counted when determining any further 

entitlements to notice periods, sickness payments, annual leave or other 

benefits/entitlements based on continuous service. 

2.12.2  Re-engagement under a contract for services 

The Council’s policy is not to re- engage under a contract for services any 

former Chief Executive or Chief Officer who left the Council for any reason and 

was in receipt of a redundancy, severance or termination payment, for a period 

of three years from the cessation of employment.  This policy may be varied in 

exceptional circumstances which are approved by a panel/committee convened 

by the Council to act in this matter and advised by persons including the 

Council’s Monitoring Officer, except where the Monitoring Officer is a Chief 

Officer. 

2.12.3  Employment of those in receipt of an LGPS pension 

General: 

In the unlikely event that the Council employs as a Chief Executive or Chief 

Officer a person who is in receipt of a pension under the LGPS, the rules on 

abatement of pensions adopted by the Council’s Administering Authority for the 

LGPS, pursuant to Regulations 70 and 71 of the the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 must be applied. Such persons 

would only be employed following strict application of the normal process of 

competitive selection for employment. 

 

Flexible retirement: 

The LGPS regulations permit the Council to offer flexible retirement to 

employees (including Chief Officers) aged 55 or over, so that they can reduce 

their hours of work, and receive a pension in respect of accrued years in the 

scheme. 

2.13 Publication of Details of Employee Remuneration 

 

In accordance with 39 (5) of the Localism Act, this policy will be published on the 

Council’s website. It will also be published on the Council’s intranet, known as 

InSite.  The Council is also required to publish information about the remuneration 

of senior officers under The Accounts and Audit (Amendment No. 2) (England) 

Regulations 2009, and the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on 

Data Transparency, issued under Section 2 of the Local Government Planning and 

Land Act 1980.  This information can be obtained from the Council’s Statement of 

Accounts.

Page 169



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

EBC statutory pay policy statement Page 8 

 

3.  REMUNERATION OF LOWEST PAID AND OTHER EMPLOYEES 

This section sets out the Council’s policies in relation to: 
• The remuneration of its lowest-paid employees, as defined in this pay 

policy statement; 

3.1  Definition of Lowest Paid Employees 

 
The definition of the “lowest-paid employees” adopted by the Council for the 
purposes of this statement is as follows: 
 
The lowest paid employees within the Council are those permanent workers who 
are paid on the Council’s lowest hourly pay rate. 
 
The Council considers this to be the most appropriate definition as this is the 
lowest pay point/pay level on its substantive pay structure and which normally 
applies to new entrants to the lowest graded jobs within the organisation. 
 
The current annual full-time equivalent value of this pay level, based on a 37 
hours’ standard working week as at 31 March 2014, is £12366.73. 
 
The Council has had regard to guidance issued by the Local Government 
Association and JNC for Local Authority Chief Executives in agreeing this 
definition. 
 
The Council has consulted with the recognised trade unions on this definition 
and has had regard to any comments made by them. 

3.2  Remuneration of Lowest Paid Employees  

 
For the purposes of this policy statement, remuneration includes the employee’s 
basic annual salary and any allowances or other similar payments, benefits in 
kind, any increases or enhancements to any pension entitlement and any 
termination or other severance payments.  

3.2.1 Pay structure  

The basic pay of the Council’s lowest paid employees comprises a core grade 
extrapolated from the national pay spine as set out in the National Joint Council 
for Local Government Services National Agreement on Pay and Conditions of 
Service. This grade range consists of a number of salary points through which 
employees may progress until the top of the grade is reached.  

3.2.2 Pay Progression  

Pay progression is normally by annual increment, payable from 1 April annually. 
 
Pay progression is based on the period of time the employee has served in that 
grade, subject to satisfactory performance and as evidenced through the 
Council’s performance appraisal scheme 
 

Page 170



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

EBC statutory pay policy statement Page 9 

 

The Council’s performance appraisal scheme sets out the standards/criteria 
which must be met in order for an employee to receive any pay progression, the 
roles and responsibilities of managers and employees in this process and the 
monitoring and review arrangements to ensure this is applied fairly and 
equitably across the Council. 

3.2.3 Annual Pay Review 

The basic pay of the Council’s lowest paid employees is reviewed annually, with 
any adjustment, cost-of-living, or other, increase normally applied on 1 April in 
each year.  The level of any increase will be determined by the Council, and will 
take into account a number of factors including that agreed by the National 
Joint Council for Local Government Services, the prevailing economic conditions, 
Government public sector pay policy and the Council’s financial position and 
consultation with the Trade Union. 

3.2.4 Market Supplements  

Where the Council considers that pay rates for specific posts are insufficient to 
enable it to recruit and/or retain staff with the required knowledge, skills and 
expertise, it may authorise the use of market supplements (Recruitment and 
Retention uplifts to pay within the extended grade band for the relevant post), 
in accordance with the terms of the relevant Council policy  

3.2.5 Pension provision 

In common with all other employees, the Council’s lowest paid employees may 
participate in the Local Government Pension Scheme in accordance with the 
statutory terms of that scheme.  
 
Any increases in or enhancements to the pension entitlement of the Council’s 
lowest paid employees will be made in accordance with the discretions available 
to it under the statutory provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme, 
as exercised by the Council and set out in the relevant policy statement  

3.2.6 Termination or Severance Payments 

Any termination or severance payments made by the Council to its lowest paid 
employees, either on grounds of redundancy, in the interests of the efficiency of 
the service or on grounds of permanent ill-health, will be made in accordance 
with the statutory terms of the Local Government Pension Scheme, as 
applicable, and/or in accordance with the discretions available to it under that 
Scheme or under the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) 
(Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006, as set out 
in the relevant policy statement.  
 
Other than payments pursuant to the LGPS (including the exercise of the 
Council’s discretions) or payments in accordance with the Council’s policies 
under the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary 
Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006, the Council’s policy is 
not to make any other termination or severance payments to its lowest paid 
employees, other than where it has received specific legal advice to the effect 
that a payment may be necessary to eliminate risk of claims against the 
Council. 

Page 171



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

EBC statutory pay policy statement Page 10 

 

 
Any proposal to offer a severance payment of £100,000 or more to a member of 
staff leaving the organisation will be referred to full Council for approval. The 
information presented to full Council will clearly set out the components of the 
particular severance package. This may include salary paid in lieu of notice, 
statutory redundancy compensation, enhanced compensation paid in 
accordance with the Council’s policies under Local Government (Early 
Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2006, pension entitlements (including those resulting from the 
exercise of the Council’s policies on Local Government Pension Scheme 
discretions), payments in lieu of untaken holiday and any bonuses, fees or 
allowances paid.  
 

4 PAY RELATIONSHIPS 

 
This section sets out the Council’s overall approach to ensuring pay levels are 
fairly and appropriately dispersed across the organisation, including the current 
pay multiple which applies within the Authority, and its policy toward 
maintaining or reaching a specific pay multiple in the future.  
 
Under the provisions of the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities 
on Data Transparency, issued by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government under Section 2 of the Local Government Planning and Land Act 
1980, the Council is required to publish its “pay multiple”, i.e. the ratio between 
the highest paid salary and median average salary of the whole of the local 
authority’s workforce. The pay multiple, based on base salary for the financial 
year ending 31 March 2014, using the median is: 4.78. (No change from last 
year) 
 
The median salary is defined in the following paragraph: 
 

The median average salary is the salary value at which 50% of the 
salaries which apply to the whole of the local authority’s workforce are 
below that salary value and 50% of the salaries are above it. The lowest 
pay point in the overall salary range which has been used by the Council 
in calculating the median average salary is that which applies to its 
lowest paid employees, as defined in section 2 of this pay policy 
statement. 

 
The Council also calculates a pay multiple using a mean salary.  For the financial 
year ending 31 March 14, this is 4.22 compared to 4.28 in the previous year. 
 
The Council considers that the pay multiples, as identified above, represent an 
appropriate, fair and equitable internal pay relationship between the highest 
salary and that which applies to the rest of the workforce and will monitor and 
have regard to these multiples in future reviews of salary, both post specific and 
corporate, to ensure these are maintained.  
 
The reasons for this are:  

Page 172



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

EBC statutory pay policy statement Page 11 

 

• It reflects the aspirations of Eastbourne Borough Council to promote and 
maintain a more egalitarian organisational structure than that of many 
public and private sector peer organisations 

• It continues to enable this Council to recruit and retain high calibre 
employees to meet the changing needs of the local community. 

 
 

5 DECISION MAKING ON PAY 

 
The provisions of this pay policy statement will apply to any determination 
made by the Council in the relevant financial year in relation to the 
remuneration, or other terms and conditions, of a chief officer of the Authority 
and of its lowest paid employees, as defined in this statement, and other 
employees who are paid more than the lowest paid employees but who are not 
chief officers.  
 
The Council will ensure that the provisions of this pay policy statement are 
properly applied and fully complied with in making any such determination. 
 
This pay policy statement has been approved by the full Council of the 
Authority.  
 
Any proposal to offer a new chief officer appointment on terms and conditions 
which include a total remuneration package of £100,000 or more, including 
salary, bonuses, fees or allowances which would routinely be payable to the 
appointee and any benefits in kind to which the officer would be entitled as a 
result of their employment (but excluding employer’s pension contributions), 
will be referred to the full Council for approval before any such appointment is 
advertised or before any such offer is made to a particular candidate. 
 

6 AMENDMENTS TO THIS PAY POLICY STATEMENT 

 
This pay policy statement relates to the financial year 2014-15. 
 
The Council may agree any amendments to this policy statement during the 
financial year to which it relates in accordance with the decision-making 
arrangements set out within Section 7 of this policy statement. 
 
 

7  PUBLICATION OF AND ACCESS TO PAY POLICY 

INFORMATION 

 
The Council will publish this pay policy statement on its website at 
www.eastbourne.gov.uk and on its intranet, known as InSite, as soon as is 
reasonably practicable after it has been approved by the Council.  Any 
subsequent amendments to this pay policy statement made during the financial 
year to which it relates will be similarly published. 

Page 173



APPENDIX ONE 

Human Resources - Statutory Pay Policy Statement 
 

 

EBC statutory pay policy statement Page 12 

 

 
The information required to be published by the Council in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on 
Data Transparency, issued under Section 2 of the Local Government Planning 
and Land Act 1980, and in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts 
and Audit (Amendment No. 2) (England) Regulations 2009, is available on its 
website at www.eastbourne.gov.uk and via InSite. 

 

The Council’s policies in relation to the exercise of discretions under the Local 
Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2006 and under the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007, as 
referred to in this policy statement, are available on request from the Strategic 
Organisational Development Manager. 
 
For further information about this pay policy statement, please contact the 
Council as follows:  
 
Strategic Organisational Development Manager 
Eastbourne Borough Council 
1 Grove Road 
Eastbourne 
BN21 4TW 
 
01323 410000. 

 

Page 174



Job Title Department

FTE 

Salary 

(£)

Recruitment & 

Retention 

provisions

Any Car 

Allowance 

(£)
(£) Any other 

allowance Description of Role

Head of Corporate Development Corporate Services £50 - 55K 2832.00

To develop and deliver comprehensive and high quality services to the Council and community in 

accordance with Strategic Change programme, Community Strategy themes and strategic priorities, 

on time and within budget. Specifically, to lead on corporate performance management, aligning 

people strategy, constitutional and democratic processes to meet the needs of the Council.

Head of Customer First Corporate Services £50 - 55k 2832.00

To develop and deliver comprehensive and high quality services to the Council and community in 

accordance with the the Strategic Change programme, Community Strategy themes and strategic 

priorities, on time and within budget.  Specifically, to lead on the ongoing development of the 

Customer First structure and ways of working, delivering high quality customer services and setting 

clear and effective parameters for service delivery to meet changing organisational needs.

Financial Services Manager Corporate Services £50 - 55K Yes Casual mileage

To manage the Financial Management Division in providing a fit for purpose range of accounting, 

budgeting and related accountancy services to budget holders, cost centre managers, service unit 

heads, corporate management team and Members of the Council. To act as deputy Section 151 

Officer to the Council.

Revenues & Benefits Manager Community £50 - 55K Yes Casual mileage

To plan for, develop and lead in delivering an improved, customer focused Revenues and Benefits 

service, deriving organisational efficiencies and working through partnership to improve outcomes for 

those we serve.

Lawyer to the Council and Monitoring 

Officer  (Jobshare) Corporate Services £50 - 55K 2562.00

To act as Monitoring Officer to the Council in accordance with the 1989 Local Government and 

Housing Act and other relevant statute.  To manage and deliver solutions in matters legal to meet the 

changing needs of the Council, to agreed standards and within resources.

Strategic Housing Manager Community £45 - 50K 2562.00

To develop and deliver the Council’s housing responsibilities and functions, commissioning or 

providing comprehensive and high quality housing services to the Council, Eastbourne’s residents and 

tenants on time, within budget, and in line with national policy and local Community priorities as set 

out in the Community Strategy and the Corporate Plan.

Executive Director - Towner Art Gallery 

(FTC) Tourism & Leisure £60 - 65K
To lead Towner, delivering its vision and the overall strategy, policy development and operational 

management of the Centre itself and the move to Trust status project.

Artistic Director - Theatres Tourism & Leisure £50 - 55K Yes Lease Car
To lead on development and management of a balanced entertainment programme to meet changing 

strategic, customer and financial needs of the Theatres and wider Council.

General Manager -Theatres Tourism & Leisure £45 - 50K Essential 102*
To manage all operational Theatre matters, including overall staffing, budgetary and facilities' 

elements to ensure maximum value for money for residents.  

Sports & Leisure Manager Tourism & Leisure £40 - 45K Essential 
To manage the community sports and leisure provision within the borough and manage relationships 

with contractors delivering agreed services in Leisure and Catering, as appropriate.  

Tourism Development Manager Tourism & Leisure £45 - 50K Essential 

To manage and develop Tourism Marketing and related business strategy, including Heritage and 

Museum Services and Devonshire Park Catering.  Developing external funding and inward 

investment, to maximise the economic impact of tourism across the Borough in partnership with the 

other Council Services and the local community.

Community Services Manager Community £35 - 40K Casual mileage

To oversee, coordinate and act as broker in the Council’s work with local communities and 

neighbourhoods, taking forward the Big Society agenda through a programme of neighbourhood 

management and capacity building, leading on the development of effective partnerships and delivery 

mechanisms.

Community Strategy & Involvement 

Manager Community £35 - 40K Casual mileage

To lead on work with local communities of interest, the Big Society agenda and the development of 

effective partnerships to create inclusive communities. To ensure mechanisms are in place to 

empower local people to influence service design and delivery.  To advise senior management on 

organisational structures and processes so that they are responsive to communities needs and to 

provide evidence of how community empowerment helps to deliver efficient and effective services 

and stronger, more dynamic communities.

ICT Manager (FTC) Corporate Services £40 - 45K Casual mileage

To provide operational ICT management capacity during a period of transformation for the council, 

managing the day to day ICT service delivered in partnership with Steria, the council’s ICT service 

delivery partner, and working with Steria and/or others to ensure successful implementation of key 

ICT infrastructure projects. 

Casual mileage

APPENDIX TWO    Deputy Chief Officer remuneration in EBC

Page 1 Pay Policy Statement 2013

P
age 175



Corporate Property Manager Chief Executive £45 - 50K Yes Casual mileage

To lead and manage on Estates and Property matters, developing and implementing the Council’s 

asset management strategy and working towards building a sustainable, self financing model for 

asset management.

Internal Audit Manager Corporate Services £35 - 40K Casual mileage

To deliver an effective and high quality Internal Audit Service to Eastbourne BC and its stakeholders 

in accordance with the Council's Community Strategy Themes, corporate priorities and Council 

values.  To consult on, manage and ensure regular review and update of a Strategic Risk Register for 

the Council to reflect changing organisational needs.

Strategic Projects Co-ordinator Corporate Services £30 - 35K Essential 
To provide professional strategic advice and financial guidance on strategic or corporate projects and 

procurement exercises to the Council, its members and officers.  

Events Development Manager Tourism & Leisure £30 - 35K Lease Car 375.92**

To manage a three year rolling programme of Events for Eastbourne, including planning, partner 

engagement, design and development of innovative Events within agreed resources and to agreed 

standards.

*First Aider Payment

**Working Time Regulations Opt Out Monitoring Officer is deemed a Chief Officer role for the purposes of the Localism Act and is referenced accordingly under Section 2 of the Pay Policy Statement.

Page 2 Pay Policy Statement 2013

P
age 176



APPENDIX THREE

FTE FTE FTE 

Body Body Name Name Job Title Service Area Payband Payband Main purpose of job

Min Max
Local 

Government 

21UC 

Eastbourne Borough 

Council

Mr Robert 

Cottrill

Chief Executive Chief Executives 1 100000 104999 To exercise the duties and responsibilities of the Head of Paid Service in delivering fit for purpose services to appropriate standards within 

legislative and regulatory frameworks.  To ensure that all the elected members of the Council have access to and receive appropriate and 

professional advice.  To provide leadership and direction to Officers of the Council, promoting a customer focused and performance driven 

culture which supports our sustainable community strategy, meets changing strategic objectives and responds to the priority needs of the 

community it serves. To lead, manage and develop the Corporate Management Team and workforce to secure a corporate supportive of 

Council's members and consistent with the Council's Principles, strategic priorities and the Code of Conduct.  To represent the Council and its 

Cabinet in dealing with partner organisations and to promote community and regional well-being and cohesion.  To seek and promote cost 

effective and efficient delivery of services within available procurement models.

Headcount 410 Employees at 1 April 2013.

Local 

Government 

21UC 

Eastbourne Borough 

Council

Mr Julian 

Osgathorpe

Deputy Chief 

Executive

Corporate Services 1 95000     

(*see 

footnote 

below)

99999 (*see 

footnote 

below)

To support the Chief Executive, Cabinet and Executive in delivering our sustainable community strategy, meeting changing strategic objectives 

and responding to the priority needs of the wider community.  To promote positive engagement with and robust delivery of the objectives of our  

corporate change and improvement programme, DRIVE.  As a member of the Corporate Management Team, to ensure robust corporate 

performance management and to support Members of the Council in developing a clear strategy and vision for the authority.  To deputise for the 

Chief Executive in managing the Council's services.  To achieve the Council's corporate priority objectives and strategic goals, providing 

leadership and customer focus in the development  and delivery of: a. medium term financial strategy and co-ordination of financial planning, 

management and audit systems within the Council; b.  efficient and effective use of resources; c.  effective departmental management of 

designated corporate and support services. To build positive working relationships with Members of the Council in translating their vision into 

deliverable strategy, policy and process.  

To act as lead officer on major “cross-cutting” corporate or strategic initiatives as directed by Chief Executive.  Specifically to take 

responsibility for the Council’s Principles and its corporate strategic priority for finance. 

Headcount 163 Employees in Corporate Services at 1 April 2013.

Local 

Government 

21UC 

Eastbourne Borough 

Council

Mr Alan 

Osborne

Chief Finance 

Officer

Corporate Services 1 85000  (*see 

footnote 

below)

89999  

(*see 

footnote 

below)

To develop and deliver comprehensive and high quality strategic and operational financial services to the Council and community in accordance 

with Sustainable Community Strategy themes, the Council’s constitution and the Council Plan.  To carry responsibility, as the Statutory Officer 

(S151) to the Council, for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs including the provision of financial advice to Members, the 

Chief Executive and Directors and the ‘proper stewardship’ of Council Funds.  Accordingly, to secure good financial management across the 

organisation in accordance with Council’s Financial Regulations and standards. To manage delegated corporate projects, strategies or 

initiatives, as required.  To lead and manage relevant financial services within the Council including Internal Audit services with specific 

responsibility for Anti-Money Laundering activities. To sit on and contribute to decision making and recommendations made by the Corporate 

Management Team alongside the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and other senior officers who may, from time to time, sit on that 

body.

Headcount 27 Employees in Financial Services at 1 April 2013 (included in the Corporate Services numbers).

Local 

Government 

21UC 

Eastbourne Borough 

Council

Mr 

Jefferson 

Collard

Senior Head of 

Development

Development 1 65000 69999 To develop, plan and deliver comprehensive, customer focused and high quality development services to the Council and to the community in 

accordance with Community Strategy and Corporate strategic priorities. To act as advocate on behalf of the Council in relevant national and 

regional negotiations, marketing contacts, funding bids and in interactions with external partners, businesses, Government and other agencies 

as applicable. To set clear and effective parameters for service delivery to meet changing organisational needs.  To lead by example and take 

active responsibility for delegated corporate projects, strategies or initiatives.  To act as the Council’s lead officer for town and district 

development fora and relevant strategies and initiatives. To manage the Council's property portfolio and the asset management team.

Headcount 15 Employees in Development at 1 April 2013.

Local 

Government 

21UC 

Eastbourne Borough 

Council

Mr Ian 

Fitzpatrick

Senior Head of 

Community

Community 1 65000 69999 To develop, plan and deliver comprehensive, customer focused and high quality community services for the Council and to residents in 

accordance with Community Strategy and Corporate strategic priorities.  To act as advocate on behalf of the Council in relevant national and 

regional negotiations, funding bids and in interactions with external partners, businesses, Government and other agencies as applicable. To act 

as the Council’s lead officer for key partnerships, including Crime Reduction, Health and Homelessness.  To drive the Council’s objectives for 

the housing Arms Length Management Organisation and derive best value from Wealden and Eastbourne LifeLine Limited.  To deliver relevant 

strategies, such as that for Culture, and initiatives including Housing Benefits Improvement Plan and outreach activities for young people in the 

borough. 

Headcount 86 Employees in Community at 1 April 2013.

Local 

Government 

21UC 

Eastbourne Borough 

Council

Ms Tracey 

McNulty

Senior Head of 

Tourism & 

Leisure

Tourism & Leisure 1 65000 69999 To develop, plan and deliver comprehensive, customer focused and high quality Tourism and Leisure services for the Council and to residents 

in accordance with Community Strategy and Corporate strategic priorities. To act as advocate and promote Eastbourne Borough Council 

actively in national and regional marketing, via funding bids, exploiting networking fora and other interactions with external partners, businesses, 

Government and other agencies as applicable.  To set clear and effective parameters for service delivery to meet changing organisational 

needs.  To lead by example and take active responsibility for delegated corporate projects, strategies or initiatives.  To drive the Council’s 

objectives for growth, affordability and diversity in tourism activity, Theatres and Towner services and Events. To lead on relevant strategies and 

initiatives, including those for Tourism and Culture in the borough. 

Headcount 158 Employees in Tourism & Leisure at 1 April 2013.

Local 

Government 

21UC 

Eastbourne Borough 

Council

Mr Henry 

Branson

Senior Head of 

Infrastructure

Corporate Services 1 60000 64999 To develop, plan and deliver comprehensive, customer focused and high quality services for the Council and to residents in accordance with 

Community Strategy and Corporate strategic priorities. To set clear and effective parameters for service delivery to meet changing organsiation 

needs. To lead by example and take active responsibility for delegated corporate IT and change projects, strategies or initiatives, leading on 

Transformation and Agile change programmes.  To have overall responsibility for the development, planning and delivery of the Customer First 

structure and ways of working.

Headcount 82 Employees in Infrastructure at 1 April 2013 (included in Corporate Services numbers).

* the Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer are shared roles with other organisations (Eastbourne Homes Ltd and Lewes District Council respectively) and therefore jointly funded.  EBC pays contribution to this salary. 

(Minimum 

contracted 

hours)

Human Resources, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW Email: human.resources@eastbourne.gov.uk Tel: 01323 410000

P
age 177



P
age 178

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Housing Futures [KD]
	071 Housing Futures appendix 2

	8 Housing and Economic Development Project [KD]
	9 Corporate Plan 2014/15 refresh [BPF]
	091 Corporate Plan working draft

	10 Priority Cycle Routes [KD]
	11 East Sussex Joint Waste Strategy 2014 - 2025 [KD]
	111 ES Joint WasteStrategy app 1

	12 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) [KD]
	121 RIPA draft Communications Data Policy app 1

	13 Pay Policy Statement - update [BPF]
	131 Pay Policy Statement app 1
	132 Pay Policy Deputy Chief Officer Pay Disclosure (App 2)
	133 Pay Policy Senior Officers Pay Disclosure (App 3)


